
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 19th June, 2007 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

A Hendry - Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01992 564246 Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors R Bassett, M Colling, J Hart, P House, D Jacobs, G Mohindra, R Morgan, 
Mrs P Smith, A Watts and J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING - 12 FEBRUARY 2007  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 19 June 2007 
 

2 

  To consider and agree the notes of the meeting the Panel held on 12 February 2007. 
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents. 
 

 6. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2006/07 AND 2007/08  (Pages 15 - 26) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 7. VALUE FOR MONEY SUB-GROUP - REPORT  (Pages 27 - 28) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 8. VALUE FOR MONEY IN LEISURE SERVICES  (Pages 29 - 36) 
 

  (Head of Leisure Services) To consider the attached report. 
 

 9. BACKWARD LOOKING EFFICIENCT STATEMENT 2006/07  (Pages 37 - 42) 
 

  (Head of Finance) To consider the attached report. 
 

 10. COUNCIL PLAN 2006-2010 - ANNUAL REVIEW  (Pages 43 - 80) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 11. ESSEX LOCAL AGREEMENT - REFRESH AND QUARTERLY PROGRESS 
MONITORING  (Pages 81 - 90) 

 
  (Head of Leisure Services and Head of Human Resources and Performance 

Management) To consider the attached monitoring schedule. 
 

 12. CONSULTATION PLAN AND REGISTER 2006/07 AND 2007/08  (Pages 91 - 102) 
 

  (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) To consider the attached 
report. 
 

 13. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 14. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  1.  To consider the forward programme of meeting dates for the Panel. The 
proposed meeting dates are: 
 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 19 June 2007 
 

3 

14 August; 13 November; 14 January 2008 and 11 February. 
 
 
2. The secretary to this Panel has been approached by an officer asking that the 
14 August meeting be moved forward, as he has an important report to deliver to the 
Panel, but was also booked to go on annual leave from 8 August. This report was 
initially programmed to go to the (now defunct) Customer Services and ICT Standing 
Panel in July 2007, but as this Panel’s work was redistributed to this Panel at the end 
of last year, the July meeting that it was scheduled to go to was destined not to take 
place. To help the Panel it has been established that the following days are available if 
the Panel is so minded to change the date of its’ next meeting: 
 
Thursday 26 July;  Tuesday 31 July  and Monday 6 August. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Panel is requested to consider moving the next meeting of the Panel to 
any of the above dates. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON MONDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2007 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 8.45 PM 

Members
Present:

J M Whitehouse (Chairman), J Hart (Vice-Chairman), R Church, 
M Colling, Mrs A Cooper, P House and D Jacobs 

Other members 
present:

Apologies for 
Absence:

R Morgan 

Officers Present T Tidey (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management), 
A Hall (Head of Housing Services), J Akerman (Chief Internal Auditor), 
P Maddock (Assistant Head of Finance), S Tautz (Performance 
Improvement Manager), A Akhrif (Trainee Performance Improvement 
Officer) and A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) 

Also in 
attendance:

35. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

The Panel noted that  there were no Substitute members. 

36. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

There were no declarations of interests. 

Councillor Mrs Cooper requested that her comment that she did not wish to continue 
as a member of this Panel be included in the minutes.  

37. NOTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING - 15 JANUARY 2007  

The notes of the previous meeting, held on 15 January 2007, were agreed. 

38. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

The current work programme was noted. 

39. QUARTER 3 KPI MONITORING  

The Panel noted that this was the third quarter when the new performance 
monitoring system had been used to provide information on KPI’s. It was noted that 
at present the Council was not meeting about two thirds of the KPI targets. It would 
need to meet about 50%. 

On the specific KPI’s the following questions were asked: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 12 February 2007 

2

BV008 – Percentage of Invoices Paid on time: noted that the target of 99.2% was 
very high and there would be some difficulty in meeting it. Although, it must be 
assumed that some councils were meeting it, it may be there was a need to further 
analyse our performance. 

BV009 – Percentage of Council Tax Collected: noted that we would have to wait 
until the end of the year to know if we had achieved this target. Also, under ‘Target 
met for 2005/06’ it should read ‘Yes’ not ‘No’. 

BV010 – Percentage of non-domestic rates collected: Again this is a very high 
target (99.2%) and it would be a close thing for us to achieve this target at the end of 
the year. 

BV012 – Working Days Lost Due to Sickness Absence:  The Panel noted that we 
would not meet this target by the end of the year. 

BV078b – Speed of Processing: Change in circumstances for HB/CTB Claims:
Noted that this target was unrealistic. The Local Authorities Association was 
evaluating this as a target and found that a lot of authorities that reported that they 
had met this target had in fact not met it. A more realistic target would be 11 or 12 
days.

BV091a – Kerbside Collection of Recyclables (one recyclable): Noted that the 
target should be reset to take in flats and other non-standard residences. By 2010 
the Council would need meet a 100% target, so our strategy would need to be 
developed by then. 

BV109a – Planning Applications: Major Applications: Noted it was a close run 
thing to meet this target. Also the description says it is “determined in a timely 
manner” this was a vague phrase and it should be replace (wherever it occurs) by a 
definite time period, eight weeks was said to be the time frame planning was working 
to. If so, eight weeks should be the period specified. 

BV166a&b – Environmental Health & Trading Standards Checklist: The Panel 
noted that this target was unlikely to be achieved this year. 

BV170a – Visits to and use of Museums (and Galleries): all visits: It was noted 
that the target had jumped from 309 in 2005/06 to 811 in 2006/07 a significant jump 
to happen in just one year. Also the Panel would like clarification as to what 811 
means, is it per 1,000 of the population or total of population? 

BV183b – the average length of stay in hostel accommodation of households 
that are unintentionally homeless and in priority: noted that our period is 
reducing from 20 to 19 weeks. However, it was also noted that this is a nonsense 
target as not all Local Authorities have hostels. 

BV199a – Local Street and Environmental Cleanliness – Litter and Detritus: It 
was asked that our own internal indicators used to monitor our contractors should be 
used as targets. 

BV204 – Planning appeals: It was uncertain that we would meet this target. It was 
noted that responsibility for performance against this indicator could be shared 
between the planning Sub-Committee and the delegated officer decisions. The Panel 
wished that a written explanation as to the circumstances why this target might not 
be met, be put into the members bulletin. 

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 12 February 2007 

3

BV212 - The average time to re-let Local Authority Housing: noted that when 
Choice Based Letting is introduced in the autumn it would improve the situation.  Also 
that the turnaround time for repairing empty properties for the next occupant would 
improve once the staff recruiting problems of the works unit are addressed. 

H15a – the number of affordable homes completed and ready for occupation 
during the year: noted that the target would not be met. The problem was the lack of 
land for building on. There are however about 430 potential houses in the pipeline 
depending, among other factors, the outcome of the East of England plan. 

The Panel noted that CEM1a, CEM1b, CEM1c, CEM1d, CEM1e, CEM1f, CEM1g 
and EH6 are all new indicators and need to be run for a year before meaningful 
targets could be set, and that it would be inappropriate to set targets for some of the 
indicators (e.g. number of tickets issued). 

RESOLVED: 

That the Panel considered the Council’s Performance for the first nine months 
of 2006/07 in relation to those Key Performance Indicators. 

That the appropriate officer provide members with an explanation of BV170a. 

That the Head of Planning Services place in the Member’s bulletin an 
explanation of why the target for BV 204 might not be met. 

40. BVPP SUMMARY 2007/08  

The Panel considered and noted the Best Value Performance Plan 2007/08. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) That this Panel agree the summary of the Best Value Performance 
Plan for 2007/08, but that the wording of the final section be 
reconsidered to avoid jargon and remove items of purely internal 
interest; and 

(2) That the proposed arrangement that for consideration of the full 
version of the Best Value Performance Plan for 2007/08, that is a 
complete version of the draft Plan be individually circulated for 
comment to all members of the Scrutiny Panel early in the municipal 
year with any comments being reported to the Cabinet at its first 
meeting in June, be agreed. 

41. COUNCIL PLAN / LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT - PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
ARRANGEMENTS  

The Head of Human Resources and Performance Management introduced this 
report. The Panel noted that they had received reports over the last year in 
connection with the adoption or review of the following corporate strategies: 

• The Council Plan for 2006 to 2010; 

• The Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) Improvement Plan; and  

• The Essex Local Area Agreement (LAA) 

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 12 February 2007 

4

These documents contained a range of objectives and targets to be achieved over 
the short to medium-term. Progress towards the completion of these actions were to 
be monitored by this Scrutiny Panel in line with its other performance management 
and monitoring functions. 

Given the range of actions/policies to be monitored the panel debated whether they 
should focus down and only receive exception reports, highlighting things that had 
not gone to plan rather than receiving general updating quarterly reports. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the Scrutiny Panel note arrangements for the future monitoring 
and reporting of performance against targets and objectives contained in the 
Council Plan for 2006 to 2010, the Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
Improvement Plan, and the Council’s priorities within the Local Area 
Agreement for Essex; and 
(2) That the Panel only receives exception reports highlighting the things 
not meeting the standards and targets as set out in the above mentioned 
plans and strategies. 

42. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2007/08  

The Chief Internal Auditor introduced the covering report on the Draft Internal Audit 
Plan for 2007/08, which was being submitted to this committee as part of the 
members consultation. The Plan would be submitted to the Finance and 
Performance Management Cabinet Committee in March and Cabinet for approval 
during April. He then took the Panel through the Internal Audit Business Plan for 
2007/08 pointing out that it had been consulted upon with Heads of Service, and that 
all the main finance systems would be covered in accordance with Audit Commission 
requirements.

RESOLVED: 

 The committee noted and agreed the Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2007/08.  

43. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT  

The Assistant Head of Finance introduced the report on financial monitoring on key 
areas of income and expenditure for each portfolio for the third quarter of 2006/07, 
covering the period from 1 April to 31 December 2006. 

The Panel noted that: 

• the table on salary monitoring showed that in some areas there were areas of 
underspend in excess of 10%; 

• there had been no comments from individual portfolio holders; 

• the underspends in annex 5 (Customer Services, Media & Communications & 
ICT) should clear by the years end; 

• that for annex 8 (Planning & Economic Development) much of the 
underspends has been rephrased into 2007/08; and 

• there was an overspend in Environmental Protection (annex 13) – a report will 
be going to Cabinet to explain why. 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Monday, 12 February 2007 

5

The Panel asked why the Loughton High Road, Town Centre Enhancement was 58% 
above target, the assistant Head of Finance said he would find out why and would 
report back. 

RESOLVED: 

That the Panel noted the Revenue and Capital Financial Monitoring report for 
the Third quarter of 2006/07 

44. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

To report back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee that the Panel had 
completed its work programme for this year. 

45. FUTURE MEETINGS  

The Panel noted that this was the last programmed meeting for this municipal year. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL 
 
 
Title:  Finance and Performance Management (incorporating work from the Customer 
Services and ICT Standing Panel) 
 
 
 
Status:  Standing Panel 
 
 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
Performance Management 
 
1. To review Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) and Local Performance 

Indicator (LPI) outturns for the previous year at the commencement of each 
municipal year, and to determine the following on an annual basis: 

 
(a) The criteria for deciding which BVPIs and LPIs should be formally monitored 

by the Panel throughout the remainder of the year, based upon the ‘traffic light‘ 
system of performance reporting, Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
improvements, and existing council and member priorities; 

 
(b) A ‘basket’ of priority BVPIs and LPIs, performance against which will be 

reported to the Panel throughout the year; 
 

(c) The monitoring frequency of those priority BVPIs and LPIs identified by the 
Panel; 

 
(d) Arrangements for the wider member reporting and monitoring of performance 

against those BVPIs and LPIs that are not contained in the Panel’s ‘basket’ of 
high priority indicators; 

 
2. To consider proposals and make recommendations for corrective action in relation 

to poorly performing BVPIs and LPIs; 
 
Best Value Performance Plan 
 
3. To consider and make recommendations as appropriate on the format and content 

of the Council’s annual Best Value Performance Plan; 
 
Council Plan 
 
4. To undertake a full review of the existing Council Plan and to make 

recommendations to the Cabinet on the overall strategic vision to be adopted, within 
the context of how the authority intends to prioritise resources and develop services 
in the medium term; 

 
Public Consultation 
 
5. To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and 

shaping the future direction of services to make them more responsive to local 
needs, including the development of proposals for effective consultation through an 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



 

annual community conference;  
 
6. To annually review the consultation exercises undertaken by the council over the 

previous year. 
 
Finance 
 
7. To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and in so doing to evaluate and rank 

proposals for either enhancing or reducing services. Members will need to ensure 
consistency between wider policy objectives and financial demands. 

 
8. To consider financial monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for 

each portfolio.  
 
Customer Services and ICT 
 
9. The Panel to consider feedback from the Customers Services Working Group to    

ensure that the Panel is kept up to date on current customer service activities across 
all service areas. 

 
10. To monitor and review progress on the implementation of all major ICT systems: 

• Review of the Web-Casting System. 
 
 

 

Page 12



Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ta

nd
in

g 
P

an
el

 –
 W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

A
s 

at
 1

6 
M

ay
 2

00
7 

Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ta
nd

in
g 

P
an

el
 

(1
) B

es
t V

al
ue

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
la

n 
20

07
/0

8 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
B

V
P

P
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
on

 1
2 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7.
 

A
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 F

ul
l B

V
P

P 
ag

re
ed

 o
n 

12
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

7.
 

(2
) K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 - 
Q

ua
rte

rly
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

 
O

ng
oi

ng
  

U
nd

er
w

ay
 T

hi
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
12

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7.

 
  

(3
) Q

ua
rte

rly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
: T

hi
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

on
 1

2 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
7.

 

(4
) P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 in
 R

ot
at

io
n)

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

U
nd

er
w

ay
 

(5
) L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t –
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

: Q
ua

rte
rly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 

fro
m

 s
ta

rt 
of

 2
00

7/
08

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 y

ea
r. 

(6
) C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

20
06

-2
01

0 
– 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

 
P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

P
la

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
A

nn
ua

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 fr
om

 s
ta

rt 
of

 2
00

7/
08

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 y

ea
r 

(7
) A

nn
ua

l V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 

A
na

ly
si

s 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
U

nd
er

w
ay

: S
ub

–G
ro

up
 s

et
 u

p 
to

 c
on

si
de

r V
FM

 A
na

ly
si

s 
fo

r 
20

06
/0

7.
 S

ub
-G

ro
up

 m
et

 o
n 

8 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 
to

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 
an

al
ys

is
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
 a

re
as

 fo
r p

os
si

bl
e 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

P
an

el
s.

  
(8

) C
P

A
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
– 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

14
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
06

. Q
ua

rte
rly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 fr
om

 s
ta

rt 
of

 2
00

7/
08

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 y

ea
r 

(9
) A

nn
ua

l C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

P
la

n 
 

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
P

la
n 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
t f

irs
t m

ee
tin

g 
of

 e
ac

h 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 y
ea

r -
 J

un
e 

20
07

 

(1
0)

 L
an

d 
A

ss
et

s 
– 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

  
 

A
dd

ed
 to

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

at
 O

S
C

 m
ee

tin
g 

on
 1

 F
eb

.0
7.

 

(1
1)

 V
al

ue
 fo

r M
on

ey
 in

 L
ei

su
re

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 
A

dd
ed

 to
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
at

 la
st

 m
ee

tin
g.

 

19
 J

un
e,

  
14

 A
ug

us
t, 

 
13

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

7,
 

14
 J

an
ua

ry
,  

11
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
08

 
    

Page 13



Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ta

nd
in

g 
P

an
el

 –
 W

or
k 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

A
s 

at
 1

6 
M

ay
 2

00
7 

(1
2)

 *C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 C

en
tr

e 
O

ng
oi

ng
 s

ee
 (1

4)
 

be
lo

w
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 e

ve
ry

 m
ee

tin
g 

 

(1
3)

 *W
eb

ca
st

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ju
ly

 2
00

7 
Fu

rt
he

r e
va

lu
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 J

ul
y 

20
07

 m
tg

. 
Pr

oj
ec

t a
gr

ee
d 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 p

en
di

ng
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 

(1
4)

 *C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

 * =
 it

em
s 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 u

nd
er

 
di

sb
an

de
d 

C
us

to
m

er
 a

nd
 IC

T 
Pa

ne
l 

A
pr

il 
20

07
 

N
ew

 It
em

  

 

 

Page 14



  

Report to: Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of Meeting: 19 June 2007 

 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services  
 
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2006/07 and 2007/08 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Democratic Services Officer:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
(1) That the Council’s performance in relation to Best Value Performance 

Indicators (BVPIs) and Local Performance Indicators (LPIs) for 2006/07, be 
noted;  

 
(2) That subject to the concurrence of the Cabinet: 

 
(a) the Council’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2006/07 be 

readopted for 2007/08, with the exception of BVPI 164 (Race Equality 
in Housing), BVPI 183(a) (Length of stay in Bed and Breakfast 
accommodation) and LPI CEM1 (Penalty Charge Notices for Car 
Parking); and 

 
(b) a target be set for at least 75% of the KPIs to achieve top quartile (or 

other appropriate target) performance for 2007/08; 
 

(3) That, subject to recommendation (2)(a) above, the Scrutiny Panel identify 
any additional BVPIs or LPIs to be recommended to the Cabinet for 
adoption as KPIs for 2007/08; and 

 
(4) That the Scrutiny Panel consider the Council’s current rate of progress in 

securing performance improvement, and identify options for achieving 
increased improvement across the range of services and functions 
measured by the current BVPI suite, and recommend to the Cabinet 
accordingly. 

 
Report: 
 
Background 
 
1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) A range of 52 Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2006/07 was adopted by the Cabinet at it’s meeting on 10 
July 2006. The KPIs are crucial to the Council’s core business and its corporate priorities, 
and comprise a mixture of both Best Value and Local Performance Indicators (BVPIs/LPIs). 
The aim of the indicators is to focus improvement actions on key areas and to move 
performance against each into the top quartile (the performance levels of the top 25% of local 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



  

authorities against each indicator) of local authorities where appropriate, and to then maintain 
or improve further on that level of performance.  
 
2. Targets for each KPI have traditionally been based on the most recently available 
national performance information published by the Audit Commission. In the case of the KPIs 
for 2006/07, targets were based on audited national performance information for 2004/05 that 
had been published by the Commission in February 2006. The setting of KPI targets on this 
basis results in current performance being measured against two year old quartiles and, 
whilst providing challenging targets for achievement, the Audit Commission’s assessment of 
the Council’s performance will always measure it against the performance of other local 
authorities in the same year. On the adoption of the KPIs for 2006/07, the Cabinet set a 
target that at least 50% should achieve top quartile status by the end of the year. 
 
3. Annual improvement plans are produced for each of the KPIs to reflect year on year 
changes, which also contain details of service costs and feed into the Council’s annual value 
for money analysis. Progress in achieving top quartile performance in respect of the KPIs is 
reported to the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel and the relevant 
Portfolio Holder at the conclusion of each quarter. Details of performance against all BVPIs 
and LPIs (including the KPIs) are also deposited in the Members’ Room at the end of each 
quarter. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 2006/07 
 
4. A schedule detailing the performance against BVPIs and LPIs (including those 
indicators also designated as KPIs), for the period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007, is 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. Members are asked to note that performance targets 
have not been set for any of the KPIs relating to the issue of Penalty Charge Notices for on-
street and off-street car parking (LPI CEM1 (a)-(g)), as local authorities are encouraged not 
to set targets for the issue of Penalty Charge Notices.  
 
5. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the Council’s performance for 2006/07 in 
relation to the BVPIs and LPIs. Appendix 1 illustrates performance for each indicator in red 
shading where targets were not achieved and in green shading where were targets met. 
Additionally, the schedule also highlights in amber shading, those indicators where, whilst 
targets were not met for the year, outturn performance fell within 5% of the respective target.  
 
6. The overall year-end position with regard to the achievement of top quartile (or other 
relevant) targets set for 44 of the KPIs (excluding the 7 indicators comprising LPI CEM1 for 
which performance cannot be measured against targets, and BVPI 184(a) (Non-decent 
dwellings) that reflects a base-line position brought forward from the preceding year) is as 
follows: 
 

(a) 23 (52%) achieved the performance target for 2006/07; 
(b) 6 (14%) did not achieve the performance target for 2006/07, although outturn 

performance was within 5% of the target for the year; and 
(c) 15 (34%) did not achieve the performance target for 2006/07 and outturn 

performance was not within 5% of the target for the year. 
 
7. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to note the Council’s performance in relation to its 
KPIs for 2006/07. Relevant Heads of Service will be in attendance at the meeting to respond 
members’ questions in respect of current performance against specific indicators and targets. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 2007/08 
 
8. Management Board has recently considered outturn performance against the KPIs for 
2006/07, and recommends that LPI CEM1, which measures various issues relating to the 
issue of Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) for on and off-street car parking, should be deleted 

Page 16



  

as a KPI and LPI for 2007/08 and future years. Although this indicator was adopted at the 
request of the Scrutiny Panel, local authorities are encouraged not to set targets for the issue 
of PCNs, and it is considered that the indicator therefore serves little purpose other than to 
establish trends in relation to car parking. Subject to the agreement of the deletion of this 
indicator, the Head of Environmental Services will ensure that the information previously 
collected by the indicator is made available to members on a regular basis, possibly through 
a quarterly report in the Council Bulletin.  
 
9. In addition, the Department for Communities and Local Government has recently 
advised local authorities that the following BVPIs have been deleted with effect from April 
2007: 
 

• BVPI 17(b) - Economically active population from ethnic minority communities; 
• BVPI 76(a) - Housing Benefit claimants visited per 1,000 caseload; 
• BVPI 164 - Access to social housing; 
• BVPI 183(a) - Length of stay in temporary accommodation (Bed and Breakfast); 
• BVPI 203 - Change in number of families in temporary accommodation; 
• BVPI 214 - Repeat homelessness; 
• BVPI 219(a) and (c) - Conservation Areas with published management proposals; 

and 
• BVPI 200(c) - Plan making. 

 
10. BVPI 164, which measures race equality in the provision of housing services, and 
BVPI 183(a) which measures the length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation, are the 
only current KPIs amongst these deletions, although the Cabinet had already previously 
agreed that BVPI 164 be deleted as a KPI from 2007/08. With the exception of these 
indicators and LPI CEM1 (Car Parking), it is recommended that the existing KPI set be 
readopted for 2007/08. The Scrutiny Panel is however also requested to identify any 
additional Best Value or Local Performance Indicators that it wishes to recommend to the 
Cabinet for adoption as KPIs for 2007/08. 
 
11. As the Council’s target of achieving top-quartile status (based on outturns for 
2004/05) for at least 50% of the KPIs has been achieved for 2006/07, assessment of the 
Council’s performance should look for further improvement in 2007/08 and beyond. 
Management Board has considered the Council’s performance against the KPIs for the year, 
and recommends that a target be set for at least 75% of the KPIs to achieve top quartile (or 
other appropriate target) performance for 2007/08.  
 
12. Notwithstanding the achievement of performance targets for 52% of the KPIs for 
2006/07, members are reminded that the Audit Commission has previously reported that the 
Council’s current rate of performance improvement is slower than that of comparable local 
authorities. In order to address the concerns of the Commission in this respect, Management 
Board considers that the Scrutiny Panel and the Cabinet should consider the Council’s 
current rate of progress in securing performance improvement, and identify options for 
achieving increased improvement across the range of services and functions measured by 
the current BVPI suite, whilst recognising that the provision of additional targeted resources 
will be likely to be necessary to focus on sustaining improvement in specific areas.  
 
13. The views of the Scrutiny Panel in respect of the adoption of KPIs for 2007/08 and 
options for securing further BVPI improvement will be reported to the Cabinet at its meeting 
on 16 July 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



  

Reason for Decision: 
 
14. To ensure that the Council monitors progress against its aim of achieving top quartile 
district council performance of 50% of its key performance indicators for 2006/07, and that 
proposals for corrective action are considered in respect of areas of current under-
performance. 
 
Options Considered and Rejected: 
 
15. None. The Council has previously agreed arrangements for monitoring progress 
against the achievement of targets set for the Key Performance Indicators and other BVPIs 
and LPIs. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
16. The performance information compiled in this report has been submitted by each 
appropriate Head of Service. Outturn performance for 2006/07 and proposals for the 
adoption of KPIs for 2007/08 have been considered by Management Board and will be 
considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 16 July 2007. 
 
 
 
Resource Implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: The respective Head of Service will identify the resource 
requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of KPI areas of current under-
performance set out in this report. 
Council Plan/BVPP Reference: Council Plan 2006-2010 Section 8 – ‘How We Measure Our 
Achievements’. 
Relevant Statutory Powers: None 
Background Papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: As set out in 
respective performance reports for individual KPIs. 
Key Decision Reference: (if required) None 

Page 18



T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
O

P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

R
E

D

A
M

B
E

R

G
R

E
E

N

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

B
V

2
a

T
h
e

le
ve

l
o
f 

th
e

E
q
u
a
lit

y
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

fo
r

L
o
c
a
l
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t
(H

IG
H

)
L
e
ve

l 
1

L
e
ve

l 
1

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

L
e
ve

l 
1

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
2
b

T
h
e

q
u
a
lit

y 
th

e
R

a
c
e

E
q
u
a
lit

y
S

c
h
e
m

e
(H

IG
H

)
6
3
.0

0
%

8
9
.0

0
%

Y
e
s

5
3
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

1
2
6

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c

b
u
rg

la
ri
e
s

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
(L

O
W

)
1
2
.9

7
1
4
.0

9
N

o
1
6
.6

7
R

E
D

B
V

1
2
7
a

V
io

le
n
t
c
ri
m

e
s

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

1
3
.9

3
1
3
.7

9
N

o
1
3
.9

2
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

1
2
7
b

R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

0
.7

1
1
.2

8
Y

e
s

1
.4

9
R

E
D

B
V

1
2
8

V
e
h
ic

le
c
ri
m

e
s

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

1
2
.1

9
1
3
.9

3
N

o
1
4
.8

6
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
1
5
6

D
is

a
b
le

d
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

's
b
u
ild

in
g
s

(H
IG

H
)

7
6
.9

0
%

8
3
.3

3
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
6
.9

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

1
7
4

R
a
c
ia

l
in

c
id

e
n
ts

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

1
3
4
.8

3
1
1
9
.9

4
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

1
0
5
.0

6
G

R
E

E
N

K
P

I
B

V
1
7
5

R
a
c
ia

l
in

c
id

e
n
ts

re
s
u
lt
in

g
in

fu
rt

h
e
r

a
c
ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
2
5

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
g
a
in

s
t
a
c
ti
o
n

a
g
a
in

s
t
vi

o
le

n
c
e

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
(H

IG
H

)
7
5
.0

0
%

N
o

d
a
ta

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

N
o

d
a
ta

N
o

d
a
ta

B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
/L

O
C

A
L

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 I

N
D

IC
A

T
O

R
S

-
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

S
2
0
0
6
/0

7

Il
lu

s
tr

a
ti
o
n

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
a
g
a
in

s
t

d
is

tr
ic

t 
to

p
q
u
a
rt

il
e
s

fo
r

2
0
0
5
/0

6
(Q

u
a
rt

il
e
s

s
e
t

fo
r

B
V

P
Is

o
n
ly

)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
u
tt

u
rn

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Il
lu

s
tr

a
ti
o
n

o
f

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

(o
r

o
th

e
rw

is
e
)

b
e
tw

e
e
n

2
0
0
5
/0

6
a
n
d

2
0
0
6
/0

7

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

O
u
tt

u
rn

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

n
o
t

m
e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
u
tt

u
rn

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
n
o
t

m
e
t,

b
u
t

o
u
tt

u
rn

w
it
h
in

5
.0

0
%

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t

O
u
tt

u
rn

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

m
e
t

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

Page 19



B
V

2
2
6
a

E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

o
n

le
g
a
l
a
n
d

a
d
vi

c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y

e
xt

e
rn

a
l
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

(N
/A

)
£
1
3
6
,5

8
0

£
1
3
6
,5

8
0

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

£
1
3
3
,2

5
0
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

2
2
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

o
n

le
g
a
l
a
n
d

a
d
vi

c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y

e
xt

e
rn

a
l

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

h
o
ld

in
g
 t
h
e

C
L
S

Q
u
a
lit

y
M

a
rk

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
0
.0

0
%

7
8
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
7
.0

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
2
6
c

E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

o
n

h
o
u
s
in

g
,
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

,
w

e
lf
a
re

,
a
n
d

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r

m
a
tt
e
rs

a
d
vi

c
e

a
n
d

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

(N
/A

)
N

o
t
s
e
t

N
o
t
c
o
lle

c
te

d
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

N
o

d
a
ta

N
/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I
E

H
6

L
ic

e
n
c
e

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d

w
it
h
in

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
ri
o
d
s

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
0
.0

0
%

9
8
.3

0
%

N
/A

9
5
.9

0
%

A
M

B
E

R

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

K
P

I
B

V
6
3

T
h
e

a
ve

ra
g
e

S
A

P
ra

ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

(H
IG

H
)

6
7
.0

0
6
6
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

6
5
.0

0
A

M
B

E
R

B
V

6
4

P
ri
va

te
va

c
a
n
t
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

o
r

d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

(H
IG

H
)

2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.0

0
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
6
6
a

R
e
n
t
c
o
lle

c
te

d
a
s

a
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
n
ts

o
w

e
d

o
n

h
o
u
s
in

g
re

ve
n
u
e

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

(H
IG

H
)

9
8
.7

4
%

9
8
.8

3
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

9
8
.5

8
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

6
6
b

T
e
n
a
n
ts

w
it
h

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n

s
e
ve

n
w

e
e
k
s

g
ro

s
s

re
n
t
a
rr

e
a
rs

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
ta

l

te
n
a
n
ts

(L
O

W
)

1
2
.0

0
%

8
.3

9
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

8
.2

4
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

6
6
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

in
a
rr

e
a
rs

w
h
o

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

s
e
rv

e
d

a
N

o
ti
c
e

S
e
e
k
in

g

P
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
(L

O
W

)
2
0
.0

0
%

2
2
.3

4
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

2
0
.0

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

6
6
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

e
vi

c
te

d
a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

re
n
t
a
rr

e
a
rs

(L
O

W
)

0
.2

6
%

0
.2

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.2

1
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
6
4
*

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
fo

r
R

a
c
ia

l
E

q
u
a
lit

y'
s

c
o
d
e

o
f

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

in
re

n
te

d
h
o
u
s
in

g

a
n
d
 t
h
e

G
o
o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo

r
s
o
c
ia

l
la

n
d
lo

rd
s

o
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t
(N

/A
)

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

Y
e
s

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
8
3
a
*

A
ve

ra
g
e

le
n
g
th

o
f

s
ta

y
(w

e
e
k
s
)

in
b
e
d

a
n
d

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s

th
a
t
a
re

u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n
d

in
p
ri
o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

(L
O

W
)

0
.0

0
2
.6

7
N

o
0
.0

0
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
1
8
3
b

A
ve

ra
g
e

le
n
g
th

o
f

s
ta

y
(w

e
e
k
s
)

in
h
o
s
te

l
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
h
a
t
a
re

u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

a
n
d

in
p
ri
o
ri
ty

n
e
e
d

(L
O

W
)

1
5
.0

0
2
0
.2

3
N

o
1
8
.1

1
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
1
8
4
a

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

w
h
ic

h
w

e
re

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t
a
t 
th

e
s
ta

rt
o
f 

th
e

ye
a
r

(L
O

W
)

N
/A

6
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
.3

1
%

N
/A

K
P

I
B

V
1
8
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

c
h
a
n
g
e

in
 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t
C

o
u
n
c
il

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e

s
ta

rt
a
n
d

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e

ye
a
r

(H
IG

H
)

1
2
.5

0
%

1
0
.9

0
%

Y
e
s

1
9
.5

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
0
2

R
o
u
g
h

s
le

e
p
e
rs

(L
O

W
)

0
-1

0
1

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

1
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

2
0
3
*

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

c
h
a
n
g
e

in
 t
h
e

a
ve

ra
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

fa
m

ili
e
s

p
la

c
e
d

in
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry

a
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

-1
2
.3

0
-1

7
.2

2
Y

e
s

6
7
.1

6
%

G
R

E
E

N

H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

Page 20



K
P

I
B

V
2
1
2

A
ve

ra
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

d
a
ys

 t
o

re
-l
e
t
C

o
u
n
c
il

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

(L
O

W
)

4
2
.0

0
5
1
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

4
6
.0

0
R

E
D

B
V

2
1
3

H
o
m

e
le

s
s

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s

re
s
o
lv

e
d

b
y

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

d
vi

c
e

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

(H
IG

H
)

4
.2

0
1
0
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

4
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

2
1
4
*

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
p
e
a
t
h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
(H

IG
H

)
0
.5

0
%

6
.4

8
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.5

0
R

E
D

L
P

I
H

1
a

F
o
rm

e
r

T
e
n
a
n
t
A

rr
e
a
rs

c
o
lle

c
te

d
(H

IG
H

)
£
4
0
,0

0
0

£
1
1
9
,4

6
5

N
/A

£
6
5
,3

5
1
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
H

1
b

C
u
rr

e
n
t
re

n
t
a
re

a
rs

a
s

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

re
n
t
ro

ll
(L

O
W

)
1
.6

0
%

1
.6

9
%

N
/A

1
.5

3
%

R
E

D

L
P

I
H

2
a

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

re
p
a
ir
s

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 
ti
m

e
(H

IG
H

)
9
9
.0

0
%

9
9
.0

0
%

N
/A

9
9
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
H

2
b

U
rg

e
n
t
re

p
a
ir
s

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 
ti
m

e
(H

IG
H

)
9
5
.0

0
%

8
9
.0

0
%

N
/A

8
1
.0

0
%

R
E

D

L
P

I
H

2
c

R
o
u
ti
n
e

re
p
a
ir
s

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 
ti
m

e
(H

IG
H

)
9
5
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

8
6
.0

0
%

R
E

D

L
P

I
H

3
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

re
p
a
ir
s

(H
IG

H
)

9
7
.0

0
%

9
8
.0

0
%

N
/A

9
8
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
H

1
0
a

A
ve

ra
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
in

g
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
p
la

c
e
d

in
b
e
d

a
n
d

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

1
5
.0

0
1
7
.3

0
N

/A
1
9
.2

5
R

E
D

L
P

I
H

1
0
b

A
ve

ra
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
p
la

c
e
d

in
h
o
s
te

l
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

3
2
.0

0
2
2
.8

0
N

/A
2
5
.5

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
H

1
0
c

A
ve

ra
g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
p
la

c
e
d

in
o
th

e
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

(L
O

W
)

1
3
0
.0

0
1
5
4
.3

0
N

/A
1
7
0
.0

0
R

E
D

K
P

I
H

1
5
a

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

re
a
d
y

fo
r

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

ye
a
r

(H
IG

H
)

3
3
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
N

/A
7
4
.0

0
R

E
D

K
P

I
H

1
5
b

T
h
e

a
m

o
u
n
t
o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
re

q
u
ir
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
6

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

s
ig

n
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

ye
a
r

(H
IG

H
)

3
3
.0

0
%

3
0
.8

0
%

N
/A

2
8
.0

0
%

R
E

D

L
P

I
E

H
2

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

s
e
rv

ic
e

re
q
u
e
s
ts

(C
a
re

a
n
d

R
e
p
a
ir
)

(H
IG

H
)

9
1
.0

0
%

9
8
.6

0
%

N
/A

9
2
.8

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

K
P

I
B

V
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

in
vo

ic
e
s

p
a
id

w
it
h
in

3
0

d
a
ys

o
f

re
c
e
ip

t
(H

IG
H

)
9
9
.2

0
%

9
6
.9

8
%

N
o

9
3
.8

8
%

A
M

B
E

R

K
P

I
B

V
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

c
o
lle

c
te

d
(H

IG
H

)
9
8
.5

0
%

9
8
.2

0
%

N
o

9
8
.0

2
%

A
M

B
E

R

K
P

I
B

V
1
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c

ra
te

s
c
o
lle

c
te

d
(H

IG
H

)
9
9
.2

0
%

9
9
.0

1
N

o
9
8
.8

6
%

A
M

B
E

R

K
P

I
B

V
1
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
p
-p

a
id

5
%

o
f

s
ta

ff
w

h
o

a
re

w
o
m

e
n

(H
IG

H
)

2
8
.9

3
%

2
4
.8

1
%

N
o

2
7
.0

0
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
p

5
%

o
f

s
ta

ff
fr

o
m

a
n

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri
ty

(H
IG

H
)

1
.9

8
%

2
.8

9
%

Y
e
s

2
.1

5
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
1
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

to
p

5
%

o
f

s
ta

ff
w

h
o

h
a
ve

a
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
(H

IG
H

)
6
.2

5
%

1
1
.5

7
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

8
.5

9
%

G
R

E
E

N

F
in

a
n

c
e
,
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a
n

d
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
S

u
p

p
o

rt
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

*
T

h
e
s
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
e
le

te
d

b
y
 t
h
e

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
ite

s
a
n
d

L
o
c
a
lG

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
w

ith
e
ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Page 21



K
P

I
B

V
1
2

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

w
o
rk

in
g

d
a
ys

lo
s
t
d
u
e
 t
o

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

(L
O

W
)

8
.4

8
1
0
.9

8
N

o
1
0
.6

6
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
1
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s

re
ti
ri
n
g

e
a
rl
y

(e
xc

lu
d
in

g
ill

-h
e
a
lt
h
)

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
(L

O
W

)
0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

Y
e
s

0
.1

8
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

1
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s

re
ti
ri
n
g

o
n

g
ro

u
n
d
s

o
f

ill
-h

e
a
lt
h

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
(L

O
W

)
0
.3

5
%

0
.5

5
%

N
o

0
.1

8
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
6
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s

w
it
h

a
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
(H

IG
H

)
4
.1

0
%

9
.6

7
%

Y
e
s

2
.7

5
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
7
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
e
m

p
lo

ye
e
s

fr
o
m

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri
ty

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
(N

/A
)

2
.5

0
%

3
.7

8
%

Y
e
s

4
.1

3
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

1
7
b
*

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f 

th
e

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

a
c
ti
ve

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

fr
o
m

e
th

n
ic

m
in

o
ri
ty

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

(H
IG

H
)

N
o
t
S

e
t

5
.1

5
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

5
.1

5
%

N
/A

B
V

7
6
a
*

B
e
n
e
fi
t
c
la

im
a
n
ts

vi
s
it
e
d

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

(H
IG

H
)

1
5
0
.0

0
2
1
5
.9

8
N

o
2
5
3
.8

1
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

7
6
b

B
e
n
e
fi
t
fr

a
u
d

in
ve

s
ti
g
a
to

rs
e
m

p
lo

ye
d

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

(H
IG

H
)

0
.4

0
0
.4

9
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.4

7
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

7
6
c

B
e
n
e
fi
t
fr

a
u
d

in
ve

s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s

e
m

p
lo

ye
d

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

(H
IG

H
)

6
5
.0

0
6
7
.3

9
Y

e
s

4
5
.5

0
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

7
6
d

B
e
n
e
fi
t
fr

a
u
d

p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

(H
IG

H
)

6
.0

0
6
.6

7
Y

e
s

2
.6

5
G

R
E

E
N

K
P

I
B

V
7
8
a

A
ve

ra
g
e
 t
im

e
(d

a
ys

)
fo

r
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
n
e
w

b
e
n
e
fi
t
c
la

im
s

(L
O

W
)

2
8
.0

0
2
8
.5

3
Y

e
s

2
9
.2

8
A

M
B

E
R

K
P

I
B

V
7
8
b

A
ve

ra
g
e
 t
im

e
(d

a
ys

)
fo

r
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

o
f

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

fo
r

b
e
n
e
fi
t
c
la

im
s

(L
O

W
)

6
.8

0
1
2
.4

0
N

o
1
1
.9

4
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
7
9
a

A
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
b
e
n
e
fi
t
c
la

im
s

(H
IG

H
)

9
9
.0

0
%

9
9
.4

0
%

Y
e
s

9
9
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

7
9
b
(i
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

re
c
o
ve

ra
b
le

b
e
n
e
fi
t
o
ve

rp
a
ym

e
n
ts

re
c
o
ve

re
d

(H
IG

H
)

4
5
.0

0
%

4
2
.1

4
%

N
o

4
3
.2

3
%

R
E

D

B
V

7
9
b
(i
i)

B
e
n
e
fi
t
o
ve

rp
a
ym

e
n
ts

re
c
o
ve

re
d
,
a
s

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

o
ve

rp
a
ym

e
n
t
d
e
b
t
(H

IG
H

)
4
5
.0

0
%

3
2
.5

4
%

N
o

2
8
.7

3
%

R
E

D

B
V

7
9
b
(i
ii)

B
e
n
e
fi
t
o
ve

rp
a
ym

e
n
ts

w
ri
tt
e
n
-o

ff
,
a
s

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

o
ve

rp
a
ym

e
n
t
d
e
b
t
(N

/A
)

1
0
.0

0
%

6
.4

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
.0

4
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
S

S
4
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
u
d
it

p
ro

je
c
ts

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

(H
IG

H
)

8
5
.0

0
%

8
2
.0

0
%

N
/A

8
6
.0

0
%

A
M

B
E

R

L
P

I
S

S
4
b

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
ve

a
u
d
it
 t
im

e
(H

IG
H

)
6
5
.0

0
%

6
7
.0

0
%

N
/A

6
7
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
S

S
4
c

In
te

rn
a
l
A

u
d
it

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

8
0
.0

0
%

8
3
.0

0
%

N
/A

8
5
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
S

S
4
f

A
ve

ra
g
e

c
o
s
t
p
e
r

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
ve

a
u
d
it

d
a
y

(H
IG

H
)

£
2
9
0
.0

0
£
3
1
4
.0

0
N

/A
£
2
9
2
.0

0
R

E
D

L
P

I 
F

1
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

re
ve

n
u
e
s

c
a
lls

a
n
s
w

e
re

d
w

it
h
in

 t
e
n

s
e
c
o
n
d
s

(H
IG

H
)

9
4
.0

0
%

9
2
.2

9
%

N
/A

9
0
.1

2
%

A
M

B
E

R

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

*
T

h
e
s
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
e
le

te
d

b
y
 t
h
e

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
ite

s
a
n
d

L
o
c
a
lG

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
w

ith
e
ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

2
0
0
7
/0

8

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

Page 22



K
P

I
B

V
8
2
a
(i

)
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t
fo

r
re

c
yc

lin
g

(H
IG

H
)

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.3

1
%

Y
e
s

1
6
.1

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
8
2
a
(i

i)
T

o
n
n
a
g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t
fo

r
re

c
yc

lin
g

(H
IG

H
)

1
2
5
0
0
.0

0
1
2
6
5
4
.5

9
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
9
8
2
.3

3
G

R
E

E
N

K
P

I
B

V
8
2
b

(i
)

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t
fo

r
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
r

a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

1
1
.0

0
%

1
1
.7

8
%

Y
e
s

7
.4

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
8
2
b

(i
i)

T
o
n
n
a
g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
n
t
fo

r
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
r

a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

5
5
0
0
.0

0
5
8
9
1
.5

0
N

o
t
s
e
t

3
6
8
1
.7

3
G

R
E

E
N

K
P

I
B

V
8
4
a

K
ill

o
g
ra

m
s

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

c
o
lle

c
te

d
p
e
r

h
e
a
d

(L
O

W
)

4
1
6
.0

0
4
0
9
.8

8
Y

e
s

4
1
0
.4

4
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

8
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

c
h
a
n
g
e

in
k
ill

o
g
ra

m
s

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

w
a
s
te

c
o
lle

c
te

d
p
e
r

h
e
a
d

(L
O

W
)

-1
.2

0
%

0
.1

4
%

N
o
t
s
e
t

-4
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

8
6

C
o
s
t
o
f

w
a
s
te

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

p
e
r

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

(L
O

W
)

£
5
4
.3

1
£
6
4
.2

9
N

o
£
4
2
.1

9
R

E
D

K
P

I
B

V
9
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
s
e
rv

e
d

b
y

k
e
rb

s
id

e
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

o
f

re
c
yc

la
b
le

s
(H

IG
H

)
9
8
.0

0
%

8
9
.9

9
%

N
o

8
9
.6

5
%

R
E

D

B
V

9
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
s
e
rv

e
d

b
y

k
e
rb

s
id

e
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
t
le

a
s
t 
tw

o
re

c
yc

la
b
le

s

(H
IG

H
)

9
8
.0

0
%

8
9
.9

9
%

N
o

8
9
.6

5
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
6
6
a

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
g
a
in

s
t
e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
h
e
a
lt
h

b
e
s
t
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

c
h
e
c
k

lis
t
(H

IG
H

)
8
5
.0

0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

N
o

8
0
.0

0
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
9
9
a

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y

w
it
h

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

d
e
p
o
s
it
s

o
f

lit
te

r
a
n
d

d
e
tr

it
u
s

(L
O

W
)

1
0
.0

0
%

2
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

1
3
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
9
9
b

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y

w
it
h

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
ve

ls
o
f

g
ra

ff
it
i
(L

O
W

)
1
0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
9
9
c

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

la
n
d

a
n
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y

w
it
h

u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

le
ve

ls
o
f

fl
y-

p
o
s
ti
n
g

(L
O

W
)

1
0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
9
9
d

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

in
c
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
f

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o

d
e
a
l

w
it
h

fl
y-

ti
p
p
in

g
(H

IG
H

)
G

ra
d
e
 2

G
ra

d
e
 1

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

G
ra

d
e
 4

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
1
6
a

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
te

s
o
f

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l
c
o
n
c
e
rn

w
it
h

re
s
p
e
c
t 
to

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
la

n
d

(N
/A

)
5
8
2
5
.0

0
5
8
2
5
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

5
8
2
5
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

2
1
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

s
it
e
s

o
f

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l
c
o
n
c
e
rn

fo
r

w
h
ic

h
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

is
a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o

e
n
a
b
le

re
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
(H

IG
H

)
1
.7

0
%

0
.5

6
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

0
.4

4
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

p
o
llu

ti
o
n

c
o
n
tr

o
l
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

(H
IG

H
)

9
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
1
8
a

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d

ve
h
ic

le
re

p
o
rt

s
in

ve
s
ti
g
a
te

d
w

it
h
in

2
4

h
o
u
rs

(H
IG

H
)

6
0
.0

0
%

4
8
.6

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

2
4
.0

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
1
8
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d

ve
h
ic

le
d

re
m

o
ve

d
w

it
h
in

2
4

h
o
u
rs

o
f

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
to

re
m

o
ve

(H
IG

H
)

6
5
.0

0
%

7
8
.1

7
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

7
6
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
E

H
1

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

s
e
rv

ic
e

re
q
u
e
s
ts

(E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
)

(H
IG

H
)

9
1
.0

0
%

9
4
.5

0
%

N
/A

9
4
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
E

H
3

S
ta

tu
to

ry
E

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

A
c
t
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
E

H
4

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

s
e
rv

ic
e

re
q
u
e
s
ts

(C
o
n
s
u
m

e
r

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
)

(H
IG

H
)

9
0
.0

0
%

9
3
.9

0
%

N
/A

8
8
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
E

H
5

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

o
f

n
o
ti
fi
a
b
le

a
c
id

e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

s
ta

tu
to

ry
p
e
ri
o
d
s
N

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
E

H
7

F
o
o
d

s
a
fe

ty
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t
in

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h
 F

o
o
d

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
A

g
e
n
c
y

ta
rg

e
ts

(H
IG

H
)

9
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

N
/A

9
3
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
W

M
1

M
is

s
e
d

re
fu

s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

(L
O

W
)

9
5
.0

0
6
6
.7

4
N

/A
1
7
2
.7

2
G

R
E

E
N

Page 23



L
P

I
W

M
2

M
is

s
e
d

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

a
s

a
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

e
xe

m
p
ti
o
n
s

(L
O

W
)

-1
.0

0
%

0
.6

3
%

N
/A

1
.0

4
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
P

I
W

M
3

M
is

s
e
d

g
la

s
s

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

(L
O

W
)

9
5
.0

0
4
0
.6

5
N

/A
4
0
.7

4
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
W

M
4

M
is

s
e
d

d
ry

re
c
yc

la
b
le

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

(L
O

W
)

9
5
.0

0
1
5
0
.0

2
N

/A
1
7
4
.0

7
R

E
D

L
P

I
W

M
5

M
is

s
e
d

g
a
rd

e
n

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

(L
O

W
)

9
5
.0

0
9
7
.2

7
N

/A
1
3
0
.2

0
A

M
B

E
R

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

K
P

I
B

V
1
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

b
u
ilt

o
n

p
re

vi
o
u
s
ly

d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d

la
n
d

(H
IG

H
)

9
0
.0

0
%

9
5
.6

5
%

Y
e
s

9
8
.6

5
%

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
1
0
9
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

m
a
jo

r
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

1
3

w
e
e
k
s

(H
IG

H
)

7
1
.2

5
%

6
7
.2

0
%

N
o

5
4
.0

0
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
0
9
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

m
in

o
r

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

8
w

e
e
k
s

(H
IG

H
)

7
5
.3

3
%

7
2
.9

6
%

N
o

5
7
.0

0
%

R
E

D

K
P

I
B

V
1
0
9
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

'o
th

e
r'

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

w
it
h
in

8
w

e
e
k
s

(H
IG

H
)

8
8
.0

3
%

8
9
.5

0
%

Y
e
s

8
0
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
0
0
a

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
S

c
h
e
m

e
(N

/A
)

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

Y
e
s

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
0
0
b

A
c
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
t
o
f

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s

w
it
h
in

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
S

c
h
e
m

e
(N

/A
)

Y
e
s

N
o

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

Y
e
s

R
E

D

B
V

2
0
0
c
*

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n
n
u
a
l
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

re
p
o
rt

fo
r

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
S

c
h
e
m

e
(N

/A
)

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

Y
e
s

G
R

E
E

N

K
P

I
B

V
2
0
4

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
p
p
e
a
ls

a
llo

w
e
d

a
g
a
in

s
t
re

fu
s
a
l
o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
,
a
s

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

th
e
 t
o
ta

l
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
p
p
e
a
ls

a
g
a
in

s
t
re

fu
s
a
ls

(L
O

W
)

2
4
.0

0
%

2
9
.1

0
%

Y
e
s

2
2
.0

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
0
5

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
g
a
in

s
t
p
la

n
n
in

g
q
u
a
lit

y
o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
(H

IG
H

)
8
9
.0

0
%

8
3
.0

0
%

N
o

8
9
.0

0
%

R
E

D

B
V

2
1
9
a
*

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

A
re

a
s

(H
IG

H
)

2
5
.0

0
2
5
.0

0
Q

u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

2
5
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

B
V

2
1
9
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

A
re

a
s

w
it
h

u
p
 t
o

d
a
te

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r
a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

(H
IG

H
)

8
.0

0
%

1
6
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

4
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

B
V

2
1
9
c
*

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

A
re

a
s

w
it
h

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

(H
IG

H
)

8
.0

0
%

1
6
.0

0
%

Q
u
a
rt

ile
n
o
t
s
e
t

4
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

K
P

I
B

V
1
7
0
a

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

vi
s
it
s
 t
o

C
o
u
n
c
il

fu
n
d
e
d

o
r

p
a
rt

fu
n
d
e
d

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
a
n
d

g
a
lle

ri
e
s

in
 t
h
e

a
re

a

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

8
1
1
.0

0
6
3
6
.4

4
N

o
5
2
4
.4

8
R

E
D

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

L
e
is

u
re

a
n

d
Y

o
u

n
g

P
e
o

p
le

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

*
T

h
e
s
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
e
le

te
d

b
y
 t
h
e

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r
C

o
m

m
u
n
ite

s
a
n
d

L
o
c
a
lG

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
w

ith
e
ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

2
0
0
7
/0

8

Page 24



B
V

1
7
0
b

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

vi
s
it
s
 t
o

C
o
u
n
c
il

fu
n
d
e
d

o
r

p
a
rt

fu
n
d
e
d

m
u
s
e
u
m

s
a
n
d

g
a
lle

ri
e
s

in
 t
h
e

a
re

a
, 
th

a
t
w

e
re

in
p
e
rs

o
n

p
e
r

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

1
2
8
.0

9
1
2
9
.0

2
N

o
1
1
0
.2

8
G

R
E

E
N

K
P

I
B

V
1
7
0
c

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
u
p
ils

vi
s
it
in

g
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
a
n
d

g
a
lle

ri
e
s

in
o
rg

a
n
is

e
d

s
c
h
o
o
l
g
ro

u
p
s

(H
IG

H
)

3
1
8
1
.0

0
4
5
3
1
.0

0
Y

e
s

3
2
9
4
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
1

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
a
ri
s
h
e
s

in
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

p
ro

vi
d
e
s

le
is

u
re

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
(H

IG
H

)
1
7

2
0

N
/A

1
4
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
2

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
a
ri
s
h
e
s

in
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

e
n
a
b
le

d
le

is
u
re

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
(H

IG
H

)
1
5

1
6

N
/A

1
5
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
3

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
e
o
p
le

b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g

fr
o
m

s
p
e
c
ia

l
a
c
ti
vi

ty
p
ri
c
e
s

(H
IG

H
)

2
3
5
0

2
8
9

N
/A

4
2
2
.0

0
R

E
D

L
P

I
L
4

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
e
w

le
is

u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

e
n
a
b
le

d
(H

IG
H

)
2

3
N

/A
8
1
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
5

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
e
w

le
is

u
re

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
d
ir
e
c
tl
y

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

(H
IG

H
)

1
3

8
8

N
/A

8
1
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
6

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
e
w

le
is

u
re

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
e
n
a
b
le

d
b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

(H
IG

H
)

4
3
4

N
/A

3
1
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
7

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

w
o
rk

e
d

w
it
h
 t
o

p
ro

m
o
te

h
e
a
lt
h

a
n
d

s
o
c
ia

l
in

c
lu

s
io

n
(H

IG
H

)
5
5

2
4
6

N
/A

1
4
3
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
8

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

re
fe

rr
e
d

b
y

G
P

 t
o

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
c
ti
vi

ty
s
c
h
e
m

e
(H

IG
H

)
5
0

1
8
5

N
/A

1
8
6
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
9

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

u
n
d
e
r

1
6

ye
a
r

o
ld

s
a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
s
w

im
m

in
g

le
s
s
o
n
s

(H
IG

H
)

1
0
5
0
0

1
2
5
0
0

N
/A

1
2
3
8
7
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
1
0

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
ve

n
ts

s
ta

g
e
d

a
t
N

o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

A
ir
fi
e
ld

(H
IG

H
)

1
4
0

1
0
9

N
/A

7
5
.0

0
R

E
D

L
P

I
L
1
1

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
e
w

le
is

u
re

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s

fo
r

1
3
-1

9
ye

a
r

o
ld

s
e
n
a
b
le

d
o
r

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

(H
IG

H
)

1
5

2
8

N
/A

3
0
.0

0
G

R
E

E
N

L
P

I
L
1
2

L
e
is

u
re

c
e
n
tr

e
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

(H
IG

H
)

8
0
.0

0
%

8
1
.7

4
%

N
/A

9
4
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(a

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

is
s
u
e
d

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t
o

o
n
-s

tr
e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g

(N
/A

)
N

/A
1
3
,1

0
2

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(b

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

is
s
u
e
d

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t
o

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g

(N
/A

)
N

/A
9
,3

5
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(c

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

s
u
b
je

c
t
o
f

a
n

in
fo

rm
a
l
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

(N
/A

)
N

/A
3
,6

4
3
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(d

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

s
u
b
je

c
t
o
f

a
fo

rm
a
l
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(N
/A

)
N

/A
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

C
iv

il
E

n
g

in
e
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

Page 25



K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(e

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

s
u
b
je

c
t
o
f

a
fo

rm
a
l
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

P
a
rk

in
g

A
d
ju

d
ic

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

(N
/A

)
N

/A
2
3
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I
C

E
M

1
(f

)*
T

h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

a
llo

w
e
d

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
is

s
u
e

o
f

a
P

e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e

(N
/A

)
N

/A
2
,8

5
2
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

K
P

I 
L

P
I

C
E

M
1
(g

)*

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

is
s
u
e
d

w
h
e
re

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

w
a
s

o
b
ta

in
e
d

(N
/A

)
N

/A
1
5
,9

6
6
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

P
I
(A

N
D

K
P

I)
R

E
F

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
D

E
F

IN
IT

IO
N

A
N

D
P

O
L

A
R

IT
Y

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

(G
O

O
D

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

IS
A

N
O

U
T

T
U

R
N

H
IG

H
E

R
O

R
 L

O
W

E
R

T
H

A
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

)

T
A

R
G

E
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

O
P

Q
U

A
R

T
IL

E
?

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

2
0
0
5
/0

6

T
R

A
F

F
IC

L
IG

H
T

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
h
e
re

w
e
re

n
o

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r 
th

is
P

o
rt

fo
lio

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,
M

e
d

ia
, 
IC

T
a
n

d
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

T
h
e
re

w
e
re

n
o

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r 
th

is
P

o
rt

fo
lio

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

L
e
a
d

e
r'

s
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

*
T

h
e
s
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
a
re

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r

d
e
le

tio
n
 f
ro

m
2
0
0
7
/0

8

Page 26



Report to: Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2007

Portfolio: Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services

Subject: Value For Money Analysis 2005/06 – Value For Money Sub-Group

Officer contact for further information: S. Tautz (Ext 4180)

Committee Secretary: A. Hendry (Ext 4246)

Recommendations:

That the recommendations of the Value For Money Sub-Group established by the
Scrutiny Panel to undertake detailed consideration of the Council’s Value For
Money analysis for 2005/06, be endorsed.

Report:

Background

1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) As members will be
aware, at its meeting on 14 November 2006 the Scrutiny Panel agreed that a Sub-Group
comprising Councillors Hart, Jacobs and J. M. Whitehouse be established to consider in
detail the Value For Money (VFM) analysis produced for 2005/06.

2. At that meeting, members were advised of the importance of the Council having
information on its costs, knowing how these compared to other organisations, and how they
related to the quality of it’s services and were linked with performance and the Council's
overall objectives, and that these issues were central themes of the Audit Commission’s
annual VFM assessment. The VFM analysis had therefore been developed as part of an on-
going process to better understand the Council’s unit costs for services.

3. The Sub-Group met on 8 March 2007, supported by the Head of Housing Services
and the Head of Human Resources and Performance Management, and considered the VFM
analysis in detail. At that time, members thoroughly reviewed the cost and performance
information available for each service area, and identified that some service areas were able
to provide comprehensive information on costs, whilst the level of detail available for other
services was more limited. For each service area, the Sub-Group considered whether, based
on the results of the VFM analysis, further information was required from the respective Head
of Service or whether a more detailed ‘service review’ type of analysis should be undertaken
through a member level task and finish panel.

4. In order not to delay the progress of actions arising from the Sub-Group’s
consideration of the VFM analysis, its recommendations were implemented without further
recourse to the Scrutiny Panel. The Sub-Group recommended as follows:

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



(a) That a report be made to the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny
Panel with regard to the achievement of VFM within Leisure Services, following
the first year of operation of the leisure management contract with SLM Limited;
and

(b) That the establishment of a task and finish panel be proposed for 2007/08, to
consider in detail the provision of VFM within the Council’s Development Control
function.

5. A report of the Head of Leisure Services on the achievement of VFM following the first
year of operation of the external leisure management contract, is to be found elsewhere on
this agenda for this meeting of the Scrutiny Panel. A bid for the establishment of a Task and
Finish Panel to consider the provision of VFM within Development Control was agreed by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 5 April 2007, and terms of reference and membership
for the task and finish panel were due to be established by the Committee at its meeting on
14 June 2007.

6. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to endorse the recommendations of the Sub-Group.

Reason for decision:

7. To enable the Council to demonstrate its commitment the achievement VFM in its
services, and to further embed a VFM culture across the authority.

Options Considered and Rejected:

8. None. The establishment of the VFM Sub-Group was agreed by the Scrutiny Panel as
a means of progressing the achievement of VFM in priority service areas

Consultation Undertaken:

9. All Heads of Service contributed to the development and content of the VFM analysis
for 2005/06.

Resource implications:

Budget Provision: None
Personnel: None
Land: Nil
Council Plan/BVPP Reference: Council Plan Section 8 – ‘How We Measure Our

Achievements’.
Relevant Statutory Powers: Local Government Act 1999
Background Papers: None
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: Nil

Page 28



Finance & Performance Management 
Scrutiny Panel 
 
 
Date of meeting: 19th June 2007 
 
Portfolio:  Leisure and Young People  
 
Subject:   Value for Money/Leisure Management Externalization  
 
Officer contact for further information:  Derek Macnab          (Ext: 4261)   
Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry                                       (Ext: 4246)  
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel consider the Value for 
Money considerations of the Leisure Management Contract and comment accordingly. 
 
 
Background 
 
1. At the meeting of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 28th March 
2002, a Report was considered outlining progress on implementing the Audit Commissions 
Best Value Inspectors Recommendations, arising from the Best Value Review of Leisure 
Management.  One of the most fundamental conclusions of the Inspection was that the test 
of “Competition” had not been fully met.  To this end, the Group asked to receive a 
presentation on the feasibility of the establishment of a Not For Profit Trust, to manage the 
Council’s Leisure Centres and Swimming Pools. 
 
2. However, as part of the Council’s budget process for 2002/03, the then Executive 
Committee requested that wider options be considered as part of a more fundamental review 
of the Council’s future role in the provision of Leisure Services. This matter was subsequently 
delegated to Policy Working Group One, who initially met in July 2002, to initiate the review 
process.  
 
3. The Policy Working Group received a presentation from Leonie Cowen of Leonie 
Cowen Associates, a procurement expert, on the feasibility and implications of Alternative 
Management.  Following the presentation, the Working Group determined that there 
appeared to be a number of Alternative Management Options, including Direct Management, 
Private Sector Contractor or the establishment of an In-House or External Trust. 
 
4. During November, 2002 members of the Policy Working Group visited Maldon District 
Council and met with the private sector contractor who managed the Council’s major facility 
at Blackwater Leisure Centre.  Additionally, they visited Thurrock Council, who had elected to 
transfer the management of their Leisure Centres to an In-House Community Trust.  Finally, 
the Members received a presentation by Greenwich Leisure Limited (one of the largest 
Leisure Trusts) on external Trust Management. 
 
5. Policy Working Group Members considered the relative merits of each of the types of 
future Management Options and concluded that their preferred Option was to seek 
expressions of interest from “External Partners” who could either be a “Private Sector” 
Company or “External Trust”. 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



 
 
The Council’s Aims and Objectives 
  
6. From the outset, the Policy Working Group were keen to ensure that the Council 
secured maximum Value for Money. To this end they determined a number of Key Objectives 
to be achieved, through any move to Alternative Management.  
 

 
i) To manage the Council’s Facilities by the most cost effective means 

possible, therefore reducing the level of revenue support necessary; 
 

ii) To alleviate the financial risks to the Council and in particular to release the 
Council from the threat of punitive VAT penalties, deriving from exempt 
income; 

 
iii) To invest in facilities, not only to ensure that their internal fabric is 

maintained to the current standards, but that capital refurbishments and 
new facilities are provided where possible; and  

 
iv) To retain the accessibility, quality and diversity of leisure opportunities 

provided and to seek continuous improvement to the Service.  
 

7. In order to secure these Objectives and safeguard the Council’s assets, a set of 
Contract Documents i.e., Invitation to Tender, Conditions of Contract and Specification of 
Works, were developed.  These clearly set out the core expectations and the minimum 
standards that any future Management Partner must achieve.  This was necessary to enable 
the Council to evaluate any Tender Bids in a consistent manner.  The Contract 
Documentation was also important to assist in performance monitoring the future delivery of 
the Service. 
 
Contract Strategy 
 
8. The Key Features of the overall Contract Strategy, developed by Members of the Ad 
Hoc Policy Working Group, were as follows: 
 

• That a Hybrid Contract would strike the correct balance between encouraging 
innovation and safeguarding the Council’s position in the event of Non 
Performance. 

 
• That the Contract Strategy for the Tender of the Centres be based on one 

package of Four Centres, omitting Waltham Abbey Sports Centre. (Due to the 
type and level of use and the Dual Use Agreement with King Harold Secondary 
School, expiring in 2007) 

 
• That there is a recognised link between the length of Contract Period and Levels 

of Investment/Management Fee, and therefore proposals be sought from external 
partners based on Contract lengths of a) 15 years, b) 7 years plus possible 3 
years extension; and c) limiting the length of Contract at Epping Sports Centre to 
3 years given the uncertainty at the time of the potential relocation to the St John’s 
School site. 

 
• Contractors were required to state levels of Guaranteed Investment over the 

Contract Period as well as the % level of any income share. 
 

• That a Comparison be developed by the current Management Team, not only to 
meet the requirements of Full Council for a Financial Evaluation which would allow 
the identification of costs to the Council if it elected to retain the Service In-House, 
but also to allow the assessment of the realism of Contractors Financial 

Page 30



Projections. 
 
 
Tender Process  
 
9. On the basis of the above Contract Strategy and Documentation, Adverts were placed 
in the National Leisure Media, seeking Expressions of Interest.   Fourteen Companies 
responded and nine returned the Pre-Tender Questionnaire. 
 
10. From these, a Member Panel short-listed 5 Contractors, who they felt had the best 
blend of experience, financial standing and approach to the future delivery of the Service.  
 
11. Contract Documents were issued to Tenderers on the 10th June 2004.  In the 
intervening period, the Companies made several site visits to the Council’s Leisure Centres.  
In addition, a Meeting was held with the Officer Project Team, to afford Tenderers an 
opportunity to seek clarification on any points regarding the Conditions of Contract, 
Specification or Form of Tender. 
 
12. However, in late July, two of the short listed Contractors, Greenwich Leisure Ltd., and 
D. C. Leisure notified the Council, that they would not be submitting Tenders.  The reasons 
given at the time was their inability to resource the Tender process and the pursuit of other 
opportunities. Formal Tenders from the remaining three Companies were returned by the due 
date of 20th August 2004, i.e. from Sports and Leisure Management (SLM), Leisure 
Connections and Hertsmere Leisure Ltd.  The Leisure Portfolio Holder opened the Tenders 
on the 23rd August and the Bids were formally recorded. 
 
13. As a result of the responses received, it was apparent to the Council that there were a 
number of omissions in all three Tenders. The Contractors therefore sought the opportunity 
to make adjustments to their Tenders.  In an attempt to ensure that the Final Evaluation was 
undertaken on the most complete information and although an exemption to Standing Orders 
would be required, (in the event of a Contract being awarded), all Tenderers were given a 
further opportunity to amend their Bids by the 26th October 2004.  It is these figures, which 
formed the basis of the Financial Evaluation undertaken by the Head of Finance. 
 
14. The Final Stage of the Tender Process, was the formal Member Interviews held on 
the 3rd November 2004. Each Contractor was invited to give a presentation on how they 
could deliver the Council’s Key Objectives, demonstrating what Added Value they could bring 
to Service Delivery.  After the Presentation Members asked a series of questions around the 
main considerations of the Tender.  
 
Evaluation Methodology and Criteria  

15. Contractors were invited to submit a number of key pieces of information as part of 
their Tender.  These ranged from Financial Projections and Method Statements to copies of 
Company Policies, Bonds and Guarantees.  These formed the main qualitative criteria for the 
Evaluation.  In addition, feedback from Site Visits and the result of the Member Interviews 
was also included. Members of the Multi-Disciplinary Officer Project Team, were also tasked 
with undertaking a technical evaluation, of the elements of the Tender within their area of 
professional expertise.        
 
16. A Maximum Score was established for each for the main sections within the Contract 
i.e. Objectives and Overall Contract, Finance, Resourcing and Staffing Issues, Operating the 
Contract, Quality of Service, Health and Safety, Marketing and Asset Management. The 
maximum total that could possibly be achieved being 1000 points.  Each company’s score 
was then calculated as a proportion of each areas potential maximum and totalled.  The 
Company with the highest total score being assessed as offering the most compliant Tender 
with the highest level of Quality. 
 

Page 31



17. Amongst the Council’s Key Objectives with respect to Alternative Management, was a 
desire to reduce the level of revenue support necessary in the future.  As such, Tenderers 
were also asked to submit projections of their Total Expenditure, Principal Income and thus 
the level of Management Fee required from the Council over the Contract Period. In the 
event, the financial evaluation concluded that the Preferred Contractor, SLM would deliver in 
the region of £1.1million of revenue savings over the 7-year term of the Contract against the 
prevailing In House Management Cost Projections. 
 
18. In addition the Contractors were asked to declare any Guaranteed Investment over  
the period and if income exceeded their Principle Income Projections, the % level of 
Income Share that would be returned to the Council. 
 
19. As previously agreed by Members the outcome of the Evaluation was then geared on 
a ratio of 40% Quality and 60% Price (Management Fee).    
 

Investment Proposals 
 
20. One of the Key Objectives sought within the Alternative Management process, was to 
retain the quality of the Council’s Assets and to seek Capital Investment in New Facilities and 
Services.  As such, each Contractor was asked to submit proposals and to guarantee the 
level of investment over the respective Contract Periods. 
 
21. SLM proposed a range of improvements and indicated that the investment will be 
made irrespective of the Contract Period. In the first year they committed to provide 
£916,000, in addition to the Council’s contribution to provide a 2 Storey Fitness Suite and 
Movement Studio at Ongar Leisure Centre.  In addition to the Health and Fitness Facilities, 
SLM also proposed a refurbishment of the Swimming Pool Changing Areas. 
 
22. At Waltham Abbey Swimming Pool SLM, again in year one, committed to invest 
£372,000 in extending the Fitness Suite and providing new internal access.  Due to the age 
of the New Loughton Leisure Centre and the uncertainty of the future of Epping Sports 
Centre, SLM’s investment was limited to IT improvements at a guaranteed cost of £25,000 
and £20,000 respectively.  Overall, SLM offered the highest level of guaranteed  investment. 
 
Building Maintenance  
 
23. In order to safeguard the Council’s Assets, it was decided that any incoming 
Contractor would be awarded a Lease, which required them to accept a range of 
responsibilities for Repair and Maintenance.  The Cabinet also agreed that the Council would 
retain responsibility for the main structure of the Leisure Facilities e.g. roofs, external walls 
etc., and also for car parks and grounds maintenance.  This would retain greater control of 
any future major repair costs, reduce risk to the Contractor and ultimately management fee 
levels.  
 
24. The Contractor therefore is responsible for the maintenance of plant and equipment 
as well as day-to-day routine maintenance, planned programmes of work and the 
refurbishment/alteration of internal areas.  The Council as part of the Tender Documentation, 
provided a comprehensive survey of the current condition of the Council’s Buildings and a 
detailed assessment of future repair and maintenance liabilities.   
 
Income Share  
 
25. In the event that Contractors either performed above their expectations or benefited 
from some form of windfall, the Contract allows for a share of income to be returned to the 
Council.  As part of the Tender process, Contractors were given the opportunity to state the 
% level of income share above their declared Principal Income Levels. 
 
26. Leisure Connections did not offered any Income Share whilst SLM proposed 30% and 

Page 32



Hertsmere 20%. Examination of the Income Projections from SLM showed that they 
anticipate significant increases on both Fitness and Swimming.  They claimed these could be 
achieved through marketing, promotion and investment in upgraded facilities. 
 
 
Tender Evaluation Conclusions and analysis of Risk  
 
27. With respect to the Overall Evaluation of the Bids, based on Quality and Price for the 
15-year option the most advantageous Tender was submitted by Hertsmere Leisure.  
However, on the 7-year option there was no significant difference in terms of the scoring 
between Hertsmere and SLM. 
 
28. As the Council had been seeking a “Partner” to manage and develop the Service in 
the future, to an extent they were not compelled to award the Contract to the Lowest 
Tenderer, but rather to choose the Company they felt could best meet the Objectives of the 
Alternative Management process, expose the Council to the Lowest level of Risk and 
maximise Value for Money. 
 
29. On this basis the Council appointed SLM as their Preferred Contractor subject to final 
negotiations on the specific terms of the Contract.  These were concluded satisfactorily and 
SLM were appointed for a 7-year Contract Period (3 years at Epping sports Centre), with a 
Contract Commencement date of 3rd January 2006. 
 
The overall Experience to Date 
 
30. A significant amount of joint planning took place in late 2005 which resulted in a 
smooth transition at the commencement of the Contract, with minimal disturbance to the 
Service, Users and Staff who TUPE Transferred. 
 
31. The Contract is practically monitored on a day-to-day basis by a Client Officer, who 
undertakes Site Inspections etc.  In addition, a monthly “Core” Meeting is held with the SLM 
Contract Manager and Key EFDC Staff from Leisure, Finance and Building Maintenance.  
Finally, the Council has appointed five Members to sit on the “Contract Monitoring Board” 
which has successfully met on three occasions. 
 
32. The Contractors Performance is monitored against the Key Performance Indicators, 
both quantitative and financial within the Contract. (Attached at Appendix 1 is a note of how 
the Performance Indicators are practically monitored) To date the Contract is operating well 
with only one Default Notice issued, with respect to water quality monitoring.     
 
In Summary  
 
33. Overall, the Council’s Key Objectives have been met and Value for Money achieved, 
in the following ways: 
 
1. Revenue Savings anticipated to be in the region of £1.1million over the Contract 

Period are being achieved.  Income Share in second year of Contract anticipated, 
with an estimate of £50,000 included in the CSB. 

 
2. In addition to the £1.1 million of operational savings achieved, over the Contract 

Period CSB Savings of £180,000 p.a. have also been delivered through reduction of 
support service costs. (£66,000, p.a.  Leisure Admin and  £114,000p.a. others, Legal, 
Finance, Human Resources etc).  

 
3. The Financial Risk has been transferred to SLM, particularly with respect to 

underachievement of Income.  Fee and Charge increases have remained in line with 
inflation, with many discounted promotions.  

 
4. The Council no longer has any problems with respect to its exempt income levels and 

Page 33



the threat of additional VAT payments. 
 
5. In the first year of the Contract £1.3m of additional external investment in new 

facilities has been achieved, which has improved the Quality and Range of the 
Service. 

 
6. High standards of customer satisfaction have been maintained, with no Stage 2 

Complaints from the Public received to date.  
 
7. Quality Standards have been maintained with the retention of Chartermark and Quest 

Quality Assurance Accreditation achieved.  
 
8. Participation has increased, particularly with respect to young people learning to swim 

and the number of people participating in Health and Exercise Initiatives. 
 
9. The Council’s assets have been improved by the Capital Investment and the buildings 

are being satisfactorily maintained.   
 
10. Contract Compliance has been good, with only one Default Notice (in relation to a 

water test log failing) issued and seven improvement Notices issued, primarily in 
relation to speed of response to routine building maintenance and servicing of plant.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1  
 
 

 
VALUE FOR MONEY - MONITORING REGIME 

_______________________________________________________ 
 
 

There were Seven KPI’s listed as part of the requirements of the Contract. 
 

1. Facility Management 
2. Human Resources Management 
3. Health and Safety 
4. Asset Management 
5. Financial Accounting, Audit and Management 
6. Activity Base 

 
The CORE meeting is held once a month and attended by both SLM and EFDC Officers.  Minutes 
are taken and are available for viewing.  Copies of these Minutes are also sent to the Head of 
Leisure Services, Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Chief Executive and Audit Section. 
 
There is also a Monitoring Board which convenes once a quarter and consists of Members where 
items are reported by SLM and Council Officers.  These are Minuted by an Officer from Leisure 
Services and also distributed to the Chief Executive and Audit. 
 
MONITORING OF KPI’S 
 
1.  FACILITY MANAGEMENT 
 

Open Hours Programme: 
Any changes have to be discussed with the Council and permission given by the Council before 
Implementation. 
 
Usage: 

Participation figures are collated from source data by the Client Monitoring Officer.  These 
are presented, in table format, comparing previous data to present, at both the CORE and 
Monitoring Board Meeting. 
 
Marketing and Advertising: 
All proposals must be discussed with the Leisure Marketing and Events Manager for 
approval before implementation.  These are also discussed at the CORE Meeting. 
 
Consultation and Commitment: 
Any consultation initiatives are discussed at the CORE Meeting.  This also enables joint 
projects between SLM and the Council to be undertaken. 
 

2.  HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 
This is a standard item at the CORE Meeting so that any changes are highlighted and 
commented on and action taken, if needed, to ensure the contract requirements are covered. 

  
 
 

Page 35



3.  HEALTH AND SAFETY 
      
      Monthly/Quarterly visits are made to the facilities to spot-check the operation.   
      Feedback on the findings are made to the Contractor and also fed back to the  
      CORE Meeting and Monitoring Board.  Corrective action is taken where required. 
 
 
4.  ASSET MANAGEMENT  
 

The Client Monitoring Officer will visit the facilities once a month to monitor the operation and its 
affect on the asset e.g. cleanliness, access, etc.  He will report back on the day and at the CORE 
meeting on findings, to ensure items are rectified.   
 
The Building Maintenance Officer visits every 2 months to review the planned and unplanned 
maintenance being undertaken.  He will attend the CORE Meeting and report back on findings 
and required rectification or attention to any issues. 

 
5.  FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING 
 
     SLM provide the Council with the income figures on the 22nd Month for the previous 
     month.  This data is collated and put on a table, which again compares previous 
     to present.  The first 15 months figures show an increase in income due to the    
     investment  SLM have made in the facilities.  Financial information reporting is part   
     of both the CORE and Monitoring Board Agenda. 
 
     The first end of year figure audit has not yet been completed as it was agreed by 
     both parties that the “1st year” would be 15 months covering 4th January 2006 to 
     31st  March 2007.   
 
6.  MONITORING OF PERFORMANCE  
 

This ensures that the Leisure Objectives of the Service agree to the Contract.  It also gives rise to 
new initiatives and promotions to ensure increased community use, reaching specific groups such 
as the elderly, young, disabled etc and furthering partnership issues. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Report to the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 19 June 2007 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and 
Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject:  Gershon Efficiency Savings 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Bob Palmer (01992 - 56 4279) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Adrian Hendry (01992 - 56 4246) 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
To note the contents of the report and consider the efficiencies proposed for 
inclusion in the backward–looking Annual Efficiency Statement for 2006/07 to be 
submitted to the Department for Communities and Local Government on 5 July 2007. 

 
Report 
 
Background 
 
1. As part of the 2004 Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) the Government 
published a report entitled “Releasing Resources to the Front Line”. This report was written 
by Sir Peter Gershon and led to a target of 2.5% per annum efficiency gains for local 
government to deliver £6.45bn of gains by 2007/08. 

  
2. Every local authority is required to submit a forward looking efficiency statement in 
April, which covers the gains anticipated for the financial year that has just commenced, 
followed by a backward looking statement in July, which covers the gains achieved in the 
financial year that has just finished. To date forward looking statements have been submitted 
for 2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08, and backward looking statements for 2004/05 and 
2005/06. Guidance issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) requires that backward looking data is subject to Member scrutiny, hence this report 
on the financial data that will form the basis for the 2006/07 backward look.  
 
Definition of Efficiency 
 
3. From the start of the process the guidance notes have stressed that the initiative is 
about increasing productivity and improving value for money, it was not aimed simply at 
cutting budgets. Volumes of guidance have been issued on techniques for measurement, 
quality cross checks and other key issues. Although some of the guidance has been late and 
unclear and Members may recall that this led to the extending of the reporting deadline last 
year. 

 
4. An efficiency gain is made when, for a given area of activity, an organisation is able 
to: 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 37



 
•  Reduce inputs for the same outputs (representing a cashable gain; i.e. money is 

released that can be used elsewhere); 
•  Reduce prices for the same outputs (representing a cashable gain); 
•  Get greater outputs or improved quality from the same inputs (representing a 

non-cashable gain; i.e. money is not released); or 
•  Get greater outputs or improved quality in return for a proportionately smaller 

increase in resources (representing a non-cashable gain). 
  

5. Some types of activity are specifically excluded, as whilst they may reduce overall 
costs they do not improve efficiency: 

 
•  Re-labelling of activity (e.g. reclassifying inspection as advice); 
•  Cuts that result in poorer services for the public; or 
•  Increasing income simply by raising fees and charges. 
 

Measurement of Efficiency Gains 
 

6. The 2.5% per annum efficiency gain that local authorities are required to achieve is 
calculated from a 2004/05 net expenditure baseline. This means that by the end of the CSR 
period in 2007/08 efficiency gains equivalent to 7.5% of the 2004/05 baselines should be 
achieved. 
 
7. At least half of the gains achieved must be cashable and the funds released can be 
used for other priority services or minimising increases in the Council Tax. So when looking 
at gains it must be remembered that they are measured against 2004/05 and may be non-
cashable and so they will not necessarily equate to a reduction in  continuing service 
budgets (CSB) for the period being considered. 
 
8. The efficiency targets were initially calculated on predicted spending in 2004/05 but 
were later amended to reflect the actual outturn. As the combined revenue and capital 
outturn reduced to £16.4m from an estimated £17.7m, it can be seen in the table below that 
the targets for the later years were reduced. 
 
 Annual Target 

 
Total Gain on 

2004/05 Baseline 
Annual Cashable 

Target 
Total Cashable 

Gain on 2004/05 
2005/06 £0.44m £0.44m £0.22m £0.22m 
2006/07 £0.38m £0.82m £0.19m £0.41m 
2007/08 £0.41m £1.23m £0.21m £0.62m 
  
9. In recognition of the fact that local authorities have been achieving efficiency gains 
over a number of years in advance of the new requirement a concession was made that 
allowed efficiency gains achieved in 2004/05 to be included in the process. The table below 
summarises the gains achieved to date and shows that with one year of the process still to 
go the target has already been exceeded by nearly £2m. 

 
 Annual Efficiency Gains Cumulative Efficiency Gains 
2004/05 – claimed £0.29m £0.29m 
2005/06 – claimed £1.17m £1.46m 
2006/07 - proposed £1.76m £3.22m 

 
Backward-Look 2006/07 
 

Page 38



10.     In compiling the backward-look for 2006/07 Heads of Service were asked to re-visit 
their earlier efficiency statements to re-consider the contents and investigate any possible 
additional efficiencies. This process produced efficiencies totalling £1,756,973 that bring the 
cumulative figure to £3,215,496, as detailed in Appendix 1. 
 
11. Members may now be familiar with the headings under which the efficiencies are 
analysed, as even though it is an unusual format the DCLG have not changed it since the 
process began. Brief comments on the main efficiencies under each heading are given 
below: 
 

a. Culture & Sport/Corporate Services – the gains of £66,000 and £114,000 
respectively are the savings in support services following the externalisation 
of the management of the Council’s leisure centres. These are cashable 
gains that were reflected in CSB reductions in 2006/07.  

b. Environmental Services – the gain of £209,591 has arisen from improved 
performance for street sweeping. This is a reduction on the gain of £426,653 
calculated for 2005/06 as even though performance has continued to improve 
there has also been considerable additional expenditure under the transitional 
arrangements for the management of waste and street sweeping. This is a 
non-cashable gain. 

c. Social Housing/Homelessness – there are no significant new items in these 
figures, they reflect ongoing gains from improvements initiated in earlier 
periods. The gains are a mixture of cashable and non-cashable efficiencies. 

d. Procurement – similarly to c above the gains shown are mostly ongoing 
items. A number of initiatives on procurement have been developed and the 
efficiencies from these will be reflected in the backward looking statement for 
2007/08. The gains from procurement are mostly cashable.  

e. Transactions – efficiencies have again been generated by improving 
collection rates for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates and improving 
processing times for benefit claims. Gains have been included for 
improvements in these areas in each of the backward looking statements, 
these are mostly non-cashable.  

f. Miscellaneous – the efficiencies under this heading arise primarily from 
interest earnings on the disposal proceeds of surplus assets. These were 
boosted in 2006/07 by the disposal of the Parade Ground site. These gains 
are cashable. 

 
12. If Members are satisfied with the amount and spread of the efficiencies the official 
return will be completed on this basis and submitted before the deadline of 5 July. The final 
version of the document has to be approved by the Head of Finance, the Chief Executive 
and the Leader prior to submission to the DCLG. 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1

B
a
c
k
w

a
rd

-L
o

o
k
in

g
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
fo

r
2
0
0
6
/0

7

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
u
lt
u
re

E
n
v
ir

o
n
.

S
o
c
ia

l
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s

M
is

c
.

T
o
ta

l

&
S

p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
im

e

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

E
n
v
ir

o
n
.

2
0
9
,5

9
1

2
0
9
,5

9
1

E
s
ta

te
s

5
7
7
,8

2
2

5
7
7
,8

2
2

F
in

a
n
c
e

2
0
2
,2

0
0

1
6
3
,7

2
0

3
6
5
,9

2
0

H
o
u
s
in

g
8
0
,7

4
0

1
0
3
,8

2
9

1
0
4
,9

0
1

4
7
,7

7
4

2
3
,2

4
8

3
6
0
,4

9
2

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
1
,0

0
0

2
1
,0

0
0

L
e
is

u
re

6
6
,0

0
0

6
6
,0

0
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
9
,0

0
0

6
,5

0
0

7
0
0

1
6
,2

0
0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

6
0
,9

4
8

6
0
,9

4
8

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

7
9
,0

0
0

7
9
,0

0
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
1
4
,0

0
0

1
1
,9

4
4

1
2
5
,9

4
4

7
5
,0

0
0

2
0
9
,5

9
1

8
0
,7

4
0

1
0
3
,8

2
9

1
9
3
,0

0
0

4
0
7
,4

9
3

4
7
,7

7
4

1
8
6
,9

6
8

5
7
8
,5

2
2

1
,7

5
6
,9

7
3

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
u
lt
u
re

E
n
v
ir

o
n
.

S
o
c
ia

l
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s

M
is

c
.

T
o
ta

l

&
S

p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
im

e

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

E
n
v
ir

o
n
.

6
3
6
,2

4
4

6
3
6
,2

4
4

E
s
ta

te
s

8
0
2
,9

1
2

8
0
2
,9

1
2

F
in

a
n
c
e

3
9
9
,4

0
0

3
1
1
,0

2
3

7
1
0
,4

2
3

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
4
5
,2

7
6

1
7
9
,5

5
1

1
2
8
,8

5
1

1
2
8
,6

2
2

4
6
,4

9
6

6
2
8
,7

9
6

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

6
4
,0

0
0

6
4
,0

0
0

L
e
is

u
re

6
6
,0

0
0

6
6
,0

0
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
1
3
,8

2
5

1
2
,0

0
0

1
,4

0
0

2
7
,2

2
5

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

1
2
1
,8

9
6

1
2
1
,8

9
6

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
5
8
,0

0
0

1
5
8
,0

0
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
1
4
,0

0
0

1
5
,4

8
5

1
2
9
,4

8
5

7
9
,8

2
5

6
3
6
,2

4
4

1
4
5
,2

7
6

1
7
9
,5

5
1

2
7
2
,0

0
0

7
4
1
,6

3
2

1
2
8
,6

2
2

3
5
7
,5

1
9

8
0
4
,3

1
2

3
,2

1
5
,4

9
6

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

B
a
c
k
w

a
rd

-L
o

o
k
in

g
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
fo

r
2
0
0
6
/0

7

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Finance and Performance
Management Scrutiny Panel

Date of Meeting: 19 June 2007

Portfolio: Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services

Subject: Council Plan 2006-2010, Local Area Agreement and Comprehensive Performance

Assessment Improvement Plan – Performance Monitoring

Officer contact for further information: S. Tautz (Ext 4180)

Committee Secretary: A. Hendry (Ext 4246)

Recommendations:

That the Scrutiny Panel consider performance against objectives, targets and
actions contained in the Council Plan for 2006 to 2010, the Local Area Agreement
for Essex and the Comprehensive Performance Assessment Improvement Plan.

Report:

Background

1. (Head of Human Resources and Performance Management) Over the course of the
last year, the Scrutiny Panel has received reports in connection with the adoption or review of
the following corporate plans and strategies:

• the Council Plan for 2006 to 2010;

• the Comprehensive Performance Assessment Improvement Plan; and

• the Local Area Agreement for Essex.

2. As members will be aware, each of these important documents contains a range of
priorities, objectives, actions and targets to be achieved over the short to medium-term. The
Cabinet has previously agreed that progress towards the achievement of the actions and
targets within each document be monitored by the Scrutiny Panel, in line with its other
performance management and monitoring responsibilities.

3. Given its high-level nature, it has previously been agreed that performance towards
the achievement of objectives and targets contained in the Council Plan be monitored on an
annual basis. The Council Plan was adopted in April 2006 and was therefore due for its first
review at the end of March 2007. In view of the countywide importance of the Council’s
contribution to the success of the Local Area Agreement (LAA) for Essex, performance
against the LAA actions and targets adopted by the authority are subject of quarterly report to
the Scrutiny Panel, alongside performance reporting on the small number of actions
remaining outstanding from the improvement plan arising from the Council’s first
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) in 2004.

4. A schedule setting out current progress towards the achievement of the thematic
objectives and targets contained in the Council Plan is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

Agenda Item 10

Page 43



Performance against the various LAA priorities and targets adopted by the Council is set out
within Appendix 2 to the report, and progress towards the completion of the outstanding
actions from the CPA Improvement Plan is detailed in Appendix 3. Relevant Heads of
Service will be in attendance at the meeting to respond to any questions raised in respect of
current performance against specific actions and targets.

5. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to note current performance towards the
achievement of objectives, targets and actions contained in the Council Plan for 2006 to
2010, the Council’s contribution to the Essex LAA and the CPA Improvement Plan. Relevant
Heads of Service will be in attendance at the meeting to respond to members’ questions in
respect of current performance against specific actions and targets.

Reason for Decision:

6. To ensure that the Council monitors progress and reports against the achievement of
corporate priorities, countywide objectives, and improvement in those areas identified by the
CPA and other improvement processes.

Options Considered and Rejected:

7. None. Arrangements for monitoring progress against priorities, objectives, and
improvement have been agreed by the Cabinet and mirror those for the Council’s adopted
Key Performance Indicators.

Consultation Undertaken:

8. Current performance against the objectives, targets and actions contained in the
Council Plan, the LAA and the CPA Improvement Plan have been reported by each
appropriate Head of Service.

Resource Implications:

Budget/Personnel/Land: The respective Head of Service will identify the resource

requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of current under-
performance set out in future performance reports
Council Plan/BVPP Reference: Council Plan Section 8 – ‘How We Measure Our
Achievements’.
Relevant Statutory Powers: None
Background Papers: None
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: As set out in

respective performance reports for individual targets and actions
Key Decision Reference: (if required) None

Page 44



1

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
L

A
N

2
0
0
6
-2

0
1
0

–
A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

R
E

P
O

R
T

–
3
1

M
A

R
C

H
2
0
0
7

R
E

F
O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

A
N

D
K

E
Y

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 I

N
D

IC
A

T
O

R

(K
P

I)
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
M

E
M

B
E

R
/L

E
A

D
O

F
F

IC
E

R
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
(S

)
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

T
A

R
G

E
T

/M
E

A
S

U
R

E

G
R

E
E

N
A

N
D

U
N

IQ
U

E

(a
)

A
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
s

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

fo
r 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
in

th
e

fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g
la

n
d

R
e
g

io
n

a
l
P

la
n

fr
o
m

1
1
,0

0
0
;

(a
)

T
o

m
a
k
e

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
s

to
th

e

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

-i
n

-P
u

b
lic

o
f 

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
,
in

re
la

ti
o
n

to
 t
h

e
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

le
v
e
l
o
f

fu
tu

re
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t;

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

s
p

e
c
ia

l

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r
o
f

th
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
b

y
a

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
s

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,

a
n

d
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

a
llo

c
a
te

d
to

k
e

y
w

o
rk

e
rs

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

th
e

e
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

re
g
io

n
.

(b
)

A
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
k
e
y

w
o
rk

e
r

h
o
m

e
s

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r 

th
e

re
g

io
n

in
th

e
fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

R
e
g
io

n
a
l
P

la
n

fr
o
m

7
6

0
to

5
0

0
p

e
r

a
n

n
u

m
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

to
m

a
k
e

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
s

o
n

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g
la

n
d

P
la

n
a
n

d
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

h
o
m

e
s

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
is

n
o
w

a
ro

u
n
d

7
,0

0
0

.
T

h
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n

g
la

n
d

P
la

n
h

a
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

th
e

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

s
ta

g
e

a
n

d
th

e
fi
n

a
l
p
la

n
s
h

o
u
ld

b
e

is
s
u

e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

s
u

m
m

e
r

2
0

0
7

.

W
h
e
n

m
e
m

b
e
rs

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
th

e
o
ri

g
in

a
l
d
ra

ft
E

a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
,
th

e
y

a
g

re
e
d
 t

o
in

c
lu

d
e

in
 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
re

s
p

o
n
s
e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
a
b

o
u
t
th

e
p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

h
ig

h
le

v
e
l
o
f

n
e
e
d

fo
r

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

fo
r

k
e
y

w
o
rk

e
rs

,
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
a
n

a
p
p

a
re

n
t

la
c
k

o
f

d
e
m

a
n

d
o
n

th
e

g
ro

u
n

d
.

T
h

e
H

e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

th
e

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

in
P

u
b
lic

(E
iP

)
o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n

g
la

n
d

P
la

n
o
n

b
e
h

a
lf

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

fo
r 

th
e

s
e
s
s
io

n
o
n

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
,

a
n
d

th
is

w
a
s

o
n

e
o
f

th
e

a
re

a
s

c
o
v
e
re

d
.
H

a
v
in

g
h

e
a
rd

th
e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

p
ro

v
id

e
d

a
t
th

e
E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

in
P

u
b
lic

,
th

e
E

iP
P

a
n

e
l
d

id
n

o
t

in
c
lu

d
e

a
ta

rg
e
t

in
it
s

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

th
e

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
,

n
o
r

h
a
s
 t
h

e
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
m

a
d

e
a
n

y
re

fe
re

n
c
e

in
h

e
r

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

to
th

e
d
ra

ft
P

la
n

.

G
U

1
T

o
e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

re
g

io
n

a
l
g

ro
w

th
a
re

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
,

b
y

g
o
o
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
th

e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
d

e
q
u

a
te

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

(b
)

T
o

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n
g

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

w
it
h

a
v
ie

w
 t

o
jo

in
tl
y

p
la

n
n
in

g
th

e
d

e
li
v
e
ry

o
f

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l

h
o
m

e
s

in
th

e
re

g
io

n
,
fo

ll
o
w

in
g

th
e

fi
n

a
l

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
jo

in
t
d

e
li
v
e
ry

v
e
h

ic
le

fo
r

th
e

jo
in

t
p
la

n
n
in

g
o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

in
th

e
E

p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t
D

is
tr

ic
t

a
n

d
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri

n
g

a
re

a
s
.

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

J
o
in

t
D

e
liv

e
ry

V
e
h
ic

le
b

y
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
8

.

Page 45



2

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
h

a
n

g
e
s

to
th

e
E

a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t

a
s
p

e
c
if
ic

lis
t

o
f

b
o
d
ie

s
w

ill
h

a
v
e

to
w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r

to
c
re

a
te

jo
in

t
L

o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

D
o
c
u

m
e
n
ts

fo
r

th
e

g
ro

w
th

o
f

H
a
rl

o
w

.
A

d
e
li
v
e
ry

v
e
h

ic
le

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

w
it
h
in

H
a
rl

o
w

c
a
ll
e
d

‘H
a
rl

o
w

R
e
n

a
is

s
a
n
c
e
,

a
n
d

a
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

th
e

s
p

e
c
if
ic

b
o
d
ie

s
a
lr

e
a
d

y
m

e
e
t

a
t

M
e
m

b
e
r/

C
h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

le
v
e
l.

G
U

2
T

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

le
v
e
ls

o
f

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a
n
d

to
re

d
u
c
e

w
a
s
te

g
ro

w
th

(K
P

I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
8

2
(a

)(
i)
,

B
V

8
2
(a

)(
ii)

,
B

V
8

2
(b

)(
i)
,

B
V

8
2
(b

)(
ii)

).

T
o

fu
ll
y

im
p

le
m

e
n
t 

th
e

w
h

e
e
le

d
b

in
a
n

d
a
lt
e
rn

a
te

w
e
e
k
ly

w
a
s
te

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t;

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t

o
f

s
ta

tu
to

ry
a
n
d

lo
c
a
l

re
c
yc

lin
g

a
n
d

w
a
s
te

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

ta
rg

e
ts

.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
re

c
yc

lin
g

ta
rg

e
t

o
f

4
0
%

b
y

2
0

0
8
/0

9
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
ll

s
ta

g
e
s

o
f

th
e

w
h

e
e
le

d
b

in
s

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.
R

e
c
yc

lin
g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

a
v
e
ra

g
e
d

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
is

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
3

7
%

a
n
d

,
if

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

is
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

,
th

e
4

0
%

ta
rg

e
t

s
e
t
fo

r
2
0

0
8

/0
9

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
a
c
h

ie
v
a
b
le

.
T

h
e
 t

o
ta

l
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
tr

e
a
m

h
a
s

re
m

a
in

e
d

a
lm

o
s
t

s
ta

ti
c

w
h

ic
h
,

w
h
ils

t
n

o
t

m
e
e
ti
n
g

th
e

ta
rg

e
t,

is
g

o
o
d

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
to

a
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l
y
e
a
r

o
n

y
e

a
r

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
f

3
%

.

(a
)

T
o

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
to

th
e

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e

a
re

a
a
n

d
re

-d
is

p
la

y
th

e
lo

w
e
r

g
a
ll
e
ri

e
s

a
t

th
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

M
u
s
e
u

m
;

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

M
u
s
e
u

m
fo

r
p

e
o
p

le
w

it
h

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
,
th

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

n
u
m

b
e
rs

o
f

v
is

it
o
rs

to
th

e
m

u
s
e
u
m

,
a
n

d
g
re

a
te

r
p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

M
u
s
e
u

m
S

e
rv

ic
e

a
n

d
th

e
h

is
to

ry
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

(a
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

m
u
s
e
u

m

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e

a
re

a
to

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

3
0

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

;

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

C
a
p

it
a
l
F

u
n

d
in

g
w

a
s

s
e
c
u
re

d
in

2
0

0
6

/0
7

to
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t,

a
c
c
e
s
s

a
n

d
re

-d
is

p
la

y
w

o
rk

to
g
ro

u
n
d

fl
o
o
r

le
v
e
l
o
f

m
u
s
e
u

m
,

a
n
d

w
o
rk

s
to

 t
h

e
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e

a
re

a
a
n

d
th

e
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e
n
t

o
f

th
e

M
u
s
e
u

m
S

h
o
p

w
e
re

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

W
o
rk

is
c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

u
n

d
e
rw

a
y

o
n

th
e

lo
w

e
r

a
rc

h
a
e

o
lo

g
y

g
a
lle

ry
d
u

e
fo

r
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

in
J
u
n

e
2
0

0
7

.
A

c
c
e
s
s

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

in
c
lu

d
e

n
e
w

lo
w

-l
e
v
e
l
d
is

p
la

y
c
a
s
e
s

fo
r

w
h

e
e
lc

h
a
ir

u
s
e
rs

a
n

d
th

e
re

-t
it
lin

g
o
f

d
is

p
la

y
/i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n

b
o
a
rd

s
a
n

d
u
p
-g

ra
d

e
d

lig
h
ti
n

g
to

a
s
s
is

t
p

e
o
p

le
w

it
h

im
p

a
ir

e
d

v
is

io
n
.

It
is

a
ls

o
p
la

n
n

e
d

to
in

s
ta

ll
a
 t

o
u
c
h
-s

c
re

e
n

d
is

p
la

y
c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
a

p
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h
ic

re
c
o
rd

o
f

s
o
c
ia

l
h
is

to
ry

im
a
g

e
s

a
n

d
o
b

je
c
ts

.
P

re
s
s

a
n

d
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
th

e
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e
n
ts

s
h

o
u
ld

le
a
d

to
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

m
u
s
e
u

m
a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

in
2
0

0
7
/0

8
.

A
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e
s

in
2
0

0
6
/0

7
w

e
re

a
d

v
e
rs

e
ly

a
ff

e
c
te

d
b

y
s
o
m

e
p

e
ri

o
d
s

o
f

c
lo

s
u
re

to
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
w

o
rk

s
.

(a
)

T
o

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
t

s
c
h

o
o
ls

,

lib
ra

ri
e
s

a
n

d
p

u
b

lic
b
u

ild
in

g
s

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

th
e

p
ro

fi
le

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
M

u
s
e
u

m
S

e
rv

ic
e
.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
E

p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

M
u
s
e
u

m
fo

r

p
e
o
p

le
w

it
h

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
,
th

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

n
u
m

b
e
rs

o
f

v
is

it
o
rs

to
th

e
m

u
s
e
u
m

,
a
n

d
g
re

a
te

r

p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

M
u
s
e
u

m
S

e
rv

ic
e

a
n

d
th

e
h

is
to

ry
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

(b
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
f

5
%

p
e
r

a
n

n
u
m

to
b

e
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

o
n

B
V

P
I’
s

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
n

u
m

b
e
rs

o
f

v
is

it
o
rs

to
th

e
E

p
p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

M
u
s
e
u

m
.

G
U

3
T

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

th
e

p
ro

fi
le

o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
M

u
s
e
u
m

S
e
rv

ic
e

a
n

d
im

p
ro

v
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

M
u
s
e
u

m
a
n

d

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
o
f 

th
e

s
o
c
ia

l
h

is
to

ry
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
1

5
6

,
B

V
1

7
0
(a

),
B

V
1

7
0
(c

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

P
re

-p
la

n
n
in

g
w

o
rk

h
a
s

s
ta

rt
e
d

o
n

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
to

in
c
lu

d
e

s
o
u

rc
in

g
o
f

n
e
w

p
e
ri
p

a
te

ti
c

d
is

p
la

y
c
a
s
e
s

to
b

e
lo

c
a
te

d
in

s
c
h

o
o
ls

,
p

u
b

lic

b
u
ild

in
g
s

a
n
d

lib
ra

ri
e
s
.

T
h
is

w
ill

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e
m

u
s
e
u

m
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
.

T
h

e
fu

ll
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
w

ill
b

e
ro

lle
d
-o

u
t
in

A
u
tu

m
n

2
0

0
7
.

Page 46



3

T
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

th
e

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

o
n
c
e

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

to
th

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d
th

e
fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f 

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

R
e
g
io

n
a
l
P

la
n

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

a
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
a
g

a
in

s
t

w
h
ic

h
fu

tu
re

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

c
a
n

b
e

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

T
h
e

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

L
o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

b
y

3
0

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

1
0

(t
a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

th
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

n
u
m

e
ro

u
s

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te

s
ta

g
e
s

o
f 

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

th
e

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

h
a

v
e

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

b
e
e
n

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

b
y
 t
h

e
O

ff
ic

e
o
f 

th
e

D
e
p

u
ty

P
ri
m

e
M

in
is

te
r)

.

G
U

4
T

o
d

e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
L

o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

fo
r 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n

g
la

n
d

P
la

n
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

d
e
la

y
e
d
,

a
n
d

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

is
n

o
w

d
u

e
d
u
ri

n
g

S
u

m
m

e
r

2
0

0
7

.
A

m
e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

to
th

e
L

o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

S
c
h

e
m

e
to

re
fl

e
c
t
th

e
p

u
b

lic
a
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n

d
P

la
n

a
w

a
it

a
p
p

ro
v
a
l
fr

o
m

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t
fo

r
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
a
n

d
L

o
c
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

H
O

M
E

S
A

N
D

N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S

(a
)

T
o

re
v
is

e
th

e
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
to

re
q
u

ir
e
 t
h

a
t

4
0
%

o
f

a
ll

h
o
m

e
s

b
u

ilt
o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
o
v
e
r

fi
ft

e
e
n

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

a
re

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 t

o
p

e
o
p

le
o
n

lo
w

in
c
o
m

e
s
;

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0

6
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

b
y

a
t

le
a
s
t

3
3

%
.

T
h
e

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l
o
f

a
t
le

a
s
t

tw
e
n
ty

m
o
re

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
th

ro
u

g
h

p
la

n
n
in

g
p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
, 

th
a
n

if
 t
h

e
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

to
th

e
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n

h
a
d

n
o
t

b
e
e
n

m
a
d

e
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
c
ti
o
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

.
T

h
e

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n

fo
r 

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
n

o
w

re
q

u
ir

e
s

th
a
t

4
0

%
o
f

a
ll

h
o
m

e
s

b
u
ilt

o
n

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

o
f

o
v
e
r

fi
ft

e
e
n

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

a
re

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
to

p
e
o
p

le
o
n

lo
w

in
c
o
m

e
s
.

(b
)

T
o

w
o
rk

w
it
h

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

to
p
ro

v
id

e
m

o
re

lo
c
a
l

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
g

o
o
d

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il,

it
s

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

,
a
n
d

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

,
re

s
u
lt
in

g
in

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t

o
n

e
h
u

n
d
re

d
n

e
w

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
.

H
N

1
T

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
in

 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
to

m
e
e
t

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

n
e
e
d
,

a
n
d

to
c
o
n
s
id

e
r

a
n

d
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
if
fe

re
n
t

o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
li
v
e
ry

(K
P

I

R
e
fs

:
B

V
1

0
6
,

H
1

5
(a

),
H

1
5
(b

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

D
u

e
 t

o
th

e
c
u
rr

e
n

t
d

e
a
rt

h
o
f

la
n

d
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

fo
r

p
ri

v
a
te

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
th

e
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

n
e
w

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
p
ro

v
id

e
d

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

lo
w

.
T

h
e

ta
rg

e
t

o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t
1

0
0

h
o
m

e
s

p
e
r

a
n
n

u
m

(o
n

a
v
e
ra

g
e
)

w
a
s

m
e
t

b
e
tw

e
e
n

2
0
0

4
/0

5
a
n

d
2
0

0
5

/0
6
,

w
h

e
n

1
9

9
n

e
w

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

w
e
re

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

b
u
t

o
n
ly

2
5

n
e
w

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
m

e
s

w
e
re

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
n
 t

w
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

in
2

0
0

6
/0

7
,

a
n

d
o
n

ly
1

3
a
re

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
to

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
n

tw
o

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
in

2
0

0
7

/0
8
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e
re

a
re

a
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l
4
4

4
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

in
th

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ip
e
lin

e
,

m
o
s
t

o
f

w
h

ic
h

a
re

h
o
p

e
d

to
c
o
m

e
 t

o
fr

u
it
io

n
o
v
e
r

th
e

c
o
m

in
g

y
e
a
rs

.

N
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s

w
it
h

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

o
n

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0

6
s
it
e
s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

ro
b
u
s
t,

re
s
u
lt
in

g
in

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
ta

rg
e
t

o
f

3
0

%
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
p
ri

o
r 

to
J
u
ly

2
0

0
6

a
n

d
4
0

%
s
in

c
e

th
e
n

b
e
in

g
s
e
c
u
re

d
,

w
it
h

a
s
m

a
ll

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s

w
h

e
re

th
e
s
e

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

ju
s
ti
fi
e
d

a
n

d
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
b

y
m

e
m

b
e
rs

.
T

h
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

H
o
u
s
in

g

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

(c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
it
s

fi
v
e

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
S

o
c
ia

l
L

a
n
d

lo
rd

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

)
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
o
rk

in
g
,

a
n

d
h

a
s

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
s
o

m
a
n

y
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

b
e
in

g
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

in
 t
h

e
p
ip

e
lin

e
.

Page 47



4

(c
)

T
o

c
o
n
s
id

e
r

in
d

e
ta

il 
th

e
fo

ll
o
w

in
g

o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
th

e
d

e
li
v
e
ry

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
,
in

it
ia

lly
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l:

(i
)

a
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

in
th

e

G
re

e
n

B
e
lt
,
p
ro

v
id

in
g

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
le

v
e
ls

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
,

a
s

a
v
e
ry

s
p

e
c
ia

l
re

a
s
o
n

fo
r

d
e
p

a
rt

in
g

fr
o
m

n
o
rm

a
l
G

re
e
n

B
e
lt

p
o
lic

y;

(i
i)

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
o
n

la
rg

e
u
rb

a
n

o
p

e
n

s
p

a
c
e
s

w
it
h

in
e
s
ta

te
s
;

(i
ii)

s
e
tt

in
g

a
n

a
b
s
o
lu

te
m

in
im

u
m

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

2
0
%

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
th

a
t

w
ill

b
e

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

o
n

la
rg

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
s
it
e
s
,

ir
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

o
f

o
th

e
r

p
la

n
n
in

g
g

a
in

s
;

(i
v)

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

m
o
re

S
o
c
ia

l
H

o
u
s
in

g
G

ra
n
t
to

R
e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o
c
ia

l
L

a
n
d

lo
rd

s
;

(v
)

a
re

v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
la

n
d

h
o
ld

in
g
s
 t

o
a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h

e
s
c
o
p

e
fo

r
d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
;

(v
i)

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

g
ra

n
t
fu

n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

’s
L

o
n

d
o
n

R
e
g

io
n

to
b

e
u
s
e
d

to
fu

n
d

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t,
w

it
h

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
b

e
in

g
s
h

a
re

d
b

e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
L

o
n
d

o
n

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
;

(v
ii)

g
re

a
te

r
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t

b
y

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
c
o
m

p
ly

w
it
h

th
e

a
g

re
e
d

J
o
in

t
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
S

c
h

e
m

e
,

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

th
e

lik
e
lih

o
o
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

b
id

s
b

e
in

g
fu

n
d

e
d

;
a
n

d

(v
iii

)
th

e
s
e
e
k
in

g
o
f

‘h
o
t
s
p

o
t’

s
ta

tu
s

fr
o
m

th
e

O
ff

ic
e

o
f

th
e

D
e
p
u

ty
P

ri
m

e
M

in
is

te
r,

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e

ri
g
h

t
to

b
u

y

d
is

c
o
u

n
ts

a
n

d
d

e
te

r
ri

g
h
t 

to
b
u

y
s
a
le

s
,

th
e
re

b
y

s
lo

w
in

g
d

o
w

n
th

e
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

C
h

a
ir

m
a
n

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l/
H

e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n

d
fu

tu
re

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

A
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
a
v
a
il
a
b

le
in

 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t.

Page 48



5

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
t
it
s

m
e
e
ti
n

g
o
n
 3

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

6
,

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l
w

a
y
s

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
e
t

o
u
t

in
 t
h

is
a
c
ti
o
n
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
th

e
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
d

id
n

o
t
s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
u
g

g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
/p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

re
la

ti
n
g

to
(c

)(
i)

–
(c

)(
iii

)
o
r

(c
)(

v)
–

(c
)(

v
i)
,

it
d
id

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
to

th
e

C
a
b

in
e
t

th
a
t

a
n

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
£
1

m
lo

c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

s
o
c
ia

l
h

o
u
s
in

g
g
ra

n
t
(L

A
S

H
G

)
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
p
ro

v
id

e
d

a
n

d
th

a
t

a
n
n

u
a
l
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
h

o
u
ld

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
a
m

o
u
n

t
o
f

L
A

S
H

G
 t
h

a
t
s
h

o
u
ld

b
e

m
a
d

e
in

fu
tu

re
y
e
a
rs

(f
o
llo

w
in

g
w

h
ic

h
th

e
C

a
b

in
e
t

a
g
re

e
d

to
m

a
k
e

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
f

£
0
.5

m
a
n
d

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l

re
v
ie

w
o
f

L
A

S
H

G
).

T
h

e
C

a
b
in

e
t

a
ls

o
a
g
re

e
d

a
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

th
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l
th

a
t
th

e
la

n
d

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

a
n

y
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

a
s
s
e
ts

 t
h

a
t

b
e
c
o
m

e
s

s
u
rp

lu
s

to
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
in

 t
h

e
fu

tu
re

m
a

y
b

e
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
a
n

R
S

L
fr

e
e

o
f

c
h

a
rg

e
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e

C
a
b

in
e
t

d
id

n
o
t

a
g

re
e

th
e

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l’s

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n

th
a
t
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

s
h

o
u
ld

s
e
e
k

R
ig

h
t

to
B

u
y

(R
T

B
)

‘H
o
t
S

p
o
t
S

ta
tu

s
’
fo

r
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

w
h

ic
h
,

if
o
b

ta
in

e
d
,

w
o
u
ld

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

m
a
x
im

u
m

d
is

c
o
u
n

t
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

to
te

n
a
n

ts
u

n
d

e
r

th
e

R
T

B
fr

o
m

£
3

4
,0

0
0

to
£
1

6
,0

0
0
.

(a
)

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u
s
in

g
in

 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
to

m
e
e
t

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

n
e
e
d
;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
e

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

H
N

1
S

e
e

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

H
N

1

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

S
e
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

re
p

o
rt

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
H

N
1
(b

)
a
b

o
v
e

(b
)

T
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
te

m
p

o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
o
f

th
e
 F

re
s
h

S
T

A
R

T
S

c
h

e
m

e
fr

o
m

te
n

to
tw

e
n

ty
p
ri

v
a
te

ly
re

n
te

d
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

le
a
s
e
d

b
y

a
h

o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

,
a
n

d
th

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

L
e
a
d

e
r

L
o
d

g
e

a
t

N
o
rt

h
W

e
a
ld

fo
r 

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
ig

h
t

to
1
te

n
s
e
lf

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

fl
a
ts

a
s

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
ig

h
te

e
n

to
tw

e
n
ty

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
u

n
it
s

o
f

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

.

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
n

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
te

n

u
n
it
s

o
f

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

b
y

3
0

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
6

a
n

d
a

fu
rt

h
e
r

8
 t

o
1
0

u
n
it
s

b
y

3
0

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
8
.

H
N

2
T

o
p
re

v
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

a
n
d

re
s
p

o
n
d

to
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y,

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

a
n

d
fa

ir
ly

,
to

h
e
lp

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p

le
s
e
c
u
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

m
in

im
is

e
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

b
e
d

a
n

d
b
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

(K
P

I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
1

0
6
,

B
V

1
8

3
(a

),
B

V
1
8

3
(b

),
H

1
5
(a

),
H

1
5
(b

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
G

ro
u

p
h

a
s

o
n
ly

b
e
e
n

a
b
le

to
s
o
u
rc

e
4

o
f

th
e

1
0

p
ri

v
a
te

re
n

te
d

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

s
o
u

g
h
t

u
n
d

e
r

th
e
 F

re
s
h

S
T

A
R

T
S

c
h

e
m

e
, 

th
a
t

m
e
e
t

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
n

e
e
d
s

a
n
d

w
h
ic

h
p

ri
v
a
te

la
n
d

lo
rd

s
a
re

p
re

p
a
re

d
to

o
ff

e
r

to
th

e
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

fo
llo

w
in

g
a

re
c
e
n
t

m
e
e
ti
n

g
,

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

h
a
s

a
g
re

e
d

to
re

-
e
n

e
rg

is
e

th
e
ir

e
ff

o
rt

s
,

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
a
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
if

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

In
J
u
n

e
2

0
0

6
,

d
e
s
p
it
e

a
n

o
ff

ic
e
r

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l,

th
e

A
re

a
P

la
n
s

S
u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
re

fu
s
e
d

a
n

o
u
tl
in

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
to

d
e
m

o
lis

h
L

e
a
d

e
r

L
o
d
g

e
a
n

d
re

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
s
it
e

to
p
ro

v
id

e
1
0

n
e
w

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

. 
T

h
is

w
a
s

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e

S
u
b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
fe

lt
th

a
t

‘t
h

e
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

w
o
u

ld
re

s
u

lt
in

a
fo

rm
o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
u
t

o
f

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r
in

 t
h
is

a
re

a
o
f

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n

tl
y

s
in

g
le

-f
a
m

ily
d

w
e
lli

n
g
s

a
n

d
d

e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l
to

th
e

s
tr

e
e
t

s
c
e
n

e
’

a
n

d
‘w

o
u
ld

re
s
u

lt
in

a
n

in
te

n
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

u
s
e

o
u
t

o
f

c
h

a
ra

c
te

r
w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

a
n

d
lik

e
ly

 t
o

re
s
u

lt
in

a
c
ti
v
it
y

c
a
u
s
in

g
d
is

tu
rb

a
n
c
e
 t

o
th

e
o
c
c
u
p

ie
rs

o
f

a
d
ja

c
e
n

t
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
’.
 T

h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

in
te

n
d
s
 t

o
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e

C
a
b

in
e
t

in
J
u

n
e

2
0
0

7
o
n

a
n

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l
fo

r
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
o
f

L
e
a
d

e
r

L
o
d
g

e
a
n

d
it
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

la
n

d
.

Page 49



6

(c
)

T
o

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

b
y

th
e

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
t

o
f

a
n

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
p

a
rt

-
ti
m

e
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n

o
ff

ic
e
r,

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
in

g
in

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
’s

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

a
n

d
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
to

ta
c
k
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
d

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

fo
r

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
.

T
h
e

p
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n

o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t

a
n

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
fo

rt
y

in
c
id

e
n
c
e
s

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
e
r

a
n
n

u
m

.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

F
o
ll
o
w

in
g

th
e

re
c
e
ip

t
o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

fu
n

d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t
fo

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
a
n
d

L
o
c
a
l
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
(d

u
e

to
th

e
p
ro

g
re

s
s

m
a
d

e
b

y
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

in
th

e
p

a
s
t
in

p
re

v
e
n

ti
n

g
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
)

th
e

c
a
p

a
c
it
y

o
f 

th
e

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

P
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

h
a
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

to
4

.5
 F

T
E

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

o
ff

ic
e
rs

,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
T

e
a
m

L
e
a
d

e
r

p
o
s
t.

T
h

e
S

e
rv

ic
e
’s

s
u
c
c
e
s
s

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

a
n
d

5
1
6

c
a
s
e
s

o
f

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

w
e
re

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
p

re
v
e
n

te
d

in
2

0
0

6
/0

7
.

T
o

w
o
rk

w
it
h

th
e

o
th

e
r

m
a
in

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
in

v
o
lv

e
d

w
it
h

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
n
d
,

a
ft

e
r

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

a
n

d
s
e
rv

ic
e

u
s
e
rs

,
p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
L

o
c
a
l
S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p

le

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
L

o
c
a
l

S
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p

le
S

tr
a
te

g
y

s
e
tt

in
g

o
u
t

h
o
w

th
e

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
in

v
o
lv

e
d

w
it
h

s
u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

h
o
u
s
in

g
w

ill
h

e
lp

m
e
e
t

p
e
o
p

le
s

s
p

e
c
ia

l
n

e
e
d
s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

u
p

d
a
te

d
L

o
c
a
l

S
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p

le
S

tr
a
te

g
y

b
y

1

A
p
ri

l
e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r.

H
N

3
T

o
h

e
lp

p
e
o
p

le
w

it
h

s
p

e
c
ia

l
h

o
u
s
in

g
n

e
e
d
s

to
liv

e
in

h
o
m

e
s

s
u
it
a
b
le

fo
r

th
e
ir

n
e
e
d
s
,

w
it
h

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

le
v
e
ls

o
f

s
u
p

p
o
rt

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

In
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

s
u

p
p

o
rt

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
a
s

u
n
iq

u
e
ly

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

a
L

o
c
a
l
S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p

le
S

tr
a
te

g
y

fo
ll
o
w

in
g

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
,

a
n

n
u

a
ll
y

s
in

c
e

th
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

p
e
o
p

le
re

g
im

e
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

P
e
o
p

le
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
B

o
d

y
h

a
s

d
e
c
id

e
d

th
a
t

lo
c
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
s
h

o
u
ld

n
o
w

b
e

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

o
n

a
s
u

b
-r

e
g

io
n

a
l
b

a
s
is

.
D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s

a
re

th
e
re

fo
re

ta
k
in

g
p

la
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

fo
u
r

o
th

e
r

E
s
s
e
x

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

in
th

e
L

o
n

d
o
n

C
o
m

m
u
te

r
B

e
lt

S
u

b
-R

e
g

io
n

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
s
u

b
-r

e
g

io
n

a
l
g
ro

u
p

a
n

d
th

e
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
s
u
b

re
g
io

n
a
l
s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

p
e
o
p

le
s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
.

(a
)

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t
fo

u
r

h
o
m

e
re

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

g
ra

n
ts

a
n

d
s
ix

ty

H
o
m

e
R

e
p

a
ir
s

A
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

G
ra

n
ts

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
,

a
t

a
c
o
s
t

o
f

n
o

m
o
re

th
a
n

£
2

0
0
,0

0
0

p
e
r

a
n
n

u
m

u
n
ti
l
th

e
re

v
is

e
d

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

P
o
lic

y
is

a
d

o
p
te

d
;

H
N

4
T

o
e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t

p
ri

v
a
te

ly
o
w

n
e
d

h
o
m

e
s

a
re

fi
t
fo

r
p

e
o
p

le
 t

o
liv

e
in

,

w
it
h

e
m

p
ty

h
o
m

e
s

k
e
p
t
to

a
m

in
im

u
m

a
n

d
 t

o
p
ro

v
id

e
h

e
lp

to
th

o
s
e

w
h

o
n

e
e
d

it
m

o
s
t
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

(a
)

T
o

ta
rg

e
t

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

a
t

h
o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

in
n

e
e
d
;

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
d

,
m

o
re

s
e
c
u
re

h
o
m

e
s

in
th

e
p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r.

(b
)

7
0

%
o
f

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
to

b
e

liv
in

g
in

h
o
m

e
s

m
e
e
ti
n

g
th

e
d

e
c
e
n

t
h

o
m

e
s

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

b
y

2
0

1
0
/1

1
.

Page 50



7

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
d

o
p
te

d
it
s

re
v
is

e
d

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y

a
n

d
a
p
p

ro
a
c
h

fo
r

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
.

In
2
0

0
6
/0

7
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

p
ro

v
id

e
d

2
R

e
n

o
v
a
ti
o
n

G
ra

n
ts

a
n

d
5

2
H

o
m

e
R

e
p

a
ir

s
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

g
ra

n
ts

,
a
n
d

h
a
s

a
ls

o
re

c
e
iv

e
d

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

G
o
-E

a
s
t
to

a
s
s
is

t
it

in
m

e
e
ti
n
g

th
e

2
0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t
fo

r
d

e
c
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
s
.

(a
)

T
h
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

E
m

p
ty

H
o
m

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

b
y

1
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6
;

(b
)

T
o

p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
n

E
m

p
ty

H
o
m

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

s
e
tt

in
g

o
u
t

h
o
w

th
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

e
m

p
ty

h
o
m

e
s

in
 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
c
a
n

b
e

re
d

u
c
e
d

;

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
n

E
m

p
ty

H
o
m

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

s
e
tt
in

g
o
u
t

th
e

w
a
y

th
a
t
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

w
ill

tr
y

to
m

in
im

is
e

th
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
m

p
ty

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

a
n

d
w

ill
d

e
a
l
w

it
h

lo
n
g

te
rm

e
m

p
ty

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

c
a
u
s
in

g
a

n
u

is
a
n
c
e
.

(b
)

T
h
e

b
ri

n
g
in

g
o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t 

te
n

e
m

p
ty

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

b
ro

u
g
h

t
b

a
c
k

in
to

u
s
e

p
e
r

a
n

n
u
m

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

E
m

p
ty

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

E
m

p
ty

H
o
m

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

a
n

d
a
d

o
p

te
d

b
y

th
e

C
a
b

in
e
t/
C

o
u

n
c
il.

T
h

e
S

tr
a
te

g
y

w
a
s

a
d

o
p

te
d

la
te

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

y
e
a
r

a
n
d

th
e
re

fo
re

th
e

ta
rg

e
t

w
a
s

n
o
t

m
e
t.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

s
te

p
s

a
re

in
p
la

c
e

to
ta

k
e

th
e

s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
rw

a
rd

,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

c
o
m

p
u

ls
o
ry

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

p
o
w

e
rs

w
h

e
re

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.
In

re
a
lit

y
,
g

iv
e
n

th
e

n
a
tu

re
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
a
n

d
th

e
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

,
a

m
o
re

re
a
s
o
n

a
b

le
a
n
n

u
a
l
ta

rg
e
t

w
o
u
ld

b
e

5
h

o
m

e
s

ra
th

e
r

th
a
n

th
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
1
0

.

(c
)

T
o

a
n

a
ly

s
e

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

la
te

s
t
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
S

to
c
k

C
o
n

d
it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y
;

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
o

a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
b

e
tt

e
r

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

o
f

th
e

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
a
n

d
e
n

e
rg

y
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

o
f

th
e

p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r
h

o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k

a
n

d
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
m

p
ty

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t.

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 t
h

e
re

s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
S

to
c
k

C
o
n

d
it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y

b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

6
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

d
a
ta

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

th
e

S
to

c
k

C
o
n
d

it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y

w
a
s

u
s
e
d

a
s

th
e

b
a

s
is

b
e
h
in

d
th

e
n

e
w

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y

a
n
d

 t
h

e
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

P
o
lic

y,
b

o
th

o
f

w
h

ic
h

h
a
v
e

n
o
w

b
e

e
n

a
d

o
p

te
d
.

(d
)

T
o

p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
n

u
p

d
a
te

d
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

P
o
lic

y
,

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
S

to
c
k

C
o
n

d
it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
c
le

a
r

p
o
lic

y
o
n

th
e

c
ri
te

ri
a

to
b

e
a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
th

e

C
o
u

n
c
il

fo
r 

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

v
a
ri

o
u
s

fo
rm

s
o
f

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
o
w

n
e
rs

a
n

d
o
c
c
u

p
ie

rs
o
f

p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

P
o
lic

y
b

y

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

P
ri

v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

P
o
lic

y
w

a
s

a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

in
M

a
rc

h
2
0

0
7
.

Page 51



8

(a
)

T
o

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
id

e
n

ti
fy

w
h
ic

h

C
o
u

n
c
il

h
o
m

e
s

d
o

n
o
t

m
e
e
t,

o
r

w
ill

n
o
t

m
e
e
t,

 t
h

e
D

e
c
e
n

t
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

,
p
ro

v
id

e
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n

d
c
a
rr

y

o
u
t

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

w
o
rk

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

a
ll 

th
e
s
e

h
o
m

e
s

m
e
e
t

th
e

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

b
y

2
0
1

0
;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

d
e
c
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
s

fo
r

o
c
c
u

p
a
ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
te

n
a
n

ts

A
ll

h
o
m

e
s

to
m

e
e
t

th
e

D
e
c
e
n
t

H
o
m

e

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

b
y

2
0

1
0
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

R
a
th

e
r

th
a
n

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n

ts
to

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

s
to

c
k

c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
u
rv

e
y
s
,
s
to

c
k

s
u
rv

e
y
s

a
re

n
o
w

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
n

a
ro

lli
n
g

b
a
s
is

b
y

te
c
h
n

ic
a
l
h

o
u
s
in

g
o
ff

ic
e
rs

,
in

o
rd

e
r

to
m

a
x
im

is
e

v
a
lu

e
fo

r
m

o
n

e
y
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

w
o
rk

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
b

e
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

to
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

e
n

a
n
ts

’
h

o
m

e
s

a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e

th
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
s
.

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
o

m
e
s

h
a
s

re
d

u
c
e
d

fr
o
m

2
2

%
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
s
to

c
k

in
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
2
 t

o
5
.3

%
in

A
p
ri

l
2
0

0
7
.

T
h

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

is
o
n

c
o
u

rs
e

to
m

e
e
t

th
e

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

o
f

h
a
v
in

g
n

o
n

o
n

-d
e
c
e
n

t
h

o
m

e
s

b
y

2
0
1

0
.

(b
)

T
o

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
m

a
jo

r

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
a
t
S

p
ri

n
g
fi
e
ld

s
,

W
a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y
;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

n
in

e
ty

-s
ix

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

e
n

a
n
te

d
a
n

d
le

a
s
e
h

o
ld

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

th
a
t

m
e
e
t 

th
e

D
e
c
e
n
t

H
o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

.

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t

w
o
rk

s
b

y
3

1
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
7
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

F
o
ll
o
w

in
g

a
n

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
re

s
id

e
n
t
c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e
,

w
h
ic

h
re

s
u

lt
e
d

in
a
n

a
g
re

e
d

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

w
o
rk

s
a
n
d

 t
h

e
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
,

te
n

d
e
rs

a
re

s
h

o
rt

ly
 t

o
b

e
in

v
it
e
d

a
n

d
re

p
o
rt

e
d

to
 t
h

e
C

a
b

in
e
t

in
J
u
ly

2
0
0

7
.

(c
)

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
n

In
tr

o
d
u
c
to

ry

T
e
n

a
n
c
y

S
c
h

e
m

e
;

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
ll

n
e
w

te
n

a
n
ts

 t
o

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

w
it
h

n
o
n
-s

e
c
u
re

in
tr

o
d

u
c
to

ry
 t

e
n

a
n
c
ie

s
,

fo
r

th
e

fi
rs

t
tw

e
lv

e
m

o
n

th
s

C
o
u

n
c
il

te
n

a
n
c
y
, 

to
re

d
u
c
e

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r

b
y

n
e
w

 t
e
n

a
n
ts

a
n

d
to

e
n

a
b

le
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 t

a
k
e

s
w

if
t

a
c
ti
o
n

a
g

a
in

s
t

o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

.

N
o

s
e
ri

o
u
s

a
c
ts

o
f

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r

b
y

n
e
w

 t
e
n

a
n
ts

,
w

h
ic

h
h

a
v
e

n
o
t
re

s
u
lt
e
d

in
le

g
a
l
a
c
ti
o
n

b
e
in

g
ta

k
e
n

to
e
v
ic

t
th

e
o
ff

e
n

d
in

g

te
n

a
n

ts
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

u
s
e

o
f

in
tr

o
d

u
c
to

ry
te

n
a
n
c
ie

s
fo

r
n

e
w

C
o
u
n
c
il

te
n

a
n

ts
w

a
s

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

o
n

1
A

p
ri

l
2

0
0

6
.

In
it
s

fi
rs

t
y
e
a
r

o
f

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

,
3
1

1
in

tr
o
d

u
c
to

ry

te
n

a
n
c
ie

s
w

e
re

g
ra

n
te

d
.

It
w

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

to
is

s
u

e
N

o
ti
c
e
s

o
f

P
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
P

ro
c
e
e
d

in
g
s

in
ju

s
t

1
6

c
a
s
e
s

(a
ll

o
n

th
e

g
ro

u
n
d
s

o
f

re
n

t
a
rr

e
a
rs

),
w

h
ic

h
re

s
u
lt
e
d

in
o
n

ly
o
n

e
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

to
c
o
u
rt

.

T
h
e

u
s
e

o
f

th
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
to

ry
te

n
a
n
c
y

s
c
h

e
m

e
a
p
p

e
a
rs

 t
o

b
e

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t
s
u
c
c
e
s
s

in
th

a
t

it
h

a
s

s
e
n

t
a

c
le

a
r

m
e
s
s
a
g

e
to

a
ll

n
e
w

te
n

a
n
ts

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e
m

a
s
 t

e
n

a
n
ts

,
a
n

d
th

a
t
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
n

a
c
ti
o

n
to

re
-p

o
s
s
e
s
s

th
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
,

m
u
c
h

m
o
re

e
a
s
ily

th
a
n

fr
o
m

a
s
e
c
u
re

te
n

a
n
ts

,
if

t h
e
y

fa
il

to
k
e
e
p

to
th

e
ir

C
o
n

d
it
io

n
s

o
f

T
e
n

a
n
c
y
.

It
is

b
e
lie

v
e
d

th
a
t 

th
is

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

h
a
s

c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
to

th
e

re
n

t
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

ra
te

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
fu

rt
h

e
r

in
2

0
0

6
/0

7
.

H
N

5
T

o
e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

m
a
n

a
g

e
s

a
n

d
m

a
in

ta
in

s
it
s

h
o
m

e
s

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

a
n

d
e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y,

a
n
d

 t
h

a
t

it
p

ro
v
id

e
s

d
e
c
e
n
t

h
o
m

e
s

fo
r

it
s

te
n

a
n

ts
a
n
d

le
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

a
t

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
re

n
ts

,
a
n

d
d

e
a
ls

w
it
h

is
s
u

e
s

o
f

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

(K
P

I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
6

3
,
B

V
6

6
(a

),
B

V
1
6

4
,
B

V
1

8
4
(a

),
B

V
1

8
4
9
(b

))
.

(d
)

T
o

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

a
jo

in
t

C
h

o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt

in
g
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
,

in

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

w
it
h

fi
v
e

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri

n
g

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
a
p
p

lic
a
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

a
b
le

to
“b

id
”

fo
r

v
a
c
a
n
t

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

in
a
n

y
o
f

th
e

s
ix

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri

ty
a
re

a
s

w
h

e
re

th
e
y

a
re

re
g
is

te
re

d
,

in
s
te

a
d

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

b
e
in

g
“a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
”

b
y
 t
h

e

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

to
th

o
s
e

in
m

o
s
t

h
o
u
s
in

g
n

e
e
d
.

T
h
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

a
jo

in
t
C

h
o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt

in
g
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
b

y
1

A
p
ri

l

2
0

0
7
.

Page 52



9

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

a
n

d
fi
v
e

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri

n
g

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

fo
rm

e
d

a
n
d

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
b
id

fo
r

£
9

6
,0

0
0

g
ra

n
t
fu

n
d
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

fo
rm

e
r

O
ff

ic
e

o
f

th
e

D
e
p
u
ty

P
ri

m
e

M
in

is
te

r.
C

o
n
s
u

lt
a
n
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

a
p
p

o
in

te
d

to
p
ro

je
c
t

m
a
n

a
g

e
th

e
jo

in
t

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
h

o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt

in
g
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
,

a
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

a
n
d
 t

e
n
d

e
rs

a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
in

v
it
e
d

fr
o
m

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e
d

in
p
ro

v
id

in
g

a
c
h

o
ic

e
b

a
s
e
d

le
tt
in

g
s

s
e
rv

ic
e

to
lo

c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

A
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

h
a
s

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

w
id

e
s
p
re

a
d

s
u
p

p
o
rt

fo
r

th
e

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

c
h

o
ic

e
b

a
s
e
d

le
tt

in
g
s

b
u
t,

d
u

e
to

a
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fa
c
to

rs
in

c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
w

it
h

d
ra

w
a
l
o
f

o
n

e
o
f

th
e

lo
c
a
l
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s

fr
o
m

th
e

C
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

, 
th

e
a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
liv

e
d

a
te

fo
r

th
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
is

n
o
w

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0

0
7

.

(a
)

T
o

e
x
te

n
d

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

lo
c
a
lly

b
a
s
e
d

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
te

a
m

s
w

h
e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

to
th

e
lo

c
a
lit

y
;

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(a
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
o
f

s
tr

e
e
t

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
a
n

d
lo

c
a
l
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
;

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

in
re

s
p

e
c
t

o
f

re
le

v
a
n

t
B

e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
,

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

b
y

3
0

J
u

n
e

2
0
0

6
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

In
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

d
e
m

is
e

o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
w

a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

r
a
t
th

e
s
ta

rt
o
f

2
0
0

6
/0

7
,
n

o
fu

rt
h

e
r

a
c
ti
o
n

h
a
s

s
o

fa
r

b
e
e
n

ta
k
e
n

w
it
h

re
s
p

e
c
t
to

th
e

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
lo

c
a
l
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 t

e
a
m

s
.

B
V

P
I

1
9

9
(L

o
c
a
l
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

le
a
n

lin
e
s
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
)

o
u

tt
u

rn
s

fo
r

2
0

0
6

/0
7
d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

a
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
in

s
tr

e
e
t

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
,

w
it
h

B
V

1
9
9

(a
)

b
e
in

g
re

c
o
rd

e
d

a
s

2
%

,
a
n
d

B
V

1
9

9
(b

)
a
n
d

1
9
9

(c
)

a
t

z
e
ro

p
e
rc

e
n
t.

(b
)

T
o

u
ti
lis

e
w

h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
h

e
n

e
w

p
o
w

e
rs

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

to
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

w
it
h

in
th

e
C

le
a
n

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

a
n

d
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
t

A
c
t
2

0
0

5
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(a
)

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s

in
fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g
,
fl
y
-

p
o
s
ti
n
g

,
a
b

a
n

d
o
n

e
d

v
e
h

ic
le

s
e
tc

.
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

in
re

s
p

e
c
t

o
f

re
le

v
a
n

t
B

e
s
t
V

a
lu

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
,

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

b
y

3
0

J
u

n
e

2
0
0

6
.

H
N

6
T

o
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
in

lo
c
a
l

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
(K

P
I

R
e
fs

:
B

V
1

9
9
(a

),
B

V
1

9
9

(b
),

B
V

1
9
9
(c

),
B

V
1

9
9
(d

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

y
e
t

to
fu

lly
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

o
f 

th
e

C
le

a
n

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
a
n
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t
A

c
t,

a
n
d

 t
h

is
m

a
tt

e
r

re
m

a
in

s
w

it
h

th
e

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

re
s
p

e
c
t
to

th
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
o
f

fl
y

ti
p
p
in

g
h

a
s

im
p
ro

v
e
d

w
it
h

fe
w

e
r

re
p

o
rt

e
d

c
a
s
e
s

a
n

d
a
n

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n

h
a
v
in

g
b

e
e
n

in
s
ti
g

a
te

d
.

(a
)

T
h

e
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

p
a
rk

in
g

re
v
ie

w
s

fo
r

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
a
n
d

W
a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y

b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7
;

T
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
p

a
rk

in
g

re
v
ie

w
s

fo
r 

th
e

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
a
n

d
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y

a
re

a
s
.

C
iv

il
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d

M
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

lo
c
a
l
p

a
rk

in
g

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
,

a
n

d
th

e
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
o
f

p
ro

b
le

m
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

o
n

s
tr

e
e
t

a
n
d

c
o
m

m
u
te

r
p

a
rk

in
g
.

(b
)

T
h
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

lo
c
a
lly

a
g
re

e
d

p
a
rk

in
g

c
o
n

tr
o
ls

to
in

c
lu

d
e

re
s
id

e
n

t
p

a
rk

in
g

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

,
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
d
u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
7
/0

8
.

H
N

7
T

o
s
e
e
k

to
d

e
a
l
w

it
h

p
ro

b
le

m
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

v
e
h

ic
le

p
a
rk

in
g

in
th

e
b

u
ilt

u
p

a
re

a
s

o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

P
a
rk

in
g

re
v
ie

w
s

fo
r

L
o
u

g
h

to
n

a
n

d
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b

b
e
y

h
a
v
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

b
u
t

w
e
re

n
o
t

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7
.

T
h

e
n

e
w

/r
e
v
is

e
d

p
a
rk

in
g

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

fo
r

B
u
c
k
h
u
rs

t
H

ill
,

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
(T

C
E

)
a
n
d

E
p

p
in

g
b

e
c
a
m

e
a

v
a
il
a
b
le

fo
r

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

a
n
d

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t
a
s

o
f

2
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
7

.
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e
re

a
re

e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

w
o
rk

s
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

th
e
s
e
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

a
n
d

fu
ll

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

d
e
la

y
e
d

in
to

2
0

0
7
/0

8
.

Page 53



1
0

A
S

A
F

E
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y

T
o

in
c
lu

d
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

lig
h
ti
n

g
a
n

d
c
lo

s
e
d

c
ir
c
u
it

te
le

v
is

io
n

s
ys

te
m

s
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f 

to
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e

e
n

h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

a
n

d
th

e
u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
p
u

b
lic

c
a
r

p
a
rk

s
.

C
iv

il
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d
M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

W
e
llb

e
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
//
H

e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h

a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

s
a
fe

r
a
n
d

m
o
re

s
e
c
u
re

 t
o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
s

a
n
d

p
u

b
lic

c
a
r

p
a
rk

s
.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

a
t

le
a
s
t

o
n

e
c
a
r

p
a
rk

p
e
r

a
n

n
u
m

.

S
C

1
T

o
e
n

h
a
n
c
e

th
e

s
a
fe

ty
,
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

a
n

d
w

e
llb

e
in

g
o
f

p
e
o
p

le
u
s
in

g
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t’
s

to
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
s

a
n
d

p
u
b

lic
c
a
r

p
a
rk

s
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

L
P

I
C

E
M

1
(a

),
(b

),
(c

),
(d

),
(e

),
(f

),
(g

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

w
o
rk

s
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

in
th

e
L

o
w

e
r

Q
u

e
e
n

s
R

o
a

d
c
a
r

p
a
rk

a
t

B
u
c
k
h

u
s
t
H

ill
a
n

d
th

e
C

o
tt
is

L
a
n

e
c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
E

p
p
in

g
.

T
h

e
B

u
rt

o
n

R
o
a
d

c
a
r

p
a
rk

a
t

L
o
u

g
h

to
n

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
w

a
s

a
ls

o
im

p
ro

v
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
E

n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

T
h

e
w

id
e
r

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

a
n

d
e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
is

s
u

e
s

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e
d

lig
h
ti
n
g

a
n
d

c
lo

s
e
d

c
ir
c
u

it
 t

e
le

v
is

io
n

s
ys

te
m

s
re

m
a
in

u
n
d

e
r

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

b
y

th
e

T
o
w

n
C

e
n

tr
e
s

a
n

d
C

a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l.

(a
)

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

jo
in

t
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
T

e
a
m

,
c
o
n
s
is

ti
n

g
o
f

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

U
n
it

a
n

d
lo

c
a
l
p

o
lic

e
o
ff

ic
e
rs

;

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

W
e
llb

e
in

g

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

re
d

u
c
e
d

c
ri

m
e

le
v
e
ls

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in

th
e

o
v
e
ra

ll
le

v
e
l
o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

c
ri

m
e

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

b
y

1
6
%

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

8
b

a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

c
ri

m
e

fi
g
u

re
s

fo
r

2
0

0
3
/0

4
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty
T

e
a
m

h
a
s

b
e
e

n
d

e
la

y
e
d

fo
r

v
a
ri

o
u
s

re
a
s
o
n
s
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
d

e
fe

rr
a
l
o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

a
n

d
p

o
lic

e
m

a
tt

e
rs

s
u
c
h

a
s

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

p
o
lic

in
g

a
n
d

re
g
io

n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

h
a
v
in

g
ta

k
e
n

g
re

a
te

r
p
ri

o
ri

ty
.

T
h

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
jo

in
t
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
a
fe

ty
T

e
a
m

w
ill

b
e

fu
rt

h
e
r

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

re
v
ie

w
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
to

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
re

m
a
in

d
e
r

o
f

2
0

0
7

/0
8
.

(b
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e
s

o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c

b
u

rg
la

ry
,

th
e
ft

o
f

v
e
h

ic
le

s
,
c
ri

m
in

a
l
d

a
m

a
g

e
a
n
d

ro
b
b

e
ry

th
a
t

o
c
c
u
r

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t.

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

W
e
llb

e
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

re
d

u
c
e
d

c
ri

m
e

le
v
e
ls

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.
T

h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
o
v
e
ra

ll
le

v
e
l
o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

c
ri

m
e

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

b
y

1
6
%

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

8

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

c
ri

m
e

fi
g
u

re
s

fo
r

2
0

0
3
/0

4
.

S
C

2
T

o
re

d
u
c
e

th
e

o
v
e
ra

ll
le

v
e
l
o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

c
ri

m
e

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I

R
e
f:

B
V

1
7
5

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
C

ri
m

e
a
n
d

d
is

o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
re

c
o
n
s
ta

n
tl
y

m
o
n

it
o
ri

n
g

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
a
n
d

lo
o
k
in

g
a
t

w
a

ys
to

re
d
u
c
e

th
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

a
ll

ty
p

e
s

o
f

re
c
o
rd

e
d

c
ri

m
e

in
 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t,
in

o
rd

e
r 

to
m

e
e
t

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t

o
f

a
1
6

%
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0

8
.

S
C

3
T

o
re

d
u
c
e

le
v
e
ls

o
f

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

a
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
le

is
u
re

a
n
d

tr
a
in

in
g

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
fo

r
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
 t

o
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

p
o
s
it
iv

e
a
n

d
h

e
a
lt
h

y
lif

e
s
ty

le
s

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

T
o

w
o
rk

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

to
s
e
c
u
re

o
n

g
o
in

g
e
x
te

rn
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
fo

r
th

e
p
ro

je
c
t.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

le
v
e
ls

o
f

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

a
n
d

to
w

o
rk

w
it
h

y
o
u

n
g

o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

to
a
s
s
is

t
re

h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t

o
n

e
o
n
-

g
o
in

g
a
c
ti
v
it
y

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
in

e
a
c
h

a
re

a
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

C
ri

m
e

a
n

d

D
is

o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
is

s
u

e
s

in
v
o
lv

in
g

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
.

Page 54



1
1

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

U
n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
,

N
A

C
R

O
h

a
v
e

te
rm

in
a
te

d
fu

n
d

in
g

to
th

e
E

p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
p

o
rt

s
P

ro
je

c
t,

w
h

ic
h

ta
rg

e
te

d
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
a
t
ri

s
k

o
f

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
,

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
a

li
m

it
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

is
to

c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
in

2
0

0
7

/0
8

w
it
h

th
e

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
fr

o
m

S
p

o
rt

E
n

g
la

n
d
.

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
Y

o
u
n

g
P

e
rs

o
n
s

O
ff

ic
e
r

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
c
ti
v
e

in
c
ri
m

e
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
,

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t
h

e
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h

w
o
rk

e
r

to
w

o
rk

w
it
h

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
in

L
o
u

g
h

to
n

o
n

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

is
s
u

e
s
,

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

p
ri

v
a
te

s
e
c
to

r.

F
IT

F
O

R
 L

IF
E

(a
)

T
h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

D
e
fa

u
lt

N
o
ti
c
e
s

is
s
u

e
d

in
re

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
th

e
L

e
is

u
re

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t
to

b
e

b
e
lo

w
te

n
c
o
m

p
la

in
t

n
o
ti
c
e
s

o
r

fi
v
e

d
e
fa

u
lt

n
o
ti
c
e
s

in
a
n

y
fo

u
r

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

w
e
e
k

p
e
ri

o
d
;

(a
)

T
o

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

re
g
u

la
r

a
n
d

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

m
o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
o
f

th
e

le
is

u
re

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

e
n
te

re
d

in
to

w
it
h

S
L

M
L
im

it
e
d
;

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

o
f

h
ig

h
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
n
d

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

in
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

th
e

le
is

u
re

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

(b
)

T
h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

S
ta

g
e

2
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

m
a
d

e
to

 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f

it
s

le
is

u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
re

m
a
in

a
t

le
s
s

th
a
n

1
%

o
f 

to
ta

l
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

u
s
in

g
th

e

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

R
e
g

u
la

r
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

o
f

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t
is

 t
a
k
in

g
p

la
c
e

o
n

a
n

o
n

g
o
in

g
b

a
s
is

th
ro

u
g
h

s
it
e

v
is

it
s
,
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l
re

tu
rn

s
a
n

d
m

o
n

th
ly

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s

a
t

o
ff

ic
e
r

le
v
e
l.

T
h

e
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

M
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

B
o
a
rd

h
a
s

m
e
t

o
n

s
e
v
e
ra

l
o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s

a
n

d
is

w
o
rk

in
g

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.
T

h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

D
e
fa

u
lt

N
o
ti
c
e
s

is
s
u

e
d

is
b

e
lo

w
th

e
th

re
s
h

o
ld

,
w

it
h

o
n
ly

o
n

e
d

e
fa

u
lt

a
n
d

s
e
v
e
n

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
n

o
ti
c
e
s

re
q
u

ir
e
d

in
th

e
fi
rs

t
fi
ft

e
e
n

m
o
n
th

s
o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

S
im

ila
rl

y
,
th

e
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

S
ta

g
e

2
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

re
c
e
iv

e
d

is
a
ls

o
w

e
ll

b
e
lo

w
th

re
s
h

o
ld

,
w

it
h

le
s
s

th
a
n

1
0

re
c
e
iv

e
d

in
th

e
s
a
m

e
p

e
ri

o
d
.

(b
)

T
o

e
x
p

lo
re

fu
rt

h
e
r

s
e
rv

ic
e

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
re

d
u
c
e

re
v
e
n

u
e

c
o
s
ts

a
n

d

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
;

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

n
e
w

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
h

a
t

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

A
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
le

v
e
l

o
f

In
c
o
m

e
in

lin
e

w
it
h

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

in
th

e
c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

r’
s

te
n

d
e
r.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

S
e
v
e
ra

l
m

a
jo

r
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

S
L

M
L
im

it
e
d

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
,

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
in

th
e

a
re

a
o
f

h
e
a
lt
h

a
n
d

fi
tn

e
s
s
.

R
e
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

o
f

s
w

im
m

in
g

le
s
s
o
n
s

h
a
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e
s

a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e
d

w
a
it
in

g
lis

ts
.

R
e
-n

e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n

is
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

re
g

a
rd

in
g

a
n

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
o
f

th
e

c
o
n

tr
a
c
t
fo

r
E

p
p
in

g
S

p
o
rt

s
C

e
n

tr
e

fo
r

s
e
v
e
n

y
e

a
rs

,
w

it
h

th
e

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

lo
w

e
r

re
v
e
n

u
e

c
o
n
s
e
q
u

e
n
c
e
s

b
y

w
a
y

o
f

a
re

d
u
c
e
d

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
fe

e
o
r

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

b
y

S
L
M

.

F
L
1

T
o

e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t
th

e
le

is
u
re

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

e
n
te

re
d

in
to

w
it
h

S
L

M
L
im

it
e
d

d
e
li
v
e
rs

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
k
e
y

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s

fo
r

th
e

fu
tu

re
o
f

it
s

le
is

u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
,

w
it
h

re
s
p

e
c
t

to
lo

w
e
r

re
v
e
n

u
e

c
o
s
ts

,
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t,

c
o
n
ti
n

u
o
u
s

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

th
e

tr
a
n
s
fe

r
o
f

ri
s
k

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

(c
)

T
o

e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t
c
a
p
it
a
l
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

is
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
n

 t
im

e
a
n

d
to

th
e

c
o
rr

e
c
t
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

o
f

a
s
s
e
ts

to
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
g

u
a
ra

n
te

e
d

le
v
e
l
o
f

c
a
p
it
a
l
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

o
n

ti
m

e
a
n
d
 t

o
th

e
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

q
u

a
lit

y

in
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s

te
n

d
e
r.

Page 55



1
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

M
a
jo

r
c
a
p

it
a
l
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

a
t
O

n
g

a
r

L
e
is

u
re

C
e
n
tr

e
a
n

d
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o
o
l
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

in
lin

e
w

it
h

a
g
re

e
d

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
a
n

d
a
t

a
le

v
e
l
o
f

£
1
.5

m
a
s

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
d

w
it
h
in

th
e

te
n

d
e
r.

Q
u

a
lit

y
o
f

w
o
rk

re
m

a
in

s
g

o
o
d

a
n
d

h
a
s

m
e
t
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

(a
)

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

te
n

n
e
w

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
in

ru
ra

l
p

a
ri

s
h

e
s

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
;

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
k
e

y
fi
n

d
in

g
s

o
f

th
e

B
e
y
o
n

d
S

u
b
u
rb

ia
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

in
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

lo
c
a
l
p

a
ri

s
h

c
o
u

n
c
ils

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

q
u

a
lit

y
o
f

lif
e

fo
r

ru
ra

l
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

th
e

a
lle

v
ia

ti
o
n

o
f

is
o
la

ti
o
n

a
n
d

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

.

(b
)

T
h
e

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

e
x
te

rn
a
l

fu
n
d
in

g
o
f

£
5
0

,0
0
0

p
e
r

a
n
n

u
m

fo
r

o
n

e
n

e
w

fa
c
ili

ty
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p
ro

je
c
t

e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r.

F
L
2

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
le

is
u
re

a
n
d

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
in

th
e

ru
ra

l
p

a
rt

s
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

‘B
e
y
o
n

d
S

u
b

u
rb

ia
’
C

u
lt
u
ra

l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(K

P
I

R
e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

ta
rg

e
t

o
f

te
n

n
e
w

a
c
ti
v
it
y

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

re
s
p

e
c
t 

to
le

is
u
re

a
n
d

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

m
e
t.

E
x
te

rn
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
le

v
e
ls

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
a
c
h

e
d

to

e
n

a
b

le
m

a
jo

r
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
a

n
e
w

p
la

y
g

ro
u
n

d
to

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
t

M
a
tc

h
in

g
T

y
e
.

(a
)

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

in
th

e
‘A

c
ti
v
e

L
if
e
’
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

o
f

5
%

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
;

(b
)

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
e
o
p

le
re

fe
rr

e
d

b
y

G
e
n

e
ra

l
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

h
e
a
lt
h

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

o
f

5
%

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
;

T
o

e
x
p

a
n

d
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
w

id
e

‘A
c
ti
v
e

L
if
e
’
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
to

in
c
lu

d
e

th
e

‘L
if
e

W
a
lk

s
’
‘B

o
d

yc
a
re

’
a
n

d
g

e
n

e
ra

l
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
r

re
fe

rr
a
l
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
,

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

in
p

h
ys

ic
a
l

a
c
ti
v
it
y

b
y

p
e
o
p

le
a
t
ri
s
k

le
a
d
in

g
to

lo
w

e
r

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

ill
h

e
a
th

.

(c
)

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
t
le

a
s
t

tw
o

a
c
ti
v
it
y

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

b
e
c
o
m

in
g

s
e
lf
-

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

p
e
r

a
n

n
u

m
.

F
L
3

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
p

e
o
p

le
o
f

a
ll

a
g

e
s

a
n

d
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
le

a
d

a
h

e
a
lt
h

y
lif

e
s
ty

le
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o

t
a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

‘A
c
ti
v
e

L
if
e
’
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

in
2
0

0
6

/0
7

w
it
h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

in
re

s
p

e
c
t
to

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
G

e
n

e
ra

l
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
r

re
fe

rr
a
ls

.
U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
,

th
e

W
e
s
t
E

s
s
e
x

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

h
a
s

w
it
h
d
ra

w
n

fu
n

d
in

g
fo

r
c
a
rd

ia
c

re
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o
n

c
la

s
s
e
s

a
n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
a
te

d
e
x
e
rc

is
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
fo

r
th

e

e
ld

e
rl

y.
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e

e
x
te

rn
a
l
fu

n
d

in
g

o
p
ti
o
n
s

a
re

c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
e
x
p

lo
re

d
b

u
t

m
a
y

a
ff

e
c
t
th

e
a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

ta
rg

e
ts

fo
r

2
0

0
7

/8
. 
 I
t

m
a

y
b

e
p

o
s
s
ib

le
fo

r
a

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

th
e

s
e
a
te

d
e
x
e
rc

is
e

c
la

s
s
e
s
 t

o
b

e
s
e
lf
-s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

b
y

c
h

a
rg

in
g

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

a
n

o
m

in
a
l
fe

e
.

F
L
4

T
o

w
o
rk

m
o
re

c
lo

s
e
ly

w
it
h

 t
h

e
lo

c
a
l
P

ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

to
e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t
th

e
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
th

a
t

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

c
a
rr

y
o
u

t
in

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

a
n
d

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

T
o

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l,
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

a
n

d
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
a
n
d

p
o
lic

ie
s

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

th
e

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
,

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

a
n

d

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
w

it
h

th
e

re
le

v
a
n

t
p

u
b

lic
h

e
a
lt
h

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s

o
f

th
e

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

T
h
e

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

a
jo

in
tl
y

a
g
re

e
d

p
u

b
lic

h
e
a
lt
h

p
o
lic

y
w

it
h

th
e

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t

b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

.

Page 56



1
3

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

fu
lly

to
im

p
ro

v
in

g
th

e

o
v
e
ra

ll
h

e
a
lt
h

o
f 

th
e

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

th
e

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n
ti
-s

m
o
k
in

g
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o

t
a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

D
u

e
 t

o
th

e
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
h

a
n
g

e
s

in
th

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
o
f 

th
e

lo
c
a
l
P

ri
m

a
ry

C
a

re
T

ru
s
t
(P

C
T

),
th

e
re

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

n
o

p
ro

g
re

s
s

in
 t
h

is
re

g
a
rd

.
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

w
it
h

re
s
p

e
c
t

to
th

e
n

e
w

‘n
o

s
m

o
k
in

g
’
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
,

jo
in

t
a
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

P
C

T
a
n

d
H

a
rl

o
w

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

is
to

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

in
J
u

n
e

2
0
0

7
w

it
h

 t
h

e
h

o
ld

in
g

o
f

a
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
e
m

in
a
r.

T
h

e
P

C
T

’s
n

e
w

ly
a
p

p
o
in

te
d

D
ir

e
c
to

r
o
f

P
u
b

lic
H

e
a
lt
h

is
k
e
e

n
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
n

d
th

is
w

ill
b

e
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
.

(a
)

T
o

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

p
u
b

lic
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s

to
b
ri

n
g

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
m

o
k
in

g

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
a
tt

e
n

ti
o
n

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

,
e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

a
n
d

u
s
e
rs

o
f

p
u

b
lic

p
re

m
is

e
s

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t,

w
it
h
in

s
ix

m
o
n
th

s
o
f 

th
e

d
a
te

o
f

th
e

n
e
w

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n

c
o
m

in
g

in
to

fo
rc

e
b

e
in

g
k
n

o
w

n
;

T
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
th

e
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
m

o
k
in

g
in

to
 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
e
x
is

ti
n

g
e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l
h

e
a
lt
h

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

re
g

im
e
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

a
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
c
o
ro

n
a
ry

h
e

a
rt

d
is

e
a
s
e
,

lu
n

g
c
a
n
c
e
r

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

s
m

o
k
in

g
re

la
te

d
d

is
e
a
s
e
s
.

(b
)

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

in
s
m

o
k
in

g
re

la
te

d
ill

n
e
s
s
e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
in

li
a
is

o
n

w
it
h

th
e

P
ri

m
a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t.

F
L
5

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n

d
e
a
li
n
g

w
it
h

s
m

o
k
in

g
in

th
e

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

fu
n

d
in

g
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

m
a
d

e
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

to
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
n

e
w

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e

s
m

o
k
in

g
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
s
ta

ff
a
re

in
th

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s

o
f

b
e
in

g
a
p

p
o
in

te
d

,
a
n

d
a

lo
c
a
l
b
u
s
in

e
s
s

s
e
m

in
a
r

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
rr

a
n

g
e
d

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

H
a
rl

o
w

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u
n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
P

ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t
fo

r
J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

.
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

o
f

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s

in
s
m

o
k
in

g
re

la
te

d
ill

n
e
s
s
e
s

w
ill

a
w

a
it

th
e

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

n
e
w

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n

.

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
P

R
O

S
P

E
R

IT
Y

T
o

s
e
t
C

o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

in
c
re

a
s
e
s

fo
r

2
0

0
7
/0

8
,

2
0

0
8
/0

9
a
n
d

2
0
0

9
/1

0
o
f

n
o

m
o
re

th
a
n

2
.5

%
p

e
r

a
n

n
u

m
.

F
in

a
n
c
e
,
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te

S
u
p

p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

F
in

a
n
c
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

T
a
x

le
v
e
ls

fo
r

2
0
0

7
/0

8
,

2
0

0
8
/0

9
a
n
d

2
0
0

9
/1

0
w

ill
in

c
re

a
s
e

b
y

n
o

m
o
re

th
a
n

2
.5

%
.

T
h
e

a
c
tu

a
l
le

v
e
l
o
f

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

in
c
re

a
s
e
s

fo
r

2
0

0
7
/0

8
,

2
0

0
8
/0

9
a
n
d

2
0

0
9
/1

0
.

E
P

1
T

o
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
re

m
a
in

a
lo

w
ta

x
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
a
d

o
p

te
d

p
o
lic

y
(C

a
b
in

e
t

-
6

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0

0
6
)

is
to

in
c
re

a
s
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

b
y

n
o

m
o
re

 t
h

a
n

th
e

ra
te

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
 t
h

e
R

e
ta

il
P

ri
c
e

In
d

e
x
,

ra
th

e
r

th
a
n
 t

o
n

o
t
in

c
re

a
s
e

it
b

y
m

o
re

th
a
n

2
.5

%
a
s

s
e
t

o
u

t
in

th
is

C
o

u
n
c
il

P
la

n
a
c
ti
o
n
,

w
h
ic

h
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

re
q

u
ir

e
s

c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n

.
T

h
e

ta
rg

e
t
fo

r
k
e
e
p

in
g

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
C

o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

b
e
lo

w
th

e
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
R

e
ta

il
P

ri
c
e

In
d

e
x

w
a
s

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

fo
r

2
0

0
7

/0
8
. 

F
o
r

2
0
0

7
/0

8
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

C
o
u
n
c
il

T
a
x

w
a
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

b
y

3
.5

4
%

a
t

a
 t
im

e
w

h
e
n

th
e

ra
te

o
f

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
 t
h

e
R

e
ta

il
P

ri
c
e

In
d

e
x

w
a
s

4
.6

%
.

E
P

2
T

o
e
n

h
a
n
c
e

th
e

to
w

n
c
e
n

tr
e

a
re

a
s

a
t

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o
a
d

a
n

d

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
B

ro
a
d

w
a
y
 t

o
p
ro

v
id

e
im

p
ro

v
e
d

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
th

e
u
s
e
rs

o
f

th
e

c
e
n
tr

e
s

a
n

d
th

e

T
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
a
g
re

e
d

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

to
w

n
c
e
n

tr
e

e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n

t
w

o
rk

s
a
n

d

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
.

C
iv

il
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d
M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

e
n

h
a
n
c
e
d

to
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ts

,
p
ro

v
id

in
g

im
p
ro

v
e
d

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

fo
r

a
ll

u
s
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

to
w

n
c
e
n

tr
e
s
.

(a
)

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

P
h

a
s
e
s

1
a
n

d
2

o
f

th
e

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o

a
d

to
w

n
c
e
n

tr
e

e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
b

y
3

1
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

6
;

Page 57



1
4

(b
)

T
h
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

P
h

a
s
e

1

o
f

th
e

L
o
u

g
h

to
n

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 t

o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
b

y
3

1
J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
.

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

P
h

a
s
e
s

I
a
n

d
 I
I

o
f 

th
e

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
T

o
w

n
C

e
n

tr
e

E
n

h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
h

e
m

e
(T

C
E

)
a
re

c
o
m

p
le

te
,

w
it
h

th
e

e
xc

e
p

ti
o
n

o
f

tr
a
ff

ic
a
n

d
p

a
rk

in
g

c
o
n

tr
o
ls

,
w

h
ic

h
a
re

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
.

F
in

a
l
fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
o
u

tc
o
m

e
s

fo
r

th
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
a
re

p
re

s
e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
a
n

a
ly

s
e
d
.

P
h

a
s
e

I
o
f

th
e

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
T

C
E

w
a
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

C
h
ri

s
tm

a
s

2
0
0

6
,

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

P
h

a
s
e

II
o
f

th
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

d
e
la

y
e
d

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l
p
ro

b
le

m
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

a
g

a
s

m
a
in

a
n

d
th

e

h
ig

h
w

a
y

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
,

a
n
d

re
v
is

e
d

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n

d
e
r

c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

.

(a
)

T
o

s
e
c
u
re

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n
 t

o
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
p
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

o
lic

ie
s

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
fo

r
th

e
fo

re
s
e
e

a
b

le
fu

tu
re

a
re

c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
a
n

d
a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

;

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

o
f

la
n

d
u
s
e
,

p
la

n
n
in

g
p

o
lic

ie
s
,
h

o
u
s
in

g
,
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

a
n

d
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
to

p
ro

m
o
te

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
,

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty

a
n

d
ta

c
k
le

a
re

a
s

o
f

d
e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
p

o
lic

ie
s

b
y

3
1

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0

0
6
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
c
ti
o
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

.

(b
)

T
o

s
e
c
u
re

th
e

in
c
lu

s
io

n
o
f

a

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

in
th

e
n

e
w

L
o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

in
g

n
e
e
d
 t

o
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

la
n
d

u
s
e
,

p
la

n
n
in

g

p
o
lic

ie
s
,

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

a
n
d

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

a
w

a
y

th
a
t

e
n
s
u
re

s
e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
p

ro
s
p

e
ri

ty
a
n

d
 t

a
c
k
le

s

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
,

ta
k
in

g
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f

w
h

a
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

s
e
c
u
re

d
in

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

o
f

la
n

d
u
s
e
,

p
la

n
n
in

g
p

o
lic

ie
s
,
h

o
u
s
in

g
,
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

a
n

d
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
to

p
ro

m
o
te

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
,

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty

a
n

d
ta

c
k
le

a
re

a
s

o
f

d
e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
p

o
lic

ie
s

b
y

3
1

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0

0
6
.

E
P

3
T

o
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

la
n
d

u
s
e

a
n

d

p
la

n
n
in

g
p

o
lic

ie
s
,

a
n

d
h

o
u
s
in

g
,

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

a
n
d

lo
c
a
l
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
s

e
x
p
la

in
e
d

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

G
U

4
a
b

o
v
e
,

w
o
rk

o
n

th
e

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

is
d

e
la

y
e
d

,
p

e
n
d

in
g

th
e

is
s
u

e
o
f 

th
e

fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
,

a
n
d

c
a
n

n
o
t

b
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

w
it
h

in
th

e
o
ri

g
in

a
lly

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

.

T
o

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
w

o
rk

o
f

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

Y
o
u

th
A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

a
n

d
lo

c
a
l
y
o
u

th
c
o
u
n
c
ils

to
e
n

a
b
le

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
’s

v
o
ic

e
s

to
b

e
h

e
a
rd

.

L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
o
p

le

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e

e
m

p
o
w

e
ri

n
g

o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
to

in
fl
u

e
n
c
e

d
e
c
is

io
n
s

o
n

th
o
s
e

m
a
tt

e
rs

th
a
t
d

ir
e
c
tl
y

a
ff

e
c
t

th
e
m

.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

fu
ll

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

fo
r

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
o
n

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

Y
o
u

th
A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

a
n

d
y
o
u

th
c
o
u
n
c
ils

b
y

lo
c
a
l
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
b

y
3

1

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6
.

E
P

4
T

o
e
n
s
u

re
th

a
t

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
c
a
n

e
x
p

re
s
s

in
fo

rm
e
d

v
ie

w
s

o
n

is
s
u

e
s

th
a
t

a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
m

a
n

d
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

ta
k
e

p
a
rt

in
th

e
d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

p
ro

c
e
s
s

(K
P

I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

lo
c
a
l
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

e
le

c
te

d
to

re
p
re

s
e
n

t
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

o
n

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

Y
o
u

th
P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t,
w

it
h

o
n

e
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l
a
ls

o
n

o
w

s
e
rv

in
g

o
n

th
e

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l
Y

o
u
th

P
a
rl

ia
m

e
n
t.

T
h

e
Y

o
u
n

g
P

e
rs

o
n
s

O
ff

ic
e
r

a
n

d
th

e
H

e
a

d
o
f

re
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n
d

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

th
e

e
le

c
ti
o
n
s
.

S
in

c
e

a
p

p
o
in

tm
e
n
t

in
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0

6
, 

th
e

Y
o
u

n
g

P
e
rs

o
n
s

O
ff

ic
e
r

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

in
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

s
e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

s
c
h

o
o
ls

a
n
d

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
o
n

a
d

v
o
c
a
c
y

a
n

d
c
it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

is
s
u

e
s

w
it
h

th
e

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

th
a
t

a
fo

rm
a
l
Y

o
u
th

C
o
u
n
c
il

fo
r

a
ll/

p
a
rt

s
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
a
n

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

in
2

0
0

7
/0

8
.

Page 58



1
5

(a
)

T
o

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
id

e
n

ti
fy

m
e
a
s
u
re

s

to
a
lle

v
ia

te
s
p

e
c
if
ic

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

b
le

m
s

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

a
n

a
n

a
ly

s
is

o
f

th
e

2
0

0
4

In
d
ic

e
s

o
f

D
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
;

a
n

d
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
to

ta
c
k
le

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

is
s
u

e
s
;

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

ta
rg

e
te

d

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

to
a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
n

e
e
d
s

o
f

lo
c
a
l
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
.

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

s
ix

c
h
ild

re
n

's

c
e
n
tr

e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
b

y
3

1
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

8
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
n

a
n

a
ly

s
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
f

a
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

in
d
ic

e
s

b
y

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
S

u
p

e
r

O
u
tp

u
t
A

re
a
s

(w
h

ic
h

a
re

a
re

a
s

s
m

a
ll
e
r 

th
a
n

a
w

a
rd

)
re

le
v
a
n

t
to

a
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

e
x
is

ti
n

g
o
r

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
,
ra

n
g
in

g
fr

o
m

to
w

n
c
e
n

tr
e

e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n

ts
in

L
o
u

g
h

to
n

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y
 t

o
th

e
n

a
tu

re
o
f

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

th
a
t

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

in
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b

b
e
y
.

T
h

e
d

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

in
d

ic
e
s

a
re

a
ls

o
re

le
v
a
n

t 
to

a
c
ti
o
n
s

in
d
ic

a
te

d
in

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
o
c
a
l

A
re

a
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t
a
n

d
th

e
a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

in
th

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

(b
)

A
s

a
p

a
rt

n
e
r

a
g

e
n
c
y

to
 t
h

e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

lo
c
a
l
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

,
to

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
c
h
ild

re
n

's
c
e
n
tr

e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o
f

ta
rg

e
te

d

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

a
c
ti
o
n

to
a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
n

e
e
d
s

o
f

lo
c
a
l
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
.

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

s
ix

c
h
ild

re
n

's

c
e
n
tr

e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
b

y
3

1
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

8
.

E
P

5
T

o
re

s
p

o
n

d
to

is
s
u

e
s

o
f

d
e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

in
 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t,
b

a
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

In
d

e
x

o
f

M
u

lt
ip

le
D

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n

2
0

0
4
.

(K
P

I

R
e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
d

u
ty

to
c
o
-o

p
e
ra

te
in

m
e
e
ti
n

g
th

e
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

o
f

th
e

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

A
c
t

2
0
0

4
a
n
d

th
e

‘E
v
e
ry

C
h
ild

M
a
tt

e
rs

/C
h

a
n

g
e

F
o
r

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
’

a
g

e
n

d
a
,

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

it
is

n
o
t

th
e

le
a
d

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
fo

r
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

c
e
n
tr

e
s
.
T

o
m

e
e
t

it
s

o
b

lig
a
ti
o
n
s
,
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
p

p
o
in

te
d

m
e
m

b
e
r

a
n

d
o
ff

ic
e
r

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s

to
th

e
b

o
a
rd

o
f

th
e

C
h
ild

re
n

a
n

d
Y

o
u

n
g

P
e
rs

o
n
s

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

(C
Y

P
S

P
)

a
n

d
it
s

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
o
rk

in
g

g
ro

u
p
s
.

T
h

e
re

a
re

p
la

n
s

fo
r

s
e
v
e
n

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

c
e
n
tr

e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t,
s
o
m

e
in

n
e
w

b
u

ild
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

,
w

h
ils

t
o
th

e
rs

w
ill

b
e

v
ir

tu
a
l
c
e
n
tr

e
s

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

e
x
is

ti
n
g

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

a
n

d
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
a
s

re
c
e
n
tl
y

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

th
e

fi
rs

t
tw

o
n

e
w

b
u

ild
c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

T
h

e
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l
fo

r
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b

b
e
y

w
a
s

g
ra

n
te

d
,

w
h

ils
t
th

e
a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

fo
r 

th
e

A
ld

e
rt

o
n

S
c
h

o
o
l
s
it
e

in
L

o
u
g

h
to

n
w

a
s

re
fu

s
e
d

.

E
P

6
T

o
m

a
in

ta
in

a
n

d
im

p
ro

v
e

th
e

lin
k
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il,

lo
c
a
l 
to

w
n

c
e
n
tr

e
s

a
n
d

th
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I
R

e
f:

N
o
t

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
).

T
o

fu
rt

h
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
,

o
r

o
th

e
r

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

lo
c
a
l
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

fo
ru

m
s
,
to

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

b
y

lo
c
a
l
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

C
iv

il
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

a
n

d
M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

s
tr

o
n

g
e
r

lin
k
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
lo

c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
d
is

tr
ic

t.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

fu
ll

lo
c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
n

th
e

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
o
r

o
th

e
r

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

lo
c
a
l
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

fo
ru

m
s
.

Page 59



1
6

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

s
ix

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
th

a
t
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

h
e
lp

e
d

to
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
,

a
n
d

fo
r

w
h

ic
h

it
p
ro

v
id

e
s

b
a
s
ic

fu
n

d
in

g
,

a
re

B
u
c
k
h
u
rs

t
H

ill
,
E

p
p
in

g
,

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
B

ro
a
d

w
a
y
,

L
o
u
g

h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o
a
d

,
O

n
g

a
r

(n
o
w

c
a
ll
e
d

a
fo

ru
m

)
a
n

d
W

a
lt
h

a
m

A
b
b

e
y
.
E

a
c
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
n
d
s

to
g

o
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
c
yc

le
s

o
r

h
ig

h
p

o
in

ts
o
f

a
c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d

in
te

re
s
t,

fo
llo

w
e
d

b
y

lo
w

e
r

p
o
in

ts
.

A
T

o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

p
o
s
t

w
a
s
 f

u
n
d

e
d

fr
o
m

J
u

n
e

2
0
0

4
,

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

th
is

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

t
is

d
u

e
to

e
n

d
in

2
0
0

7
/0

8
.

T
h

e
p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l
fo

c
u
s

o
f

th
e

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

p
o
s
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
B

u
c
k
h

u
rs

t
H

ill
a
n
d

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r

e
a
c
h

o
f

th
e

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

g
iv

e
n

s
p

e
c
ia

l
p
ro

je
c
t

g
ra

n
ts

o
f

u
p

to
£

2
,0

0
0
,

a
n

d
th

e
s
e

h
a
v
e

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
ra

n
g
in

g
fr

o
m

a
g
re

e
n

fa
y
re

(B
u
c
k
h

u
rs

t
H

ill
),

th
e

h
o
w

z
a
t

c
ri
c
k
e
t

fe
s
ti
v
a
l,

(L
o
u
g

h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o

a
d
),

th
e

D
e
b

d
e
n

d
a
y

(L
o
u

g
h
to

n
B

ro
a
d

w
a

y
),

a
p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
lo

c
a
l
s
h

o
p
p

in
g

e
v
e
n

t
(E

p
p

in
g
),

a
 t

o
w

n
s
ig

n
(O

n
g

a
r)

a
n

d
p
ri

m
in

g
fu

n
d
in

g
to

s
e
e
k
 t

o
g

e
t

a
s
ta

tu
e

o
f

K
in

g
H

a
ro

ld
in

W
a
lt
h

a
m

A
b

b
e
y
.
It

is
a
ls

o
c
le

a
r

th
a
t
th

e
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

s
tr

u
g
g

le
to

h
a
v
e

lo
n
g
-t

e
rm

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t
w

it
h

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

th
a
t
h

o
ld

d
a
y

(t
ra

d
e
) 

ti
m

e
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
,

a
n
d

v
a
ri

o
u
s

s
te

p
s

h
a
v
e

th
e
re

fo
re

b
e
e
n

ta
k
e
n

b
y

th
e

d
if
fe

re
n
t

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
,

v
a
ry

in
g

fr
o
m

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

to
e

v
e
n

in
g

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
.

In
c
o
n
tr

a
s
t,

 t
h

e
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o
n

o
f

S
m

a
ll

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

is
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

in
v
o
lv

e
d

in
th

e
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
P

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

A
c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

IM
P

R
O

V
IN

G
O

U
R

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E

(a
)

T
o

id
e
n
ti
fy

a
n

d
a
g
re

e
th

e
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

re
s
o
u
rc

e
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r

th
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
;

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

M
e
d
ia

,
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
in

a
n
s
w

e
ri

n
g
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
c
a
lls

a
n

d
th

e

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
a
n
s
w

e
ri

n
g

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
;
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

th
ro

u
g

h
's

e
lf

s
e
rv

ic
e
'
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

;
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

in
a

s
in

g
le

g
ro

u
n

d
fl
o
o
r

re
c
e
p

ti
o
n

a
re

a
a
t 

th
e

C
iv

ic
O

ff
ic

e
s
;

a
n
d

 t
h

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

o
p

e
n

in
g

h
o
u
rs

to
m

e
e
t

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

d
e
m

a
n

d
.

T
h
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

fo
r 

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
re

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

b
y
 t
h

e
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

b
y

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
d

e
v
is

e
th

e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.
S

p
e
c
if
ic

ta
rg

e
ts

a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
w

ill
b

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
s
 t
h

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
is

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
a
ri
s
in

g
in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f 

th
e

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t

a
n

d
c
o
n
s
e
q
u

e
n
t

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l
c
o
s
ts

a
ri
s
in

g
,
th

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

u
n
ti
l
fu

rt
h

e
r

c
a
p

it
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
is

a
v
a
ila

b
le

in
2

0
0
8
/0

9
.

IP
1

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
C

u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
(K

P
I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
8

,
B

V
9
,

B
V

0
,

B
V

1
2
,

B
V

1
4
).

(b
)

S
u
b

je
c
t 

to
(a

),
to

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

c
o
n
ta

c
t
c
e
n
tr

e
a
s

th
e

fi
rs

t
p

h
a
s
e

o
f 

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

M
e
d
ia

,
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

T
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
in

a
n
s
w

e
ri

n
g
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
c
a
lls

a
n

d
th

e

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
a
n
s
w

e
ri

n
g

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
;
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

to

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

th
ro

u
g

h
's

e
lf

s
e
rv

ic
e
'
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

;
th

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
th

e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

in
a

s
in

g
le

g
ro

u
n

d
fl
o
o
r

re
c
e
p

ti
o
n

a
re

a
a
t 

th
e

C
iv

ic
O

ff
ic

e
s
;

a
n
d

 t
h

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

o
p

e
n

in
g

h
o

u
rs

to
m

e
e
t

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

d
e

m
a
n

d
.

T
h
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

fo
r 

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
a
re

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e
in

g
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

b
y
 t
h

e
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

b
y

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il 

to
d

e
v
is

e
th

e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.
S

p
e
c
if
ic

ta
rg

e
ts

a
n

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
w

ill
b

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
s
 t
h

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
is

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
.

Page 60



1
7

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
s
 I
P

1
(a

)
a
b

o
v
e
.

A
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o
f

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
a
ri

s
in

g
in

re
s
p

e
c
t

o
f

th
e

W
a
s
te

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

a
n
d

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
t
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
c
o
s
ts

a
ri
s
in

g
, 

th
e

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

u
n
ti
l
fu

rt
h

e
r

c
a
p

it
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
is

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

in
2
0

0
8

/0
9
.

(a
)

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
n

E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

R
e
c
o
rd

s
D

o
c
u

m
e
n
t

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

ys
te

m
fo

r 
th

e
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
;

F
in

a
n
c
e
,
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
S

u
p

p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

F
in

a
n
c
e

(a
)

T
im

e
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

lo
s
t

o
n

s
e
a
rc

h
in

g
fo

r
p

a
p

e
r

fi
le

s
w

ill
b

e
a
b
le

to
b

e
d

e
v
o
te

d
 t

o
m

o
re

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
a
n

d
m

e
d
iu

m
te

rm

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

g
a
in

s
s
e
c
u
re

d
.

(a
)

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
a
n

d

m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r 

th
e

s
p

e
e
d

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
o
f

n
e
w

H
o
u
s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi
t

c
la

im
s

a
n
d

c
h

a
n
g

e
s

o
f

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
.

T
h

e
n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

h
a
rd

w
a
re

a
n

d
s
o
ft

w
a
re

fo
r

th
e

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
R

e
c
o
rd

s
D

o
c
u

m
e
n
t

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

ys
te

m
a
re

a
lr

e
a
d

y
io

n
p
la

c
e

a
n

d
fu

n
d
in

g
o
f

£
1
5
,0

0
0

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
to

a
id

th
e

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

s
ys

te
m

.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
is

ta
rg

e
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

a
s

th
e

B
e
n

e
fi
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
h

a
s

n
o
w

g
o
n

e
liv

e
w

it
h

A
n
it
e

a
t
W

o
rk

, 
th

e
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
E

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
R

e
c
o
rd

s
a
n

d
D

o
c
u

m
e
n
t

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

ys
te

m
.

(b
)

T
o

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

to
e
n
h

a
n
c
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

b
y

m
o
b
ile

w
o
rk

in
g
,

in
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

lo
c
a
l
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
.

F
in

a
n
c
e
,
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te

S
u
p

p
o
rt

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

F
in

a
n
c
e

(b
)

B
e
n

e
fi
t
V

is
it
in

g
O

ff
ic

e
rs

to
b

e
p
ro

v
id

e
d

w
it
h

ta
b
le

t
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l

c
o
m

p
u
te

r
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t
c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
b

e
n

e
fi
t

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

th
a
t
c
a
n

b
e

u
s
e
d

to
c
h

e
c
k

a
n

d
v
e
ri

fy
b

e
n

e
fi
t

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n

t
d
u
ri

n
g

th
e

c
o
u
rs

e
o
f

a
v
is

it
.
E

v
e
n

tu
a
lly

c
la

im
s

w
ill

b
e

a
b
le

to
b

e
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d

d
u

ri
n
g

v
is

it
s
,

w
h
ic

h

w
ill

a
s
s
is

t
c
la

im
a
n
ts

a
n

d
im

p
ro

v
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

(b
)

T
o

m
a
in

ta
in

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

th
e

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
B

e
n

e
fi
t

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.
A

g
ra

n
t

o
f

£
1
3

3
,0

0
0

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
w

a
rd

e
d

b
y

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
f

W
o
rk

a
n

d
P

e
n
s
io

n
s

to
e
n

a
b

le
th

is
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

to
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

in
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

tw
o

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

IP
2

T
o

a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
n

d
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
o
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r 

th
e

s
p

e
e
d

o
f

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
o
f

n
e
w

H
o
u
s
in

g

B
e
n

e
fi
t
c
la

im
s

a
n
d

c
h

a
n
g

e
s

o
f

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
,

a
n
d
 t

o
m

a
in

ta
in

c
u
rr

e
n

t
to

p
q

u
a
rt

ile
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

th
e

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
f

b
e
n

e
fi
t

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
(K

P
I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
7

8
(a

),
B

V
7

8
(b

),
B

V
7
9
(a

))
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

w
o
rk

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
g

e
t
th

e
n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
in

p
la

c
e

a
n
d

fu
n
c
ti
o
n

in
g
.
G

o
li
v
e

is
n

o
w

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
fo

r
J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7
.

IP
3

T
o

a
c
h
ie

v
e

a
n

d
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
o
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r 

th
e

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

o
f

a
ll

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(K
P

I
R

e
fs

:
B

V
1

0
9
(a

),
B

V
1

0
9

(b
),

B
V

1
0
9
(c

))
.

T
o

fu
ll
y

im
p

le
m

e
n
t

a
g
re

e
d

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

p
la

n
n
in

g
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
n

e
w

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

s
ys

te
m

s
,

a
p
la

n
n
in

g
‘h

it
s
q

u
a
d
’
a
n
d

th
e

s
e
rv

ic
e

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n
in

g
a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
d

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

ti
m

e
s

fo
r

a
ll

c
la

s
s
e
s

o
f

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile
d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

b
y

3
0

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

6
,

a
n

d
th

e
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e

o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h

e
re

a
ft

e
r.

Page 61



1
8

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

P
la

n
n

in
g

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

h
a
s

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d

th
e

m
a
in

b
u

ild
in

g
a
n

d
p
la

n
n
in

g
m

o
d
u

le
s

o
f

th
e

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l,

L
o
c
a
l
L

a
n

d
C

h
a
rg

e
s

a
n

d
P

la
n
n

in
g

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 I
C

T
s
ys

te
m

,
a
n

d
w

o
rk

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e
s

o
n

m
o
v
in

g
 t
h

e
L

a
n
d

C
h

a
rg

e
s

s
ys

te
m

to
th

e
la

te
s
t
fu

ll
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

,
a
n

d
o
n

fu
rt

h
e
r

e
n
h

a
n
c
e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

th
e

o
v
e
ra

ll
s
ys

te
m

th
a
t

h
a
s

c
h

a
n

g
e
d

m
a
n

y
b

u
s
in

e
s
s

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
.
T

h
e

A
n
it
e

@
w

o
rk

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
t

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
ys

te
m

h
a
s

a
ls

o
b

e
e
n

ro
ll
e
d

o
u

t,
b
u
t

d
o
e
s

n
o
t

y
e
t

o
ff

e
r

a
c
o
m

p
le

te
“b

a
c
k

c
a
ta

lo
g

u
e
”

a
n
d

is
n

o
t

y
e
t
s
e
a
m

le
s
s
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

th
e

u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
o
f

s
ys

te
m

s
a
n

d
th

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
f 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
l
a
c
c
e
s
s

fo
r

s
ta

ff
a
n

d
c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

in
a

s
h

o
rt

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

.
P

la
n

n
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

h
a
v
e

a
ls

o
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
re

d
u
c
e
d

a
b

a
c
k
lo

g
o
f

p
la

n
n

in
g

c
a
s
e
s
,

a
n
d

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
a

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

T
h
e

c
o
m

b
in

e
d

e
ff

e
c
ts

o
f

th
o
s
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
h

a
s

m
o
v
e
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fr
o
m

a
p

o
o
r

p
o
s
it
io

n
to

o
n

e
w

h
ic

h
is

w
e
ll

a
b

o
v
e

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

ta
rg

e
ts

,
a
n

d
w

h
e
re

th
e

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile
p

o
s
it
io

n
(w

h
ic

h
is

a
ls

o
m

o
v
in

g
h
ig

h
e
r)

is
c
lo

s
e

to
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

t
o
n

B
V

1
0

9
(a

)
a
n
d

(b
)

a
n
d

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

o
n

1
0
9

(c
).

T
h
re

e
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

lo
n
g

s
e
rv

in
g

a
n

d
/o

r
s
e
n
io

r
s
ta

ff
in

a
n

e
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

te
a
m

o
f

tw
e
lv

e
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l
o
ff

ic
e
rs

le
ft

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
la

s
t

y
e

a
r

a
n

d
a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

th
e
y

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
re

p
la

c
e
d

w
it
h

m
o
re

ju
n

io
r

a
n
d

p
re

s
e
n

tl
y

le
s
s

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e
d

s
ta

ff
,
th

is
h

a
s

in
e
v
it
a
b
ly

im
p

a
c
te

d
u

p
o
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

d
a
d

o
p
t

a
c
o
rp

o
ra

te

P
u
b

lic
C

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

P
o
lic

y
a
n

d
S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o
ld

e
r/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

T
h
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

m
e
a
n

in
g
fu

l

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
fo

r
re

s
id

e
n

ts
a
n
d

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

to
in

fo
rm

a
n

d
in

fl
u

e
n
c
e

p
o
lic

y
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

a
n

d
s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n
.

T
h
e

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

P
u

b
lic

C
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

P
o
lic

y
a
n

d
S

tr
a
te

g
y

b
y

3
1

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0

6
.

IP
4

T
o

d
e
liv

e
r

c
u
s
to

m
e
r-

fo
c
u
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
h
ic

h
m

e
e
t

th
e

n
e

e
d
s

a
n

d
a
s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
s

o
f

th
e

d
iv

e
rs

e
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
(K

P
I

R
e
f:

N
o
t

a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

).

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

A
c
ti
o
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

.
A

n
e
w

P
u

b
lic

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
lic

y
a
n

d
S

tr
a
te

g
y

w
a
s

a
d

o
p
te

d
b

y
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il

in
A

p
ri

l
2
0

0
6
.

(a
)

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n

n
u

a
l
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t

p
la

n
s

in
re

s
p

e
c
t

o
f

a
ll

K
e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
;

A
ll

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
rs

/A
ll

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
th

e
s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ri

o
ri

ty
a
re

a
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
p
ri

o
ri
ty

a
re

a
s

b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r,

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

q
u

a
rt

ile
d

a
ta

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

b
y

th
e

A
u
d

it
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

p
la

n
s

in
re

s
p

e
c
t

o
f

a
ll

K
e

y
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
fo

r
2

0
0

6
/0

7
w

e
re

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

a
n
d

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
B

o
a
rd

.
T

h
e

s
u
c
c
e
s
s

o
f

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
a
c
ti
o
n
s

w
a
s

m
o
n

it
o
re

d
o
n

a
q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
b

a
s
is

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e

y
e
a
r

b
y

th
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n

d
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l.

IP
5

T
o

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

o
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

e
a
c
h

K
e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

o
n

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
b

a
s
is

(K
P

I
R

e
fs

(f
o
r

2
0

0
6
/0

7
):

B
V

2
(b

),
B

V
8

,
B

V
9
,

B
V

1
0
,
B

V
1

1
(a

),
(b

),
(c

),
B

V
1
2

,

B
V

1
4
,
B

V
1

6
(a

),
B

V
1
7
(a

),
B

V
6
3
,

B
V

6
6
(a

),
B

V
7
8
(a

),
(b

),
B

V
7
9
(a

),
B

V
8

2
(a

)(
i)
,(

ii)
,

B
V

8
2
(b

)(
i)
,(

ii)
,

B
V

8
4
(a

),
(b

),
B

V
9
1
(a

),
B

V
1
0

6
,

B
V

1
0
9
(a

),
(b

),
(c

),
B

V
1

5
6

,
B

V
1

6
4
,

B
V

1
6
6
(a

),
B

V
1

7
0
(a

),
(c

),

B
V

1
8
3
(a

),
(b

),
B

V
1

8
4
(a

),
(b

),
B

V
1

9
9
(a

),
(b

),
(c

),
(d

),
B

V
2

0
4

,
B

V
2

1
2
,

L
P

IE
H

6
,
L

P
I
H

1
5
(a

),
(b

),

L
P

I
C

E
M

1
(a

),
(b

),
(c

),
(d

),
(e

),
(f

),
(g

).

(b
)

T
o

m
o
n
it
o
r

p
ro

g
re

s
s

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h

e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f 

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u
n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

fo
r

e
a
c
h

K
e
y

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r
o
n

a

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
b

a
s
is

.

A
ll

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
rs

/A
ll

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
th

e
s
e
rv

ic
e

p
ri

o
ri

ty
a
re

a
s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

e
a
c
h

y
e
a
r.

T
h
e

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

ile

d
is

tr
ic

t
c
o
u

n
c
il

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
p
ri

o
ri
ty

a
re

a
s

b
y

3
1

M
a
rc

h
e
a
c
h

y
e

a
r,

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

q
u

a
rt

ile
d

a
ta

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

b
y

th
e

A
u
d

it
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

Page 62



1
9

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
e

p
o

rt
(3

1
.3

.0
7
)

T
h
e

o
v
e
ra

ll
y
e
a
r-

e
n

d
p

o
s
it
io

n
w

it
h

re
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

t
o
f

to
p

q
u

a
rt

il
e

(o
r

o
th

e
r

re
le

v
a
n

t)
ta

rg
e
ts

s
e
t

fo
r

4
4

o
f

th
e

K
P

Is
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
7

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r
w

h
ic

h
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

c
a
n
n

o
t

b
e

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
a
g

a
in

s
t

ta
rg

e
ts

,
a
n

d
o
n

e
th

a
t

re
fl

e
c
ts

a
b

a
s
e
-l

in
e

p
o
s
it
io

n
b
ro

u
g

h
t

fo
rw

a
rd

fr
o
m

th
e

p
re

c
e
d

in
g

y
e
a
r)

is
a
s

fo
ll
o
w

s
:

• 
2
2

(5
0
%

)
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

th
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

ta
rg

e
t

fo
r

2
0
0

6
/0

7
;

• 
7

(1
6

%
)

d
id

n
o
t

a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
t
fo

r
2
0

0
6
/0

7
,

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
o
u

tt
u
rn

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

w
a
s

w
it
h

in
5

%
o
f

th
e

ta
rg

e
t
fo

r
th

e
y
e

a
r;

a
n

d

• 
1
5

(3
4
%

)
d
id

n
o
t

a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

ta
rg

e
t
fo

r
2

0
0

6
/0

7
a
n

d
o
u
tt

u
rn

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

w
a
s

n
o
t

w
it
h

in
5

%
o
f

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t
fo

r
th

e
y
e
a
r.

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



E
S

S
E

X
L

O
C

A
L

A
R

E
A

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T

A
C

T
IO

N
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
(A

S
A

T
3

1
M

A
R

C
H

2
0

0
7

)

L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
3

-
E

N
S

U
R

E
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

IS
D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

T
O

P
R

O
M

O
T

E
H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
L

IV
IN

G
IN

T
H

E
B

U
IL

T
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(1
)

T
o

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
(H

IA
s
)

fo
r

la
rg

e
r

p
la

n
n
in

g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

T
h
e

L
A

A
L

e
a
d

h
a
s

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

th
is

w
it
h

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

P
la

n
n

in
g

O
ff

ic
e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

(E
P

O
A

),
a
n

d
,

a
s

fa
r

a
s

E
p

p
in

g
is

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
,

it
is

 t
o
o

la
te

fo
r

u
s

to
h

a
v
e

s
o
u
g

h
t

a
n

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
o
n

to
o
u
r

lo
c
a
l
p

la
n

to
m

a
k
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

is
,

a
n

d
th

e
re

fo
re

th
is

w
ill

h
a
v
e

to
b

e
b
ro

u
g
h
t

in
v
ia

th
e

L
o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

(w
h

ic
h

w
e

c
a
n
’t

p
ro

c
e
e
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

w
it
h

u
n
ti
l
w

e
le

a
rn

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
e

R
e
g
io

n
a
l
P

la
n

,
a
n
d

in
a
d

d
it
io

n
w

e
h

a
v
e

u
n

ti
l
2

0
0

9
to

d
o
 t
h

is
).

T
h
e

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
(H

IA
)

fo
r

la
rg

e
r

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
k
n

o
w

n
B

y
2
0

0
9

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
L

o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

is
d

e
la

y
e
d

p
e
n
d

in
g

th
e

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l
o
f

th
e

fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
.

In
a
d

d
it
io

n
,

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t
fo

r
H

e
a
lt
h

is

u
n

d
e
rs

to
o
d

to
b

e
c
o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
o
n

a
d
if
fe

re
n
t

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
th

e
is

s
u

e
o
f

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

(2
)

T
o

h
a
v
e

a
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
h

o
m

e
s

b
y

2
0

0
9

A
t
th

e
E

P
O

A
th

e
re

w
a
s

s
o
m

e
d

e
b

a
te

a
s
 t

o
w

h
a
t 

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

a
c
tu

a
ll
y

is
,

a
n
d

th
is

is
p

ro
b

a
b
ly

s
ti
ll

s
o
m

e
w

h
a
t

u
n
c
le

a
r,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

a
g

a
in

w
e

s
o
u
g

h
t 

to
m

a
k
e

s
o
m

e
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

to
o
u
r

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
.

U
n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
th

is
w

a
s

o
n

e
o
f

th
e

fe
w

m
a
tt

e
rs

th
e

In
s
p

e
c
to

r
d
id

n
o
t

g
o

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h
,

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y

a
g

a
in

,
w

e
w

ill
h

a
v
e
 t

o
g

o
d

o
w

n
th

e
L
D

F
ro

u
te

to
b
ri

n
g

th
e
s
e

p
o
lic

ie
s

in
b

y
2

0
0

9
.

T
h
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
h

o
m

e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
k
n

o
w

n
B

y
2
0

0
9

T
h
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
h

o
m

e
s

b
u
ilt

u
s
in

g
H

o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

fu
n

d
in

g
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
o
m

e
s
im

ila
r

e
le

m
e
n

ts
to

th
o
s
e

re
q
u

ir
e
d

b
y

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

(L
H

S
),

h
o
w

e
v
e
r

n
o
t

a
ll

o
f 

th
e

L
H

S
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
c
o
v
e
re

d
.

In
th

e

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

o
f

a
n

E
s
s
e
x
-w

id
e

p
o
lic

y
re

q
u
ir

in
g

th
e

L
H

S
to

b
e

m
e
t,

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
b
u

ilt
to

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
is

b
e
in

g
u
s
e
d

a
s

a
p

ro
x
y

m
e

a
s
u
re

.
A

t
p
re

s
e
n
t

th
is

c
o
u

n
c
il

is
th

e
o
n

ly
a
u
th

o
ri

ty

in
E

s
s
e
x

to
h

a
v
e

a
n

a
d

o
p

te
d

a
p

o
lic

y
re

q
u
ir

in
g

a
n

y
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
r

h
o
m

e
s

c
o
n
fo

rm
in

g
to

th
e

L
H

S
.

(a
)

A
lt
e
r

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
, 

to
re

q
u
ir

e
a
t
le

a
s
t

1
0
%

o
f

h
o
m

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

o
n

n
e
w

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

to
b

e
b

u
ilt

to
th

e
L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

;

1
0

%
o
n

a
ll

la
rg

e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
N

o
n

e
J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
H

e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

to
re

p
o
rt

(3
)

T
h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

b
u

ilt
to

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

in
e
a
c
h

b
o
ro

u
g
h

/d
is

tr
ic

t
w

ill
b

e
a

m
in

im
u

m
o
f

3
%

o
f

a
n

n
u

a
l
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

b
y

2
0

0
9
.

(b
)

P
ro

d
u
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
l
P

la
n
n

in
g

P
o
lic

y
G

u
id

a
n
c
e

o
n

th
e

p
re

c
is

e
te

rm
s

a
n

d

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
o
f

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
th

e
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

th
e

A
lt
e
re

d
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n

re
la

ti
n
g

to
L

if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s
.

N
/A

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ro

m
e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

to
re

p
o
rt

Page 65



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
8

-
K

E
E

P
V

U
L

N
E

R
A

B
L

E
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

A
N

D
Y

O
U

N
G

P
E

O
P

L
E

S
A

F
E

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
fo

r

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(a
)

P
ro

v
id

e
3
7

b
e
d

s
p

a
c
e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
fo

r
s
in

g
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p

le
a
n
d

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

, 
th

ro
u
g

h
th

e
S

in
g
le

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

F
o
r

E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

(S
A

F
E

)
P

ro
je

c
t;

A
t
le

a
s
t

7
5

%
o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
 t
h

e

D
is

tr
ic

t
w

it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d

to
b

e
h

o
u
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

S
A

F
E

p
ro

je
c
t.

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

to
b

e
p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

N
a
c
ro

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

T
h
e

S
A

F
E

P
ro

je
c
t
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
p
ro

v
id

e
3
7

b
e
d
s
p

a
c
e
s
,

a
n

d
h

a
s

g
o

o
d

lia
is

o
n

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
w

it
h

th
e

L
e
a
v
in

g
a
n

d
A

ft
e
r

C
a
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

B
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
S

A
F

E
P

ro
je

c
t,

a
ll

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

a
n

d
n

e
e
d

in
g

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
s
s
is

te
d
.

(1
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

w
h

o
a
re

in
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

th
a
t

m
e
e
ts

th
e
ir

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r
s
u
p

p
o
rt

n
e
e
d

s
to

5
5
.5

%
.

(b
)

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

th
e

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a

fo
y
e
r

s
c
h

e
m

e
w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
D

is
tr

ic
t
fo

r
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

, 
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

,
s
k
ill

s
tr

a
in

in
g

a
n
d

s
u
p

p
o
rt

.

If
fe

a
s
ib

le
a
n

d
v
ia

b
le

, 
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

s
c
h

e
m

e
o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t

2
5

b
e
d
s
p

a
c
e
s
,

to
in

c
re

a
s
e

to
9
0

%
th

e
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le

le
a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t

w
it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d

w
h

o
a
re

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
te

d
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

E
a
s
t

T
h
a
m

e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
G

ro
u

p
a
n
d

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

F
o
y
e
r

P
ro

je
c
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

H
o
u
s
in

g
G

ro
u

p
h

a
s

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

s
tu

d
y
,

w
h
ic

h

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

th
a
t

a
F

o
y
e
r

w
o
u

ld
o
n

ly
b

e
v
ia

b
le

(a
n

d
w

o
u

ld
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

p
o
te

n
ti
a
ll
y

re
c
e
iv

e
s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

p
e
o
p

le
g

ra
n
t)

if
in

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0

0
ro

o
m

s
w

a
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

S
in

c
e
 t
h

is
w

o
u
ld

b
e
 t

o
o

la
rg

e
 t

o
s
u
s
ta

in
w

it
h

in
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t,

it
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

a
g
re

e
d

n
o
t

to
p
u
rs

u
e

a
n

y
fu

rt
h

e
r.

Page 66



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
0

-
R

E
D

U
C

E
C

R
IM

E
,
T

H
E

H
A

R
M

C
A

U
S

E
D

B
Y

 I
L

L
E

G
A

L
D

R
U

G
S

A
N

D
T

O
R

E
A

S
S

U
R

E
 T

H
E

P
U

B
L

IC

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(a
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
E

p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
ri

m
e

a
n
d

D
is

o
rd

e
r

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0
0

5
-0

8
;

A
ll 

ta
rg

e
ts

w
it
h
in

th
e

C
ri

m
e

a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n

P
la

n
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h

a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

(C
D

R
P

),
C

D
R

P
C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
ti
n
g

G
ro

u
p

a
n

d
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p
s

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

V
a
ri

o
u
s

d
a
te

s

1
A

p
ri
l
2

0
0

5
–

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

In
2
0

0
6
/0

7
th

e
C

D
R

P
h

a
s

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

to

im
p
ro

v
e

it
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.
In

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0
7

th
e

a
c
tu

a
l
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

re
p

o
rt

e
d

c
ri

m
e
s

w
a
s

re
c
o
rd

e
d

a
t

5
4

5
3
,

o
n

ly
3

1
2

in

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
5
1

4
1

ta
rg

e
t.

(1
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

c
ri

m
e
,

th
e

h
a
rm

c
a
u
s
e
d

b
y

ill
e
g

a
l
d
ru

g
s

a
n

d
to

re
a
s
s
u
re

th
e

p
u
b

lic

(b
)

T
o

p
re

p
a
re

,
m

o
n

it
o
r

a
n

d
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h

e
a
n

n
u

a
l
s
p

e
n
d

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
th

e
S

a
fe

r
S

tr
o
n
g

e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
b
lo

c
k

o
f

th
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

L
o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

(a
)

T
o

lia
is

e
w

it
h

a
n
d

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

a
ll

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
re

tu
rn

s
a
re

m
a
d

e

to
E

s
s
e
x

C
o
u

n
ty

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
L
A

A
c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
n

g
b

o
d

y
;

(b
)

T
o

lia
is

e
w

it
h

s
p

o
n
s
o
rs

o
f

a
ll

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

p
ro

je
c
ts

,
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g

p
ro

je
c
t
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s

a
re

m
e
t

a
n

d
n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

re
tu

rn
s

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
7

2
0

0
7
/0

8
b

u
d

g
e
t

a
g
re

e
d

.

(2
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

th
ro

u
g

h
d
ru

g

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

(a
)

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
C

ru
c
ia

l
C

re
w

S
c
h

e
m

e
;

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t
s
c
h

e
m

e
H

e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r,
C

D
R

P

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e

O
ff

ic
e

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

7
E

v
e
n
t 

to
b

e
h

e
ld

d
u
ri

n
g

J
u

n
e

2
0
0

7
a
t

G
ilw

e
ll

C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

C
e
n
tr

e
,

a
ll

s
c
h

o
o
ls

in
th

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

in
v
it
e
d

to
a
tt

e
n

d
.

Page 67



(b
)

T
o

p
u

b
lis

h
a

’J
u

n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h

ip
’

b
o
o
k
le

t;
O

b
ta

in
s
p

o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
ll

a
tt

e
n

d
e
e
s

o
f

C
ru

c
ia

l
C

re
w

S
c
h

e
m

e
w

it
h

J
u
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h

ip
b

o
o
k
le

t

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r,
C

D
R

P

F
ro

m
L
if
e
lo

n
g

L
e
a
rn

in
g

F
u
n

d
a
n

d
lo

c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

7
F

u
n

d
in

g
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

a
n

d
b

o
o
k
le

ts
fo

r
e
a
c
h

p
u

p
il

a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

s
u

p
p

lie
d

d
ir

e
c
t
to

s
c
h
o
o
ls

(c
)

K
n
if
e

c
ri

m
e

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

-
B

T
E

C
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

to
d

e
s
ig

n
a
n
d

p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
1

0
m

in
u

te
d

o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ry
a
s
 t

o
w

h
y

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
c
a
rr

y

k
n

iv
e
s

a
n
d

 t
h

e
ri

s
k
s

in
v
o
lv

e
d
;

1
0

m
in

u
te

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ry
to

b
e

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r 
/E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
o
lle

g
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

J
u
ly

2
0
0

7
T

w
o

g
ro

u
p
s

o
f

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
d

o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ri
e
s

(d
)

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l
T

a
c
k
lin

g
D

ru
g
s

D
a
y

(2
3
.5

.0
7
).

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

e
v
e
n

t
H

e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a
m

/E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
o
lle

g
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
y

2
0

0
7

M
u

lt
i
a
g

e
n
c
y

e
v
e
n

t
h

e
ld

 t
o

ill
u
s
tr

a
te

th
e

d
a
n
g

e
rs

o
f

d
ri

n
k
/d

ru
g

d
ri

v
in

g

(a
)

G
ra

ff
it
i
C

le
a
ra

n
c
e
;

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t

g
ra

ff
it
i
c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
t

O
n
g

o
in

g
D

ra
ft

g
ra

ff
it
i
p

o
lic

y
is

c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y

g
o
in

g
to

C
a
b

in
e
t

a
n

d
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

P
a
ri
s
h

a
n

d
T

o
w

n
C

o
u
n
c
ils

.
T

h
e

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a
m

is
a
ls

o
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

Y
o
u
th

O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
T

e
a
m

u
s
in

g

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
e
rv

ic
e

O
rd

e
rs

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

(b
)

H
e
lp

th
e

A
g

e
d

H
a
n
d

y
v
a
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
.

P
ro

v
id

e
a
n

d
fi
t

a
ra

n
g

e
o
f

s
e
c
u
ri

ty
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

in
e
ld

e
rl

y

p
e
o
p

le
s

h
o
m

e
s

w
it
h

n
o

c
h

a
rg

e
b

e
in

g
m

a
d

e
to

th
o
s
e

w
h

o
m

e
e
t

H
e
lp

th
e

A
g

e
d

c
ri

te
ri

a

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e

O
ff

ic
e

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
g

o
in

g
T

h
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
is

re
g

u
la

rl
y

p
ro

m
o
te

d
v
ia

lo
c
a
l
m

e
d
ia

a
n
d

 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(3
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

(c
)

H
a
te

C
ri

m
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
a
n

e
l

P
ro

v
id

e
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

tr
a
in

in
g

fo
r

re
p

o
rt

in
g

o
f

H
a
te

C
ri

m
e

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
g

o
in

g
T

ra
in

in
g

p
la

n
b

e
in

g
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
in

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

U
n
it
.

Page 68



(4
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

im
p

a
c
t

o
f

d
ru

g
/a

lc
o
h

o
l

u
s
e

in
th

e
s
tr

e
e
t

D
ru

g
s

d
e
b
ri
s

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

C
o
lle

c
t

d
e
b
ri
s

w
h

e
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
u
d

g
e
t

O
n
g

o
in

g
S

tr
e
e
t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
h

a
v
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u
t

2
0

0
6
/0

7
.

T
h

e
H

e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

is
n

o
t

a
w

a
re

o
f

d
ru

g
s

d
e
b
ri

s
b

e
in

g
a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
is

s
u

e
.

Page 69



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
1

-
B

U
IL

D
R

E
S

P
E

C
T

 I
N

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
A

N
D

R
E

D
U

C
E

A
N

T
I-

S
O

C
IA

L
B

E
H

A
V

IO
U

R

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(1
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ro

to
c
o
l
w

it
h

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

(A
S

B
)

is
s
u

e
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l

to
in

c
lu

d
e

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

le
a
d

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
n

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

re
c
e
iv

e
d

.

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

,
e
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
,

p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
ra

ft
p
ro

to
c
o
l
fo

r
d

e
b

a
te

,
a
n

d
im

p
le

m
e
n

t
a
g
re

e
d

p
ro

to
c
o
l

Im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

w
ri

tt
e
n

p
ro

to
c
o
l

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

B
u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
A

ll
R

e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o
c
ia

l
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s

n
o
w

in
v
it
e
d

to
a
tt

e
n
d

p
ro

b
le

m
-s

o
lv

in
g

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s

a
t

A
S

B
N

a
n
d

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

a
n

d
V

io
le

n
t
C

ri
m

e
G

ro
u
p
.

M
e
e
ti
n

g
s

h
e
ld

re
g
u

la
rl

y
to

a
d
d

re
s
s

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.
T

h
e

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
ta

s
k
in

g
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

o
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d
h

o
ld

th
e
m

a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
le

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 t

a
s
k
in

g
s

b
e
in

g
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t.

A
w

ri
tt

e
n

p
ro

to
c
o
l
is

n
o
t

re
q
u

ir
e
d

a
s

a
ll

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
w

o
rk

w
it
h
in

th
e

te
rm

s
o
f

re
fe

re
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

g
ro

u
p
s

(2
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
rn

a
l

s
ta

ff
 t
ra

in
in

g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

la
te

s
t
A

S
B

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
to

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

a
p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
A

S
B

w
o
rk

w
it
h

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il.

(a
)

D
e
te

rm
in

e
b

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
;

(b
)

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
d

e
x
p

e
rt

s
;

(c
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

re
le

v
a
n
t

C
o
u
n
c
il

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

tr
a
in

in
g

n
e
e
d
s
;

(d
)

P
ro

d
u
c
e

a
ro

lli
n
g

s
e
ri

e
s

o
f

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

s
ta

ff
.

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h

a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
D

R
P

,
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

N
e
tw

o
rk

(A
S

B
N

)
G

ro
u

p
a
n

d

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
T

ra
in

in
g

is
o
n

g
o
in

g
a
n
d

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
s
u
b
je

c
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
o
v
e
re

d
o
r

a
re

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

fo
r

c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

b
e
fo

re
th

e
e
n

d
o
f

2
0

0
7
:

• 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

t
ta

k
in

g
(E

F
D

C
s
ta

ff
);

• 
P

o
lic

e
a
n

d
C

ri
m

in
a
l
E

v
id

e
n
c
e

A
c
t

in
te

rv
ie

w
in

g
u
n

d
e
r

c
a
u

ti
o
n

(E
F

D
C

s
ta

ff
);

• 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
In

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

M
o
d

e
l

(C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

a
n

d
s
e
n
io

r
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
;

• 
R

o
le

o
f

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

m
u
lt
i
a
g

e
n
c
y

p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

;

• 
D

e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

In
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
;

• 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

s
u

rv
e
y
s
;

• 
T

h
e

la
w

re
la

ti
n
g

to
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

(P
o
lic

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
u
p

p
o
rt

O
ff

ic
e
rs

,
E

F
D

C
s
ta

ff
,

R
e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o
c
ia

ls
L

a
n
d

lo
rd

s
).

Page 70



(3
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

jo
in

t
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
o
n

th
e

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

o
f

P
C

S
O

's
.

O
b
ta

in
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l
re

tu
rn

to
m

o
n
it
o
r

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
.

(a
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
m

m
a
n

d
e
r,

s
e
e
k

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,

fo
rm

u
la

te
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n
d

o
b
ta

in
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r
P

o
lic

e
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
u
p

p
o
rt

O
ff

ic
e
rs

(P
C

S
O

s
);

(b
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

s
ys

te
m

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

C
o
u
n
c
il

le
d

ta
s
k
in

g
s
;

(c
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
lo

c
a
l
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
t

fo
r

th
e

h
a
n
d

lin
g

o
f

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
;

(d
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
D

IU
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

p
a
c
k
a
g

e
s

re
g

a
rd

in
g

A
S

B
to

b
e

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

d
to

in
te

re
s
te

d
C

o
u

n
c
il

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
.

(a
)

T
a
s
k
in

g
p

ro
fo

rm
a

d
ra

ft
e
d
.
T

a
s
k
in

g
re

s
u
lt
s

a
g
re

e
d

a
s

p
e
r

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
P

I's
.

T
o

b
e

re
tu

rn
e
d

fo
r

e
a
c
h

ta
s
k
in

g
;

(b
)

In
te

re
s
te

d
C

o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
b

e
n

o
ti
fi
e
d

.

S
tr

a
te

g
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

in
lin

e
w

it
h

J
o
in

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t
o
n

P
C

S
O

's
;

(c
)

L
o
c
a
l
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

t
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
;

(d
)

B
ri

e
fi
n

g
p

a
c
k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

fo
r

ta
rg

e
t

a
re

a

L
im

e
s
 F

a
rm

.
W

ill
b

e
u
p

d
a
te

d
a
s

n
e
w

o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

c
o
m

e
o
n

lin
e
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

A
c
ti
o
n
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

(4
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
g

e
n

e
ri
c

m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
re

c
u
rr

in
g

s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

(i
.e

.
T

ri
c
k

o
r

T
re

a
t,

fi
re

w
o
rk

s
)

(a
)

E
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
;

(b
)

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

lic
e
n
s
in

g
;

(c
)

L
ia

is
e

a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

C
R

O
a
n

d

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
P

ro
b

le
m

S
o
lv

e
r;

(d
)

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

T
ra

d
in

g
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
re

g
a
rd

in
g

T
P

w
o
rk

o
n

th
o
s
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

s
u
s
p

e
c
te

d
o
f

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n
ts

;

(e
)

T
a
s
k

P
C

S
O

's
;

(f
)

In
v
o
lv

e
S

c
h

o
o
ls

L
ia

is
o
n

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
.

A
g
re

e
d

m
u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

s
ig

n
e
d

u
p

to
b

y

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r

C
D

R
P

,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
W

o
rk

to
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
Y

o
u

th
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

T
e
a
m

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p

s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l
to

o
l
k
it
s

to
ta

c
k
le

re
c
u
rr

in
g

p
ro

b
le

m
s
.

T
h

e
s
e
 t

e
a
m

s
h

a
v
e

o
n

ly
re

c
e
n

tl
y

b
e

e
n

fo
rm

e
d

s
o

th
is

w
o
rk

is
in

e
a
rl

y
s
ta

g
e
s

o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
P

re
s
s

a
rt

ic
le

s
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
ra

ft
e
d

fo
r

s
o
m

e
s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l
is

s
u

e
s

a
n

d
p

o
s
te

rs

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

fo
r

th
o
s
e

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

th
e

p
u

b
lic

w
h

o
fe

e
l
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

.
T

h
is

is
a
ls

o
u
s
e
d

in
c
o
n

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s

w
e
b
s
it
e
 t

o
ra

is
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
.

W
o
rk

u
n

d
e
r

w
a
y

re
g

a
rd

in
g

ill
e
g

a
l
ta

x
i

to
u

ts
p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

a
n
d

m
o
re

p
la

n
n

e
d

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

a
n
d

p
ro

s
e
c
u
te

o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

.

Page 71



(5
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to

d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

S
e
c
u
re

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s

a
t

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
,
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

d
a
ta

s
h

a
ri

n
g

a
n

d
a
g
re

e
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

to
a
tt

e
n

d
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l

to
b

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,

A
S

B
N

G
ro

u
p

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
J
o
in

t
s
it
e

s
u
rv

e
y
s

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r.

T
h

o
s
e

e
m

e
rg

in
g

p
ro

b
le

m
a
re

a
s

a
re

v
is

it
e
d

a
n
d

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

m
a
d

e
c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

p
h

ys
ic

a
l
s
e
c
u
ri

ty
a
n
d

d
e
s
ig

n
.
T

a
s
k
in

g

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
a
g

re
e
d

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
fo

r
P

C
S

O
’s

a
n
d

N
P

T
to

b
e

d
ir

e
c
te

d
in

to
e
m

e
rg

in
g

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

to
g

a
th

e
r

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
,

re
-a

s
s
u
re

th
e

p
u
b

lic
a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri
m

e
.

J
o
in

t
A

c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p

s
e
t

u
p

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
to

re
g

u
la

rl
y

re
v
ie

w

e
m

e
rg

in
g

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

a
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

.
S

ys
te

m
p
u

t
in

p
la

c
e

b
y

A
S

B
C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r
to

p
ro

te
c
t

a
n

d
d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e

to
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
F

ie
ld

 I
n

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

O
ff

ic
e
rs

fo
r

a
c
ti
o
n

w
h

e
n

c
ri

m
in

a
l
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s

a
re

a
p

p
a
re

n
t.

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
In

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

M
o
d

e
l

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

u
s
e
d

fo
r

p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

ie

c
ri
m

e
p

a
tt

e
rn

a
n

a
ly

s
is

,
p
ro

b
le

m
p
ro

fi
le

s
,

a
n

d
ta

rg
e
t

p
ro

fi
le

s
.
T

h
e
s
e

p
ro

v
id

e
c
le

a
r

a
u

d
it
 t
ra

il
a
n

d
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

v
a
ri

o
u
s

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n

m
e
th

o
d
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

 t
h

e
m

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d
.

(6
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
n

in
te

ri
m

A
S

B
re

c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

(a
)

L
ia

is
e

IT
;

(b
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
A

c
c
e
s
s

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
;

(c
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

H
o
u
s
in

g
,

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n

d
R

S
L
's

;

(d
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
ys

te
m

o
f

re
c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

fr
o
m

a
ll

o
f

a
b

o
v
e
.

In
te

ri
m

 I
C

T
C

R
IS

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

in
s
ta

ll
e
d

1
2
.9

.0
6

A
S

B
P

ro
je

c
t
B

o
a
rd

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

s
ti
ll

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
-g

o
in

g
In

te
ri

m
A

S
B

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

in
p

la
c
e

b
u
t

d
o
e
s

n
o
t

p
ro

v
id

e
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t
c
la

ri
ty

,
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
r

d
e
ta

il
fo

r
p
u
rp

o
s
e
.
P

a
p

e
r

re
c
o
rd

s

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

u
s
e
d

.
S

a
fe

r
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

ill
b

e
m

o
v
in

g
to

a
c
u
s
to

m
b

u
ilt

A
S

B
d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

la
te

r
in

2
0
0

7
.
T

h
is

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
h

a
v
e

th
e

a
b

ili
ty

to
a
n

a
ly

s
e

e
m

e
rg

in
g

A
S

B
a
n

d
c
ri

m
e
 t
re

n
d
s

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
h

e
a
b

ili
ty

to
a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

ta
rg

e
t

p
ro

b
le

m
a
re

a
s
.

T
h

e
re

w
ill

a
ls

o
b

e
c
a
s
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
A

B
C

a
n
d

A
S

B
O

 t
ra

c
k
in

g
.

(7
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

in
g

a
th

e
ri

n
g

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

A
S

B

(a
)

O
b
ta

in
a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

C
D

R
P

C
C

T
V

;

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
o
n

u
s
e
;

(c
)

E
v
a
lu

a
te

n
e
w

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t
fo

r
s
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

A
g
re

e
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
fo

r
u
s
e

o
f

C
C

T
V

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

in
A

S
B

c
a
s
e
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P
,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
P

u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

3
G

w
ir

e
le

s
s

C
C

T
V

s
ys

te
m

s
a
t

a
n

a
d

v
a
n
c
e
d

s
ta

g
e
.
P

o
lic

y
a
n

d
p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
fo

r
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n

g
s
ys

te
m

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

w
ri
tt

e
n

a
n
d

is
a
w

a
it
in

g
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l .

Page 72



o
f

u
s
e

in
A

S
B

.

(8
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

a
p

o
s
it
iv

e
m

e
d
ia

s
tr

a
te

g
y

to

p
ro

m
o
te

C
D

R
P

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s

a
n
d

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

(a
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
m

e
d
ia

o
ff

ic
e
r

fo
r

E
p
p

in
g
 F

o
re

s
t
D

is
tr

ic
t;

(b
)

W
o
rk

w
it
h

C
D

R
P

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
to

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

p
ro

m
o
te

a
ll

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

m
e
d

ia
s
tr

a
te

g
y

H
e
a
d

o
f

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
a
n

d
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P
,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

E
n
d

A
u

g
u
s
t

2
0
0

7
O

n
g

o
in

g

L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
2

-
A

C
T

IV
E

L
Y

M
A

N
A

G
E

 O
U

R
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

o
r

lim
it

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
s
iz

e
o
f

E
s
s
e
x
’s

e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t

(a
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

is
s
u

e
s
;

(b
)

T
a
rg

e
t

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
b

y
:

• 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
in

g
o
r

a
t
ri

s
k

o
f

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
a
n
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

th
e
m

;

• 
E

n
d

e
a

v
o
u
ri

n
g

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
w

h
e
re

p
o
s
s
ib

le
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
to

c
o
n
d

u
c
t
H

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
n

e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s

to
m

a
p

th
e

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r;

• 
M

a
p
p

in
g

a
re

a
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

n
o
t
s
u

p
p

lie
d

w
it
h

m
a
in

g
a
s
;

• 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
n

e
rg

y
s
u

rv
e
y
s

to
g

a
th

e
r

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
g

a
rd

in
g

fu
e
l

p
o
v
e
rt

y
w

it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t;

• 
T

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
s
u

it
a
b
le

p
ro

je
c
t

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
a
t
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
/a

re
a
s

m
o
s
t

a
t

ri
s
k

o
f

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
.

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

o
f

s
c
h

o
o
l
v
is

it
s
,

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

a
t

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a
l

e
v
e
n

ts
to

p
u
b

lic
is

e

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

e
tc

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

N
o

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

re
q
u

ir
e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
t

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0
7

A
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

s
c
h

o
o
l
v
is

it
s

is
in

p
la

c
e

a
n

d
1

2
v
is

it
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

s
o

fa
r,

w
it
h

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

m
a
jo

ri
n
g

o
n

e
n

e
rg

y
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

a
n
d

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
e
tc

.

A
‘G

re
e
n

F
a
y
re

’
w

a
s

h
e
ld

in
B

u
c
k
h

u
rs

t
H

ill
in

S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

a
n

d
is

to
b

e

re
p

e
a
te

d
in

2
0

0
7
.

T
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
is

w
o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

L
e
a

V
a
ll
e
y

R
e
g

io
n

a
l
P

a
rk

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

 t
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
is

s
u

e
s

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

4
0

th

a
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

e
v
e
n

ts

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
is

s
u

e
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

s
ta

lls

in
lo

c
a
l
m

a
rk

e
ts

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
e
n

e
rg

y
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

C
A

R
E

A
g

e
n
c
y,

a
n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

d
is

p
la

ys

a
t
th

e
C

iv
ic

O
ff

ic
e
s
.

T
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
h

a
s

w
o
rk

e
d

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

E
n

e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

A
d

v
ic

e
C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o

p
ro

v
id

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
h

o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

,
s
o

a
s
 t

o
a
ls

o
a
s
s
is

t
in

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

.

E
n

e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r

Page 73



H
o
u
s
e

C
o
n
d

it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y
.

T
o

m
a
x
im

is
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
f

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

w
a
s
te

(a
)

T
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

w
h

e
e
le

d
b
in

b
a
s
e
d

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
s
e
rv

ic
e
;

(b
)

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

n
e
e
d
 t

o
re

c
yc

le
m

o
re

a
n

d
th

ro
w

a
w

a
y

le
s
s
.

(a
)

W
h
e
e
le

d
b

in
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
b

y
 t
h

e
e
n

d
o
f

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6
;

(b
)

A
c
h
ie

v
e

3
0

%
re

c
yc

lin
g

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

a
n

d
3

6
%

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
s
ic

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

in

p
la

c
e
,

b
u

t
s
u

b
je

c
t

to
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l
re

v
ie

w

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

fo
r

p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,
n

e
w

e
x
h

ib
it
io

n
c
a
ra

v
a
n

a
c
q
u

ir
e
d

a
n

d
n

o
w

re
a
d

y
fo

r
u
s
e

M
o
re

le
a
fl
e
ts

e
tc

re
q

u
ir

e
d

w
h

ic
h

w
ill

re
q

u
ir

e
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g

R
o
ll

o
u
t
c
o
m

p
le

te

b
y

3
1

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

3
0

%
re

c
y
c
lin

g
b

y
3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

3
6

%
re

c
y
c
lin

g
b

y
3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

T
h
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
W

h
e
e
le

d
B

in

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h

e
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
re

c
yc

lin
g

o
u
tt

u
rn

fo
r

2
0

0
6
/0

7
is

3
7
.0

9
%

A
s
ys

te
m

o
f

w
e
e
k
ly

s
u
m

m
e
r

re
fu

s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

in

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
lo

c
a
l
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
n

e
w

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
is

u
n

d
e
rw

a
y

a
n
d

,
o
n
c
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

w
ill

b
e

m
a
d

e
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

to

in
c
re

a
s
e

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

in
o
rd

e
r

to
m

a
in

ta
in

re
c
yc

lin
g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

Im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s

o
f

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

g
a
te

w
a

y

a
re

a
s

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

A
g

e
n
c
y

(E
P

A
)

c
a
te

g
o
ry

fo
r

g
a
te

w
a

y
a
re

a
s
;

(b
)

R
e
-e

x
p

lo
re

th
e

o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

u
s
in

g
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

p
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l
fo

r
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
w

o
rk

s
.

(a
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

p
u

b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

a
n

d
B

V
1

9
9
 t

a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

g
a
te

w
a

y

a
re

a
s
;

(b
)

T
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

p
ro

to
c
o
l
w

it
h

th
e

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

fo
r

ro
u
ti
n

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(a
)

D
e
p

e
n

d
a
n
t

u
p

o
n

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
e

re
v
ie

w
;

(b
)

N
o
n

e
if

w
h

o
ll
y

p
ro

v
id

e
b

y
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

P
a
rt

o
f

re
v
ie

w
o
f

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
(b

y
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

7
)

P
ro

to
c
o
l
in

p
la

c
e

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

T
h
e

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
n

e
w

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
c
o
n
ta

in
s

e
n

h
a
n
c
e
d

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
s
tr

e
e
t
c
le

a
n
s
in

g

b
e
y
o
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

b
y

th
e

E
P

A
C

o
d

e
o
f

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

N
o

p
ro

g
re

s
s

h
a
s

y
e
t

b
e
e
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

w
it
h

re
g

a
rd

to
 t
h

e
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
p
ro

to
c
o
l

w
it
h

 t
h

e
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

Page 74



E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

(J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

)

1

W
E

A
K

N
E

S
S

(A
N

D
C

P
A

R
E

P
O

R
T

R
E

F
)

A
C

T
IO

N
(S

)
L

E
A

D
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

IT
Y

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

(1
)

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

is
o
n
ly

n
o
w

e
m

e
rg

in
g

a
n
d

h
a
s

w
e

a
k
n
e

s
s
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p
o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

2
6
,

1
0
6
)

(a
)

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

a
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

ro
le

in
th

e
L
o
c
a
l
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
(L

S
P

) 
th

e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

ta
k
e

fo
rw

a
rd

k
e
y
 t

h
e
m

e
s

a
n
d

a
c
ti
o
n
s

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
)

S
p
e
c
if
ic

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

w
e
re

s
e
t

in
M

a
y

2
0
0
5
,

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h
 t

h
e

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

re
s
p
o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

fo
r

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

v
ia

a
ra

n
g
e

o
f 

th
e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d

b
y
 t

h
e

L
S

P
.

T
h
e

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d
 t

h
e

L
S

P
w

a
s

re
v
ie

w
e
d

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
0
6
/0

7
b
y

a
n

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 t

a
s
k

a
n
d

fi
n
is

h
p
a
n
e
l.

T
h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

is
a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
is

s
u
e

a
n
d
 t

h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t/
F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

h
a
s

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

a
c
ti
o
n

re
m

a
in

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
p
la

n
in

v
ie

w
o
f 

th
e

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

L
o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t
(L

A
A

)
fo

r
E

s
s
e
x
.
A

re
p
o
rt

o
n
 t

h
e

re
fr

e
s
h

o
f 

th
e

L
A

A
is

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y
 t

h
e

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

Page 75



E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

(J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

)

2

(b
)

M
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s

o
f 

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
c
ti
o
n
s

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

L
S

P
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

T
h
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
e
d

a
n
d

u
p
d
a
te

d
b
y
 t

h
e

L
S

P
’s

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

o
n

a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
b
a
s
is

a
n
d

a
re

n
o
w

a
li
g
n
e
d

w
it
h
 t

h
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
A

A
.

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

w
il
l
b
e

re
v
ie

w
e
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

in
lin

e
w

it
h

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

o
n

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

T
h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

is
a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
is

s
u
e

a
n
d
 t

h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t/
F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

h
a
s

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

a
c
ti
o
n

re
m

a
in

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
p
la

n
in

v
ie

w
o
f 

th
e

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
A

A
.
A

re
p
o
rt

o
n
 t

h
e

re
fr

e
s
h

o
f 

th
e

L
A

A
is

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y
 t

h
e

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

(c
)

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

p
la

y
s

a
fu

ll
p
a
rt

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

in
 t

e
rm

s
o
f

d
ri
v
in

g
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
h
e

a
c
ti
o
n
s

in
th

e
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
h
e

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

in
th

e
L
S

P
’s

th
e
m

e
d

a
c
ti
o
n

g
ro

u
p
s

w
a

s
c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

th
e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

re
v
ie

w
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
0
6
/0

7
.

T
h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

is
a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
is

s
u
e

a
n
d
 t

h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t/
F

in
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

h
a
s

a
g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

a
c
ti
o
n

re
m

a
in

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
p
la

n
in

v
ie

w
o
f 

th
e

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
A

A
.

A
re

p
o
rt

o
n

th
e

re
fr

e
s
h

o
f

th
e

L
A

A
is

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y
 t

h
e

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

Page 76



E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

(J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

)

3

(2
)

N
o

c
la

ri
ty

a
ro

u
n
d

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l
a
n
d

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p
o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

3
1
)

(a
)

A
n
a
ly

s
e

le
v
e
ls

o
f

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n

b
y

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
w

a
rd

s
w

it
h

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
th

e
In

d
ic

e
s

o
f

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
.

J
o
in

t
C

h
ie

f
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
)

A
n

a
n
a
ly

s
is

o
f

le
v
e
ls

o
f

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n

b
y

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l
w

a
rd

s
h
a

s
b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
n
d

a
li
g
n
e
d

w
it
h

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

L
A

A
.

A
re

p
o
rt

o
n

th
e

re
fr

e
s
h

o
f

th
e

L
A

A
is

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y
 t

h
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
fo

r
2
0
0
6
 t

o
2
0
1
0

in
c
lu

d
e
s

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t

o
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

it
s

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t
o
f

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

s
e
t

o
u
t

in
 t

h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
la

n
is

 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y

th
e

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l

o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

(3
)

M
ix

e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

a
n
d

p
a
rt

n
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

(C
P

A
R

e
p
o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

6
7
)

(a
)

A
ll

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

to
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
sf

a
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d
,

w
h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

,
to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

a
c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e

s
a
ti
sf

a
c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

.

A
ll

H
e
a
d
s

o
f

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
sf

a
c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

(2
0
0
3
/0

4
)

a
ls

o
p
ro

v
id

e
d

m
ix

e
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
,

a
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n

s
h
a
re

d
b
y

a
m

a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

lo
c
a
l

a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

a
t 

th
a
t
ti
m

e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
sf

a
c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

h
a
v
e

re
c
e
n
tl
y

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
,

a
n
d
 t

h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
il
l
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t/
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

a
n
d

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

in
 t

h
e

n
e
a
r

fu
tu

re
.
A

c
ti
o
n

p
la

n
s

w
il
l
b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

w
h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

im
p
ro

v
e

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

th
e

s
u
rv

e
y

re
s
u
lt
s
.

Page 77



E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

(J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

)

4

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

a
n
d

m
e
a
s
u
ri

n
g

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
sf

a
c
ti
o
n

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
’s

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

A
n
e
w

P
u
b
li
c

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,
a
n
d

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
n

a
n
n
u
a
l
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
w

e
re

a
g
re

e
d

b
y

C
a
b
in

e
t
in

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
6
.

T
h
e

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

P
la

n
fo

r
2
0
0
7
/0

8
w

a
s

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y
 t

h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t

o
n

1
1

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7

a
n
d

w
il
l
b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e

F
in

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l
o
n

1
9

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.

A
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
fu

rt
h
e
r

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

c
e
ip

t
o
f

re
s
u
lt
s

in
n

re
la

ti
o
n

to
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
s

fo
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7
.

(a
)

C
o
n
s
id

e
r

re
-i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

S
ta

ff
S

u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r 

th
e

re
-i

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
S

ta
ff

S
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n

S
c
h
e
m

e
w

e
re

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
b
y

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

B
o
a
rd

in
A

u
g
u
s
t

2
0
0
6
. 

T
h
e
s
e

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

a
re

 t
o

b
e

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

w
it
h
 t

h
e

L
e
a
d
e
r

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

o
n
 t

h
e

b
a
s
is

o
f

th
e

re
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

a
s
c
h
e
m

e
fo

r
a
 t

w
e
lv

e
-m

o
n
th

tr
ia

l
b
a
s
is

,
p
o
s
s
ib

ly
in

 t
a
n
d
e
m

w
it
h

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

re
c
e
n
tl
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

fo
r

a
T

e
a
m

/S
e
c
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

Y
e
a
r

a
w

a
rd

.

(4
)

L
e
a
rn

in
g

n
o
t

s
y
s
te

m
is

e
d

in
to

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

(C
P

A
R

e
p
o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

9
9
)

(b
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
ta

ff
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
ta

ff
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

w
e
re

a
n

is
s
u
e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
u
rv

e
y

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

d
u
ri
n
g

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

fo
r

im
p
ro

v
e
d

s
ta

ff
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
a
re

 t
o

b
e

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 I

n
v
e
s
to

rs
 I

n
P

e
o
p
le

(I
IP

)
re

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s

d
u
ri

n
g

2
0
0
7
/0

8
,

le
d

b
y

th
e

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
II

P
S

te
e
ri
n
g

G
ro

u
p
.

Page 78



E
p

p
in

g
F

o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
s

s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

(J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

)

5

(5
)

L
im

it
e
d

c
ro

s
s
-d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l
fa

u
lt

re
p
o
rt

in
g

(C
P

A
R

e
p
o
rt

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
5
2
).

(a
)

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

fo
r

c
ro

s
s
-

s
e
rv

ic
e

fa
u
lt

re
p
o
rt

in
g

a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
re

a
s
.

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
u
m

a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

It
w

a
s

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t
th

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
o
f

a
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
c
u
s
to

m
e
r

c
o
n
ta

c
t

c
e
n
tr

e
w

o
u
ld

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

is
s
u
e
,

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 T

h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
h
a
s

s
in

c
e

b
e
e
n

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

u
n
ti
l
fu

rt
h
e
r

c
a
p
it
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
is

a
v
a
il
a
b
le

.

C
ro

s
s
-d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l
fa

u
lt

re
p
o
rt

in
g

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

a
re

 t
o

b
e

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
fo

r
p
o
s
s
ib

le
in

c
lu

s
io

n
in

 t
h
e

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
S

ta
ff

In
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,
w

h
ic

h
is

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
re

v
is

e
d
.

.

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



E
S

S
E

X
L

O
C

A
L

A
R

E
A

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T

A
C

T
IO

N
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
(A

S
A

T
3

1
M

A
R

C
H

2
0

0
7

)

L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
3

-
E

N
S

U
R

E
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

IS
D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

T
O

P
R

O
M

O
T

E
H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
L

IV
IN

G
IN

T
H

E
B

U
IL

T
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(1
)

T
o

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
(H

IA
s
)

fo
r

la
rg

e
r

p
la

n
n
in

g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

T
h
e

L
A

A
L

e
a
d

h
a
s

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

th
is

w
it
h

th
e

E
s
s
e
x

P
la

n
n

in
g

O
ff

ic
e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

(E
P

O
A

),
a
n

d
,

a
s

fa
r

a
s

E
p

p
in

g
is

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
,

it
is

 t
o
o

la
te

fo
r

u
s

to
h

a
v
e

s
o
u
g

h
t

a
n

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
o
n

to
o
u
r

lo
c
a
l
p

la
n

to
m

a
k
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

is
,

a
n

d
th

e
re

fo
re

th
is

w
ill

h
a
v
e

to
b

e
b
ro

u
g
h
t

in
v
ia

th
e

L
o
c
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

(w
h

ic
h

w
e

c
a
n
’t

p
ro

c
e
e
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

w
it
h

u
n
ti
l
w

e
le

a
rn

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
e

R
e
g
io

n
a
l
P

la
n

,
a
n
d

in
a
d

d
it
io

n
w

e
h

a
v
e

u
n

ti
l
2

0
0

9
to

d
o
 t
h

is
).

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
la

rg
e
r

p
la

n
n
in

g
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(H
IA

’s
)

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
k
n

o
w

n
B

y
2
0

0
9

T
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
L

o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

is
d

e
la

y
e
d

p
e
n
d

in
g

th
e

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l
o
f

th
e

fi
n

a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

o
f

th
e

E
a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
.

In
a
d

d
it
io

n
,

th
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t
fo

r
H

e
a
lt
h

is

u
n

d
e
rs

to
o
d

to
b

e
c
o
n
s
u

lt
in

g
o
n

a
d
if
fe

re
n
t

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
th

e
is

s
u

e
o
f

H
e
a
lt
h

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

(2
)

T
o

h
a
v
e

a
m

in
im

u
m

o
f

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
h

o
m

e
s

b
y

2
0

0
9

A
t
th

e
E

P
O

A
th

e
re

w
a
s

s
o
m

e
d

e
b

a
te

a
s
 t

o
w

h
a
t 

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

a
c
tu

a
ll
y

is
,

a
n
d

th
is

is
p

ro
b

a
b
ly

s
ti
ll

s
o
m

e
w

h
a
t

u
n
c
le

a
r,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

a
g

a
in

w
e

s
o
u
g

h
t 

to
m

a
k
e

s
o
m

e
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

to
o
u
r

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
.

U
n
fo

rt
u

n
a
te

ly
th

is
w

a
s

o
n

e
o
f

th
e

fe
w

m
a
tt

e
rs

th
e

In
s
p

e
c
to

r
d
id

n
o
t

g
o

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h
,

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y

a
g

a
in

,
w

e
w

ill
h

a
v
e
 t

o
g

o
d

o
w

n
th

e
L
D

F
ro

u
te

to
b
ri

n
g

th
e
s
e

p
o
lic

ie
s

in
b

y
2

0
0

9
.

3
%

lif
e
ti
m

e
s

h
o
m

e
s

m
in

im
u

m
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
k
n

o
w

n
B

y
2
0

0
9

T
h
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
h

o
m

e
s

b
u
ilt

u
s
in

g
H

o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

fu
n

d
in

g
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
o
m

e
s
im

ila
r

e
le

m
e
n

ts
to

th
o
s
e

re
q
u

ir
e
d

b
y

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

(L
H

S
),

h
o
w

e
v
e
r

n
o
t

a
ll

o
f 

th
e

L
H

S
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
c
o
v
e
re

d
.

In
th

e

a
b
s
e
n
c
e

o
f

a
n

E
s
s
e
x
-w

id
e

p
o
lic

y
re

q
u
ir

in
g

th
e

L
H

S
to

b
e

m
e
t,

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
b
u

ilt
to

H
o
u
s
in

g
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
is

b
e
in

g
u
s
e
d

a
s

a
p

ro
x
y

m
e

a
s
u
re

.
A

t
p
re

s
e
n
t

th
is

c
o
u

n
c
il

is
th

e
o
n

ly
a
u
th

o
ri

ty

in
E

s
s
e
x

to
h

a
v
e

a
n

a
d

o
p

te
d

a
p

o
lic

y
re

q
u
ir

in
g

a
n

y
p

ro
v
is

io
n

fo
r

h
o
m

e
s

c
o
n
fo

rm
in

g
to

th
e

L
H

S
.

(a
)

A
lt
e
r

th
e

E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

L
o
c
a
l
P

la
n
, 

to
re

q
u
ir

e
a
t
le

a
s
t

1
0
%

o
f

h
o
m

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

o
n

n
e
w

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

to
b

e
b

u
ilt

to
th

e
L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

;

1
0

%
o
n

a
ll

la
rg

e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
N

o
n

e
J
u
ly

2
0
0

6
H

e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

to
re

p
o
rt

(3
)

T
h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

n
e
w

h
o
m

e
s

b
u

ilt
to

th
e

L
if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

in
e
a
c
h

b
o
ro

u
g
h

/d
is

tr
ic

t
w

ill
b

e
a

m
in

im
u

m
o
f

3
%

o
f

a
n

n
u

a
l
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

b
y

2
0

0
9
.

(b
)

P
ro

d
u
c
e

in
fo

rm
a
l
P

la
n
n

in
g

P
o
lic

y
G

u
id

a
n
c
e

o
n

th
e

p
re

c
is

e
te

rm
s

a
n

d

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
o
f

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
th

e
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

th
e

A
lt
e
re

d
L

o
c
a
l
P

la
n

re
la

ti
n
g

to
L

if
e
ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

N
/A

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ro

m
e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

to
re

p
o
rt

Agenda Item 11

Page 81



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
8

-
K

E
E

P
V

U
L

N
E

R
A

B
L

E
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

A
N

D
Y

O
U

N
G

P
E

O
P

L
E

S
A

F
E

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(a
)

P
ro

v
id

e
3
7

b
e
d

s
p

a
c
e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t
fo

r
s
in

g
le

h
o
m

e
le

s
s

p
e
o
p

le
a
n
d

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

, 
th

ro
u
g

h
th

e

S
in

g
le

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

F
o
r

E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

(S
A

F
E

)
P

ro
je

c
t.

A
t
le

a
s
t

7
5

%
o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
 t
h

e
D

is
tr

ic
t

w
it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d

to
b

e
h

o
u
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

S
A

F
E

p
ro

je
c
t

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

to
b

e
p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

N
a
c
ro

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

T
h
e

S
A

F
E

P
ro

je
c
t
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s

to
p
ro

v
id

e
3
7

b
e
d
s
p

a
c
e
s
,

a
n

d
h

a
s

g
o

o
d

lia
is

o
n

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
w

it
h

th
e

L
e
a
v
in

g
a
n

d
A

ft
e
r

C
a
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

B
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
S

A
F

E
P

ro
je

c
t,

a
ll

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

a
n

d
n

e
e
d

in
g

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

a
re

a
s
s
is

te
d
.

(1
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

th
e

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

w
h

o

a
re

in
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

th
a
t

m
e
e
ts

th
e
ir

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r
s
u
p

p
o
rt

n
e
e
d

s

to
5
5
.5

%
.

(b
)

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

th
e

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a

fo
y
e
r

s
c
h

e
m

e
w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
D

is
tr

ic
t
fo

r
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g

c
a
re

, 
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

,
s
k
ill

s
tr

a
in

in
g

a
n
d

s
u
p

p
o
rt

.

If
fe

a
s
ib

le
a
n

d
v
ia

b
le

, 
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

s
c
h

e
m

e
o
f

a
t

le
a
s
t

2
5

b
e
d
s
p

a
c
e
s
,

to

in
c
re

a
s
e

to
9
0

%
th

e
n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
le

a
v
in

g
c
a
re

in
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t

w
it
h

a
n

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
ti
o
n

n
e
e
d

w
h

o
a
re

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

a
te

d

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

b
e

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

b
y

E
a
s
t

T
h
a
m

e
s

G
ro

u
p

a
n
d

th
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

F
o
y
e
r

P
ro

je
c
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

E
a
s
t
T

h
a
m

e
s

h
a
s

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

s
tu

d
y
,

w
h

ic
h

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

th
a
t

a
F

o
y
e
r

w
o
u

ld
o
n
ly

b
e

v
ia

b
le

(a
n

d
w

o
u
ld

th
e
re

fo
re

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

re
c
e
iv

e
s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

p
e
o
p

le
g
ra

n
t)

if
in

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

1
0
0

ro
o
m

s
w

a
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

.
S

in
c
e

th
is

w
o
u
ld

b
e

to
o

la
rg

e
 t

o
s
u
s
ta

in
w

it
h
in

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t,
it

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
g

re
e
d

n
o
t
to

p
u
rs

u
e

a
n

y
fu

rt
h

e
r.

Page 82



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
0

-
R

E
D

U
C

E
C

R
IM

E
,
T

H
E

H
A

R
M

C
A

U
S

E
D

B
Y

 I
L

L
E

G
A

L
D

R
U

G
S

A
N

D
T

O
R

E
A

S
S

U
R

E
 T

H
E

P
U

B
L

IC

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(a
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
E

p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
ri

m
e

a
n
d

D
ru

g
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0
0

5
-0

8
;

A
ll 

ta
rg

e
ts

w
it
h
in

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n

P
la

n
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

(C
D

R
P

),
C

D
R

P
C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
ti
n
g

G
ro

u
p

a
n

d
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

A
c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p
s

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

V
a
ri

o
u
s

d
a
te

s

1
A

p
ri
l
2

0
0

5
–

3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

In
2
0

0
6
/0

7
th

e
C

D
R

P
h

a
s

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

to

im
p
ro

v
e

it
s

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.
In

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0
7

th
e

a
c
tu

a
l
n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

re
p

o
rt

e
d

c
ri

m
e
s

w
a
s

re
c
o
rd

e
d

a
t

5
4

5
3
,

o
n

ly
3

1
2

in

e
x
c
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
5
1

4
1

ta
rg

e
t.

(1
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

c
ri

m
e
,

th
e

h
a
rm

c
a
u
s
e
d

b
y

ill
e
g

a
l
d
ru

g
s

a
n

d
re

a
s
s
u
re

th
e

p
u
b

lic

(b
)

T
o

p
re

p
a
re

,
m

o
n

it
o
r

a
n

d
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h

e
a
n

n
u

a
l
s
p

e
n
d

in
g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
th

e
S

a
fe

r

S
tr

o
n
g

e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
b
lo

c
k

o
f

th
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

L
o
c
a
l
A

re
a

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

(a
)

T
o

lia
is

e
w

it
h

a
n
d

e
n
s
u
re

th
a
t

a
ll

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l
re

tu
rn

s
a
re

m
a
d

e
to

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u

n
ty

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
L
A

A
c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
n

g
b

o
d

y
;

(b
)

T
o

lia
is

e
w

it
h

s
p

o
n
s
o
rs

o
f

a
ll

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

p
ro

je
c
ts

,
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g

p
ro

je
c
t
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s

a
re

m
e
t

a
n

d
n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

re
tu

rn
s

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
.

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

A
p
ri

l
2

0
0
7

2
0

0
7
/0

8
b

u
d

g
e
t

a
g
re

e
d

.

(a
)

T
o

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
C

ru
c
ia

l
C

re
w

S
c
h

e
m

e
;

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t
s
c
h

e
m

e
C

ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r,
C

D
R

P

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

7
E

v
e
n
t 

to
b

e
h

e
ld

fr
o
m

1
1
 t

o
2

5
J
u

n
e

2
0

0
7

a
t
G

ilw
e
ll

C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e

C
e
n

tr
e
,

a
ll

s
c
h
o
o
ls

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t
to

a
tt

e
n
d

.

(b
)

T
o

p
u

b
lis

h
a

’J
u

n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h

ip
’

b
o
o
k
le

t;
O

b
ta

in
s
p

o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
ll

a
tt

e
n

d
e
e
s

o
f

C
ru

c
ia

l
C

re
w

S
c
h

e
m

e
w

it
h

J
u
n
io

r
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h

ip
b

o
o
k
le

t

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r,
C

D
R

P

F
ro

m
L
if
e
lo

n
g

L
e
a
rn

in
g

F
u
n

d
a
n

d
lo

c
a
l

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

in
th

e
d
is

tr
ic

t

J
u
n

e
2

0
0

7
F

u
n

d
in

g
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

a
n

d
b

o
o
k
le

ts
fo

r
e
a
c
h

p
u

p
il

a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

s
u

p
p

lie
d

d
ir

e
c
t
to

s
c
h
o
o
ls

(c
)

K
n
if
e

c
ri

m
e

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

-
B

T
E

C
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

to
d

e
s
ig

n
a
n
d

p
ro

d
u
c
e

a
1

0
m

in
u

te
d

o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ry
a
s
 t

o
w

h
y

y
o
u

n
g

p
e
o
p

le
c
a
rr

y

k
n

iv
e
s

a
n
d

 t
h

e
ri

s
k
s

in
v
o
lv

e
d
;

1
0

m
in

u
te

d
o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ry
to

b
e

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r 
/E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
o
lle

g
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

J
u
ly

2
0
0

7
T

w
o

g
ro

u
p
s

o
f

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
d

o
c
u

m
e
n
ta

ri
e
s

(2
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

th
ro

u
g

h
d
ru

g
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

(d
)

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l
T

a
c
k
lin

g
D

ru
g
s

D
a
y

(2
3
.5

.0
7
).

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

e
v
e
n

t
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a
m

/E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
E

p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

C
o
lle

g
e

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
y

2
0

0
7

M
u

lt
i
a
g

e
n
c
y

e
v
e
n

t
h

e
ld

 t
o

ill
u
s
tr

a
te

th
e

d
a
n
g

e
rs

o
f

d
ri

n
k
/d

ru
g

d
ri

v
in

g

Page 83



(a
)

G
ra

ff
it
i
C

le
a
ra

n
c
e
;

C
a
rr

y
o
u
t

g
ra

ff
it
i
c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

a
s

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
t

O
n
g

o
in

g
D

ra
ft

g
ra

ff
it
i
p

o
lic

y
is

c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y

g
o
in

g
to

C
a
b

in
e
t

a
n

d
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

P
a
ri
s
h

a
n

d
T

o
w

n
C

o
u
n
c
ils

.
T

h
e

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
T

e
a
m

is
a
ls

o
w

o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

Y
o
u
th

O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
T

e
a
m

u
s
in

g

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
e
rv

ic
e

O
rd

e
rs

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.

(b
)

H
e
lp

th
e

A
g

e
d

H
a
n
d

y
v
a
n

S
c
h

e
m

e
.

P
ro

v
id

e
a
n

d
fi
t

a
ra

n
g

e
o
f

s
e
c
u
ri

ty
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

in
e
ld

e
rl

y
p

e
o
p

le
s

h
o
m

e
s

w
it
h

n
o

c
h

a
rg

e
b

e
in

g
m

a
d

e
to

th
o
s
e

w
h

o
m

e
e
t

H
e
lp

th
e

A
g

e
d

c
ri

te
ri

a

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
g

o
in

g
T

h
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
is

re
g

u
la

rl
y

p
ro

m
o
te

d
v
ia

lo
c
a
l
m

e
d
ia

a
n
d

 t
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

(3
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

(c
)

H
a
te

C
ri

m
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

P
a
n

e
l

P
ro

v
id

e
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

tr
a
in

in
g

fo
r

re
p

o
rt

in
g

o
f

H
a
te

C
ri

m
e

a
n
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

C
ri
m

e
a
n

d
D

is
o
rd

e
r

R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
b
u

d
g

e
ts

,
C

D
R

P
H

o
m

e

O
ff

ic
e

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
g

o
in

g
T

ra
in

in
g

p
la

n
b

e
in

g
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

a
in

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

H
u

m
a
n

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

U
n
it
.

(4
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

Im
p

a
c
t

o
f

d
ru

g
/a

lc
o
h

o
l
u
s
e

in

th
e

s
tr

e
e
t

D
ru

g
s

d
e
b
ri
s

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

C
o
lle

c
t

d
e
b
ri
s

w
h

e
n

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e

in
c
id

e
n
c
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
u
d

g
e
t

O
n
g

o
in

g
S

tr
e
e
t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
h

a
v
e

im
p
ro

v
e
d

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
th

ro
u
g

h
o
u
t

2
0

0
6
/0

7
.

T
h

e
H

e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

is
n

o
t

a
w

a
re

o
f

d
ru

g
s

d
e
b
ri

s
b

e
in

g
a
n

o
n
-g

o
in

g
is

s
u

e
.

Page 84



L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
1

-
B

U
IL

D
R

E
S

P
E

C
T

 I
N

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
A

N
D

R
E

D
U

C
E

A
N

T
I-

S
O

C
IA

L
B

E
H

A
V

IO
U

R

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

(1
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

w
o
rk

in
g

p
ro

to
c
o
l
w

it
h

a
ll

re
le

v
a
n

t
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

(A
S

B
)

is
s
u

e
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l

to
in

c
lu

d
e

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g

le
a
d

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t

o
n

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

re
c
e
iv

e
d

.

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

,
e
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
,

p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
ra

ft
p
ro

to
c
o
l
fo

r
d

e
b

a
te

,
a
n

d
im

p
le

m
e
n

t
a
g
re

e
d

p
ro

to
c
o
l

Im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f

w
ri

tt
e
n

p
ro

to
c
o
l

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s

B
u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

A
u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

A
ll

R
e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o
c
ia

l
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s

n
o
w

in
v
it
e
d

to
a
tt

e
n
d

p
ro

b
le

m
-s

o
lv

in
g

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s

a
t

A
S

B
N

a
n
d

A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

a
n

d
V

io
le

n
t
C

ri
m

e
G

ro
u
p
.

M
e
e
ti
n

g
s

h
e
ld

re
g
u

la
rl

y
to

a
d
d

re
s
s

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t.
T

h
e

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
ta

s
k
in

g
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o
f

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

o
r

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d
h

o
ld

th
e
m

a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
le

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 t

a
s
k
in

g
s

b
e
in

g
c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t.

A
w

ri
tt

e
n

p
ro

to
c
o
l
is

n
o
t

re
q
u

ir
e
d

a
s

a
ll

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
w

o
rk

w
it
h
in

th
e

te
rm

s
o
f

re
fe

re
n
c
e

o
f

th
e

g
ro

u
p
s

(2
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
rn

a
l

s
ta

ff
 t
ra

in
in

g

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

la
te

s
t
A

S
B

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
to

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

a
p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
A

S
B

w
o
rk

w
it
h

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il.

D
e
te

rm
in

e
b

e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
d

e
x
p

e
rt

s

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

re
le

v
a
n
t

E
F

D
C

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
ts

c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

id
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
n

e
e
d
s

P
ro

d
u
c
e

a
ro

lli
n
g

s
e
ri

e
s

o
f

c
o
u
rs

e
s

fo
r

s
ta

ff
.

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
D

R
P

,
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l

B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r

N
e
tw

o
rk

G
ro

u
p

(A
S

B
N

)
a
n

d
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l

B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r

C
o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r

S
a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

A
u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

T
ra

in
in

g
is

o
n

g
o
in

g
a
n
d

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
s
u
b
je

c
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
o
v
e
re

d
o
r

a
re

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

fo
r

c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

b
e
fo

re
th

e
e
n

d
o
f

2
0

0
7
:

• 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

t
ta

k
in

g
(E

F
D

C
s
ta

ff
);

• 
P

o
lic

e
a
n

d
C

ri
m

in
a
l
E

v
id

e
n
c
e

A
c
t

in
te

rv
ie

w
in

g
u
n

d
e
r

c
a
u

ti
o
n

(E
F

D
C

s
ta

ff
);

• 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
In

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

M
o
d

e
l

(C
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

a
n

d
s
e
n
io

r
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
;

• 
R

o
le

o
f

C
D

R
P

a
n
d

m
u
lt
i
a
g

e
n
c
y

p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

;

• 
D

e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

In
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
;

• 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

s
u

rv
e
y
s
;

• 
T

h
e

la
w

re
la

ti
n
g

to
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r

(P
o
lic

e
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

S
u
p

p
o
rt

O
ff

ic
e
rs

,
E

F
D

C
s
ta

ff
,

R
e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o
c
ia

ls
L

a
n
d

lo
rd

s
).

Page 85



(3
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a

jo
in

t
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
o
n

th
e

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

o
f

P
C

S
O

's
.

O
b
ta

in
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l
re

tu
rn

to
m

o
n
it
o
r

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
.

(a
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
m

m
a
n

d
e
r,

s
e
e
k

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,

fo
rm

u
la

te
ta

s
k
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n
d

o
b
ta

in
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
fo

r
P

o
lic

e
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

S
u
p

p
o
rt

O
ff

ic
e
rs

(P
C

S
O

s
);

(b
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
.
D

e
v
e
lo

p
a

s
ys

te
m

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

C
o
u
n
c
il

le
d

ta
s
k
in

g
s
;

(c
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
lo

c
a
l
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
t

fo
r

th
e

h
a
n
d

lin
g

o
f

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
;

(d
)

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

L
o
u

g
h
to

n
D

IU
a
n
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

p
a
c
k
a
g

e
s

re
g

a
rd

in
g

A
S

B
to

b
e

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

d
to

in
te

re
s
te

d
C

o
u

n
c
il

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
.

(a
)

T
a
s
k
in

g
p

ro
fo

rm
a

d
ra

ft
e
d
.
T

a
s
k
in

g
re

s
u
lt
s

a
g
re

e
d

a
s

p
e
r

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
P

I's
.

T
o

b
e

re
tu

rn
e
d

fo
r

e
a
c
h

ta
s
k
in

g
;

(b
)

In
te

re
s
te

d
C

o
u
n
c
il

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
b

e
n

o
ti
fi
e
d

.

S
tr

a
te

g
y

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

in
lin

e
w

it
h

J
o
in

t
S

e
rv

ic
e

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t
o
n

P
C

S
O

's
;

(c
)

L
o
c
a
l
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

t
to

b
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
;

(d
)

B
ri

e
fi
n

g
p

a
c
k

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

fo
r

ta
rg

e
t

a
re

a

L
im

e
s
 F

a
rm

.
W

ill
b

e
u
p

d
a
te

d
a
s

n
e
w

o
ff

e
n
d

e
rs

c
o
m

e
o
n

lin
e
.

C
ri
m

e
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6

A
c
ti
o
n
s

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

(4
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
g

e
n

e
ri
c

m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
re

c
u
rr

in
g

s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

(i
.e

.
T

ri
c
k

o
r

T
re

a
t,

fi
re

w
o
rk

s
)

E
x
a
m

in
e

b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

C
o
n
s
u

lt
w

it
h

lic
e
n
s
in

g

L
ia

is
e

a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

C
R

O
a
n

d
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
P

ro
b

le
m

S
o
lv

e
r

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

T
ra

d
in

g
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
re

g
a
rd

in
g

T
P

w
o
rk

o
n

th
o
s
e

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

s
u
s
p

e
c
te

d
o
f

in
fr

in
g

e
m

e
n
ts

T
a
s
k

P
C

S
O

's

In
v
o
lv

e
S

c
h

o
o
ls

L
ia

is
o
n

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e

A
g
re

e
d

m
u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

s
ig

n
e
d

u
p

to
b

y

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
C

D
R

P
,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

A
u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

W
o
rk

to
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
Y

o
u

th
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

T
e
a
m

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p

s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l
to

o
l
k
it
s

to
ta

c
k
le

re
c
u
rr

in
g

p
ro

b
le

m
s
.

T
h

e
s
e
 t

e
a
m

s
h

a
v
e

o
n

ly
re

c
e
n

tl
y

b
e

e
n

fo
rm

e
d

s
o

th
is

w
o
rk

is
in

e
a
rl

y
s
ta

g
e
s

o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
P

re
s
s

a
rt

ic
le

s
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

d
ra

ft
e
d

fo
r

s
o
m

e
s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l
is

s
u

e
s

a
n

d
p

o
s
te

rs

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

fo
r

th
o
s
e

m
e
m

b
e
rs

o
f

th
e

p
u

b
lic

w
h

o
fe

e
l
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

.
T

h
is

is
a
ls

o
u
s
e
d

in
c
o
n

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s

w
e
b
s
it
e
 t

o
ra

is
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
.

W
o
rk

u
n

d
e
r

w
a
y

re
g

a
rd

in
g

ill
e
g

a
l
ta

x
i

to
u

ts
p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

a
n
d

m
o
re

p
la

n
n

e
d

to
id

e
n
ti
fy

a
n
d

p
ro

s
e
c
u
te

o
ff

e
n

d
e
rs

.

Page 86



(5
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to

d
e
a
lin

g
w

it
h

A
S

B
is

s
u

e
s

S
e
c
u
re

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

o
f

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s

a
t

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
,
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

d
a
ta

s
h

a
ri

n
g

a
n

d
a
g
re

e
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

H
o
u
s
in

g
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

to
a
tt

e
n

d
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l

to
b

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

A
u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

J
o
in

t
s
it
e

s
u
rv

e
y
s

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
C

ri
m

e
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

O
ff

ic
e
r.

T
h

o
s
e

e
m

e
rg

in
g

p
ro

b
le

m
a
re

a
s

a
re

v
is

it
e
d

a
n
d

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s

m
a
d

e
c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g

p
h

ys
ic

a
l
s
e
c
u
ri

ty
a
n
d

d
e
s
ig

n
.
T

a
s
k
in

g

p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
a
g

re
e
d

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
fo

r
P

C
S

O
’s

a
n
d

N
P

T
to

b
e

d
ir

e
c
te

d
in

to
e
m

e
rg

in
g

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

to
g

a
th

e
r

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
,

re
-a

s
s
u
re

th
e

p
u
b

lic
a
n

d
re

d
u
c
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri
m

e
.

J
o
in

t
A

c
ti
o
n

G
ro

u
p

s
e
t

u
p

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
to

re
g

u
la

rl
y

re
v
ie

w

e
m

e
rg

in
g

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

a
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

.
S

ys
te

m
p
u

t
in

p
la

c
e

b
y

A
S

B
C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r
to

p
ro

te
c
t

a
n

d
d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

a
n
d

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e

to
E

s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
F

ie
ld

 I
n

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

O
ff

ic
e
rs

fo
r

a
c
ti
o
n

w
h

e
n

c
ri

m
in

a
l
o
ff

e
n
c
e
s

a
re

a
p

p
a
re

n
t.

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
In

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e

M
o
d

e
l

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

u
s
e
d

fo
r

p
ro

b
le

m
s
o
lv

in
g

ie

c
ri
m

e
p

a
tt

e
rn

a
n

a
ly

s
is

,
p
ro

b
le

m
p
ro

fi
le

s
,

a
n

d
ta

rg
e
t

p
ro

fi
le

s
.
T

h
e
s
e

p
ro

v
id

e
c
le

a
r

a
u

d
it
 t
ra

il
a
n

d
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

v
a
ri

o
u
s

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n

m
e
th

o
d
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

 t
h

e
m

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d
.

(6
)

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t
a
n

in
te

ri
m

A
S

B
re

c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

L
ia

is
e

IT
Im

p
le

m
e
n

t
A

c
c
e
s
s

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

H
o
u
s
in

g
,

E
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n

d
R

S
L
's

D
e
v
e
lo

p
s
ys

te
m

o
f

re
c
o
rd

in
g

d
a
ta

fr
o
m

a
ll

o
f

a
b

o
v
e

In
te

ri
m

 I
C

T
C

R
IS

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

in
s
ta

ll
e
d

1
2
.9

.0
6

A
S

B
P

ro
je

c
t
B

o
a
rd

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

s
ti
ll

in
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

O
n
-g

o
in

g
In

te
ri

m
A

S
B

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

in
p

la
c
e

b
u
t

d
o
e
s

n
o
t

p
ro

v
id

e
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t
c
la

ri
ty

,
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y

o
r

d
e
ta

il
fo

r
p
u
rp

o
s
e
.
P

a
p

e
r

re
c
o
rd

s

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y

u
s
e
d

.
S

a
fe

r
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

ill
b

e
m

o
v
in

g
to

a
c
u
s
to

m
b

u
ilt

A
S

B
d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

la
te

r
in

2
0
0

7
.
T

h
is

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
h

a
v
e

th
e

a
b

ili
ty

to
a
n

a
ly

s
e

e
m

e
rg

in
g

A
S

B
a
n

d
c
ri

m
e
 t
re

n
d
s

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
h

e
a
b

ili
ty

to
a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

ta
rg

e
t

p
ro

b
le

m
a
re

a
s
.

T
h

e
re

w
ill

a
ls

o
b

e
c
a
s
e

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
A

B
C

a
n
d

A
S

B
O

 t
ra

c
k
in

g
.

(7
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
a
n
d

im
p
le

m
e
n

t
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

in
g

a
th

e
ri

n
g

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

o
f

A
S

B

O
b
ta

in
a
n

d
d

e
v
e
lo

p
th

e
u
s
e

o
f

C
D

R
P

C
C

T
V

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
o
n

u
s
e

E
v
a
lu

a
te

n
e
w

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t
fo

r
s
u
it
a
b

ili
ty

o
f

u
s
e

in
A

S
B

A
g
re

e
w

o
rk

in
g

p
o
lic

y
fo

r
u
s
e

o
f

C
C

T
V

a
n

d
o
th

e
r

te
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y

in
A

S
B

c
a
s
e
s

A
S

B
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
C

D
R

P
,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

A
u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

3
G

w
ir

e
le

s
s

C
C

T
V

s
ys

te
m

s
a
t

a
n

a
d

v
a
n
c
e
d

s
ta

g
e
.
P

o
lic

y
a
n

d
p
ro

c
e
d
u

re
fo

r
im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n

g
s
ys

te
m

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

w
ri
tt

e
n

a
n
d

is
a
w

a
it
in

g
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l .

(8
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
w

it
h

L
ia

is
e

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

P
o
lic

e
m

e
d
ia

o
ff

ic
e
r

fo
r

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

o
f

m
e
d

ia
A

S
B

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
S

a
fe

r
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
A

u
g

u
s
t

2
0

0
7

O
n
g

o
in

g

Page 87



p
a
rt

n
e
rs

a
p

o
s
it
iv

e
m

e
d
ia

s
tr

a
te

g
y

to

p
ro

m
o
te

C
D

R
P

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s

a
n
d

re
d

u
c
e

th
e

fe
a
r

o
f

c
ri

m
e

E
p
p

in
g

F
o
re

s
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
W

o
rk

w
it
h

E
F

D
C

C
D

R
P

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r

P
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

p
ro

m
o
te

a
ll

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

a
c
ti
o
n
s

s
tr

a
te

g
y

C
D

R
P

,
A

S
B

N
G

ro
u

p
B

u
d

g
e
ts

a
n
d

C
D

R
P

H
o
m

e
O

ff
ic

e
S

a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
F

u
n

d
s

L
A

A
P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
1
2

-
A

C
T

IV
E

L
Y

M
A

N
A

G
E

 O
U

R
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

A
c
ti

o
n

T
a
rg

e
t

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
o

ff
ic

e
r

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
n

d
s
o

u
rc

e
T

im
e
s

c
a

le
fo

r
c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s

(3
1
.3

.0
7
)

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

o
r

lim
it

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
s
iz

e
o
f

E
s
s
e
x
’s

e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t

(a
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
to

w
o
rk

w
it
h

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

a
n

d
th

e
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
in

c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

is
s
u

e
s
;

(b
)

T
a
rg

e
t

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
b

y
:

• 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
in

g
o
r

a
t
ri

s
k

o
f

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
a
n
d

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

th
e
m

;

• 
E

n
d

e
a

v
o
u
ri

n
g

to
d

e
v
e
lo

p
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
w

h
e
re

p
o
s
s
ib

le
w

it
h

o
th

e
r

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
to

c
o
n
d

u
c
t
H

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
n

e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s

to
m

a
p

th
e

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r;

• 
M

a
p
p

in
g

a
re

a
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

n
o
t
s
u

p
p

lie
d

w
it
h

m
a
in

g
a
s
;

• 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
n

e
rg

y
s
u

rv
e
y
s

to
g

a
th

e
r

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
g

a
rd

in
g

fu
e
l

p
o
v
e
rt

y
w

it
h
in

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t;

• 
T

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
s
u

it
a
b
le

p
ro

je
c
t

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
a
t
h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
/a

re
a
s

m
o
s
t

a
t

ri
s
k

o
f

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
.

T
o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
a

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

o
f

s
c
h

o
o
l
v
is

it
s
,

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n
c
e

a
t

o
th

e
r

lo
c
a
l

e
v
e
n

ts
to

p
u
b

lic
is

e

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

e
tc

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
,

H
e
a
d

o
f

P
la

n
n

in
g

a
n

d
E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-

O
rd

in
a
to

r

N
o

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

re
q
u

ir
e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
p
ro

g
re

s
s

a
t

M
a
rc

h
2

0
0
7

A
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

s
c
h

o
o
l
v
is

it
s

is
in

p
la

c
e

a
n

d
1

2
v
is

it
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

s
o

fa
r,

w
it
h

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

m
a
jo

ri
n
g

o
n

e
n

e
rg

y
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

a
n
d

fu
e
l
p

o
v
e
rt

y
e
tc

.

A
‘G

re
e
n

F
a
y
re

’
w

a
s

h
e
ld

in
B

u
c
k
h

u
rs

t
H

ill
in

S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

a
n

d
is

to
b

e

re
p

e
a
te

d
in

2
0

0
7
.

T
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
is

w
o
rk

in
g

w
it
h

th
e

L
e
a

V
a
ll
e
y

R
e
g

io
n

a
l
P

a
rk

A
u

th
o
ri
ty

 t
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
is

s
u

e
s

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

4
0

th

a
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

e
v
e
n

ts

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l
is

s
u

e
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

s
ta

lls

in
lo

c
a
l
m

a
rk

e
ts

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
e
n

e
rg

y
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

in
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

th
e

C
A

R
E

A
g

e
n
c
y,

a
n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
lo

n
g
-t

e
rm

d
is

p
la

ys

a
t
th

e
C

iv
ic

O
ff

ic
e
s
.

T
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
h

a
s

w
o
rk

e
d

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

E
n

e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

A
d

v
ic

e
C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o

p
ro

v
id

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
h

o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

,
s
o

a
s
 t

o
a
ls

o
a
s
s
is

t
in

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

fu
e
l
p

o
o
r

h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

.

E
n

e
rg

y
s
u
rv

e
y
s

h
a

v
e

b
e
e
n

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
P

ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r

H
o
u
s
e

C
o
n
d

it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y
.

T
o

m
a
x
im

is
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a
n

d
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

o
f

(a
)

T
o

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

w
h

e
e
le

d
b
in

b
a
s
e
d

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
(a

)
W

h
e
e
le

d
b

in
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
b

y
 t
h

e
e
n

d
o
f

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
B

a
s
ic

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

in
p
la

c
e
,

b
u

t
s
u

b
je

c
t

to
R

o
ll

o
u
t
c
o
m

p
le

te
b

y
3

1
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

T
h
e

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f
W

h
e
e
le

d
B

in
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

d
is

tr
ic

t
h

a
s

Page 88



h
o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

w
a
s
te

s
e
rv

ic
e
;

(b
)

T
o

in
c
re

a
s
e

p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s

o
f

th
e

n
e
e
d
 t

o
re

c
yc

le
m

o
re

a
n

d
th

ro
w

a
w

a
y

le
s
s
.

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0

0
6
;

(b
)

A
c
h
ie

v
e

3
0

%
re

c
yc

lin
g

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

a
n

d
3

6
%

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l
re

v
ie

w

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

fo
r

p
u

b
lic

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
,
n

e
w

e
x
h

ib
it
io

n
c
a
ra

v
a
n

a
c
q
u

ir
e
d

a
n

d
n

o
w

re
a
d

y
fo

r
u
s
e

M
o
re

le
a
fl
e
ts

e
tc

re
q

u
ir

e
d

w
h

ic
h

w
ill

re
q

u
ir

e
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g

2
0

0
6

3
0

%
re

c
y
c
lin

g
b

y
3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

3
6

%
re

c
y
c
lin

g
b

y
3
1

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
8

b
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h

e
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
re

c
yc

lin
g

o
u
tt

u
rn

fo
r

2
0

0
6
/0

7
is

3
7
.0

9
%

A
s
ys

te
m

o
f

w
e
e
k
ly

s
u
m

m
e
r

re
fu

s
e

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d

in

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
lo

c
a
l
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

T
h
e

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
o
f

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
n

e
w

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
is

u
n

d
e
rw

a
y

a
n
d

,
o
n
c
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

w
ill

b
e

m
a
d

e
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

to

in
c
re

a
s
e

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

in
o
rd

e
r

to
m

a
in

ta
in

re
c
yc

lin
g

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

Im
p
ro

v
e

th
e

c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s

o
f

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

w
it
h

E
s
s
e
x

g
a
te

w
a

y

a
re

a
s

(a
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

A
g

e
n
c
y

(E
P

A
)

c
a
te

g
o
ry

fo
r

g
a
te

w
a

y
a
re

a
s
;

(b
)

R
e
-e

x
p

lo
re

th
e

o
p
ti
o
n
s

fo
r

u
s
in

g
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

p
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l
fo

r
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
w

o
rk

s
.

(a
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

p
u

b
lic

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

le
v
e
ls

a
n

d
B

V
1

9
9
 t

a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

g
a
te

w
a

y

a
re

a
s
;

(b
)

T
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
a

p
ro

to
c
o
l
w

it
h

th
e

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

fo
r

ro
u
ti
n

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s

H
e
a
d

o
f

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n
ta

l
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(a
)

D
e
p

e
n

d
a
n
t

u
p

o
n

th
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f

th
e

re
v
ie

w
;

(b
)

N
o
n

e
if

w
h

o
ll
y

p
ro

v
id

e
b

y
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e

P
a
rt

o
f

re
v
ie

w
o
f

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
(b

y
M

a
rc

h
2

0
0

7
)

P
ro

to
c
o
l
in

p
la

c
e

b
y

M
a
rc

h
2
0

0
7

T
h
e

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r 

th
e

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
n

e
w

w
a
s
te

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
c
o
n
ta

in
s

e
n

h
a
n
c
e
d

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
s
tr

e
e
t
c
le

a
n
s
in

g

b
e
y
o
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

b
y

th
e

E
P

A
C

o
d

e
o
f

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

N
o

p
ro

g
re

s
s

h
a
s

y
e
t

b
e
e
n

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

w
it
h

re
g

a
rd

to
 t
h

e
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t

o
f

a
p
ro

to
c
o
l

w
it
h

 t
h

e
P

ro
b

a
ti
o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: Finance and Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of Meeting: 19 June 2007 
 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services 
 
Subject: Consultation Plan and Register 2007/08 
 
Officer contact for further information:  S. Tautz (Ext 4180) 
 
Democratic Services Officer:  A. Hendry (Ext 4246) 
 
 

 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That the Consultation Plan for 2007/08, setting out those issues on which public 
consultation is planned to be undertaken during the municipal year, and detailing 
those consultation exercises completed during 2006/07, be noted. 

 
Report. 
 
1. During the latter part of 2005, the Audit Commission undertook a User Focus 
assessment across Essex, looking at how effectively councils engaged with local 
communities, the results of which have previously been reported to the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. Although the assessment confirmed that the 
Council’s strengths in relation to public engagement outweighed its weaknesses, the 
Commission identified a number of possible areas for improvement in relation to the 
authority’s approach to public consultation, particularly in respect of ensuring engagement 
with minority communities and other hard to reach groups. 
 
2. The Council’s existing Consultation Strategy was originally published in 1999 in 
response to the introduction of Best Value legislation. As a result of the User Focus 
assessment, the need to develop robust consultation proposals in relation to the new Council 
Plan for 2006-2010, and a likely future Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) 
focus, a new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy was adopted in April 2006, 
setting out how the council will plan and undertake future consultation exercises. All 
consultation and engagement exercises undertaken by and on behalf of the council are now 
required to comply with the provisions of the Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy. 
A revised consultation toolkit has also been produced in order to standardise consultation 
approaches and methodologies wherever possible. 
 
3. As part of the new Public Consultation and Engagement Strategy, the Cabinet and 
the Scrutiny Panel have previously requested that a Consultation Plan be developed as part 
of the annual business planning process from 2006/07 onwards, in order to focus 
consultation and engagement on priorities and operational issues to be faced in the coming 
year. The Consultation Plan also incorporates the results of consultation exercises 
undertaken during the preceding twelve months, through a Consultation Register that 
enables members to scrutinise consultation results and processes.  
 
4. The Consultation Plan for 2007/08 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report, and sets 
out the issues on which individual services will be consulting or engaging residents or 

 
Agenda Item 12

Page 91



 

customers during the year, the overall objective for each consultation exercise, and how each 
exercise will be undertaken. In establishing this approach, it has been recognised that the 
need for some consultation exercises will arise subsequent to the development of the 
Consultation Plan each year, as a result of unforeseen circumstances or priority issues. In 
addition, it should be noted that regular on-going satisfaction surveys such as housing report 
cards, or consultation carried out in relation to planning applications, will not be included 
within the Consultation Plan. 
 
5. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to note the Consultation Plan for 2007/08, and the 
details of those public consultation exercises completed in the last year (Appendix 2). These 
documents were also considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 1 June 2007. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
6. To address the findings of the Audit Commission’s User Focus assessment and to 
develop an overall corporate approach to public consultation and engagement that promotes 
inclusivity amongst minority groups and communities that may not always be fully engaged or 
represented.  
 
Options Considered and Rejected: 
 
7. None. The Council is expected to take action to address the results of the Audit 
Commission’s User Focus assessment. User Focus was an important element in the 
methodology for the second-round of CPA for upper-tier authorities and is expected to also 
feature significantly in the development of comprehensive area assessments. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
8. The development of an annual Consultation Plan has previously been agreed by the 
Cabinet and the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel. 
 
 
 
Resource Implications:  
 
Budget/Personnel/Land: None. 
Council Plan/Best Value Performance Plan reference: Council Plan 2006-2010 Section 8 
– ‘How we Measure Our Achievements’ 
Relevant Statutory Powers: None 
Background papers: None 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision Reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 92



N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r

o
r 

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

1
C

h
o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt
in

g
s

P
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

d
a
te

o
f

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0
7

A
ll

e
xt

e
rn

a
l
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
w

e
re

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

a

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
ve

n
t
in

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
 t
o

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t
re

le
va

n
t
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
w

ill
s
u
p
p
o
rt

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o

a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
m

 t
o

b
e

a
b
le

to
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

in
C

h
o
ic

e
B

a
s
e
d

L
e
tt
in

g
s
.

6
5

in
vi

ta
ti
o
n
s

s
e
n
t
o
u
t,

o
n
ly

8
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
.

T
h
e
re

fo
re

,
w

e
w

ill
b
e

h
o
ld

in
g

a
n
o
th

e
r

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

in
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7
,
p
ri
o
r 

to

th
e
 t
a
rg

e
t
g
o

liv
e

d
a
te

o
f

O
c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0
7
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

w
it
h

te
n
a
n
ts

,
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

a
n
d

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

.

S
u
rv

e
ys

w
e
re

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

w
it
h

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 t
o

lo
c
a
l
g
ro

u
p
s
. 
It
 

is
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t
o

d
o

m
o
re

o
f 

th
is

ty
p
e

o
f

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

2
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g

L
o
c
a
l

P
ro

to
c
o
l
b
e
tw

e
e
n

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
H

o
u
s
in

g

N
e
e
d
s

a
n
d

L
o
c
a
l

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

D
ru

g
a
n
d

A
lc

o
h
o
l
T

e
a
m

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e

n
e
xt

2

m
o
n
th

s

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g

g
o
o
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

is

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

b
e
tw

e
e
n

re
s
p
e
c
ti
ve

 t
e
a
m

s

F
u
rt

h
e
r

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
e
t
fo

r
6

m
o
n
th

s

to
e
va

lu
a
te

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

n
e
s
s

3
V

o
id

s
R

e
-l
e
t
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
T

o
c
o
n
s
u
lt

in
 t
h
e

S
u
m

m
e
r.

A
n
y

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

in
 t
h
e

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

te
n
a
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

vo
id

s
re

-l
e
t
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

T
o

p
ro

vi
d
e
 t
h
e
m

w
it
h

a
c
o
p
y

o
f

th
e

V
o
id

s
R

e
-l
e
t
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d

s
e
e
k
 t
h
e
ir

vi
e
w

s
a
t
fu

tu
re

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

4
D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

fo
r

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

b
y

o
ld

e
r

p
e
o
p
le

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

s
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
7
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

m
in

u
te

d
a
n
d

a
va

ila
b
le

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
rs

d
e
c
is

io
n

T
o

re
vi

e
w

 t
h
e

h
o
u
s
in

g
s
to

c
k

w
h
ic

h
is

s
e
t

a
s
id

e
fo

r
o
ld

e
r

p
e
rs

o
n
s

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

T
h
ro

u
g
h

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

w
it
h
 t
a
rg

e
t

g
ro

u
p
s

E
xt

e
rn

a
l
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
,
C

A
B

,

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
,

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
te

n
a
n
ts

,

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

a
n
d

R
S

L
s
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

m
a
g
a
z
in

e
“H

o
u
s
in

g
N

e
w

s
.”

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

in
fo

rm
h
o
w

 t
h
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
is

o
p
e
ra

te
d
.

R
e
f

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

f
re

s
u

lt
s

S
u

b
je

c
t

M
a
tt

e
r/

Is
s
u

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
M

e
th

o
d

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

H
o
u
s
in

g
s
ta

ff
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

e
xt

e
rn

a
l
s
ta

ff

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

C
D

A
T

A
n

in
it
ia

l
m

e
e
ti
n
g

h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n

p
la

c
e

o
n
 t
h
e

2
3
/0

4
/2

0
0
7
 t
o

a
g
re

e
 t
e
rm

s
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

T
h
is

is
n
o
w

b
e
in

g
s
h
a
re

d

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e

p
a
rt

ie
s

b
y

e
-m

a
il 

to
a
g
re

e

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

b
e
fo

re
b
e
in

g
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

A
s
 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

a
t
a

m
e
e
ti
n
g

o
f 

th
e

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
h
e

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

w
ill

b
e

g
iv

e
n

a
t

th
a
t 
ti
m

e
.

T
e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
,
H

o
u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

P
a
n
e
l,

H
o
u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

R
e
p
o
rt

b
a
c
k

a
t
fu

tu
re

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

A
lis

t
w

ill

b
e

fo
rm

u
la

te
d

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
fo

r

o
ld

e
r

p
e
o
p
le

b
a
s
e
d

o
n
 t
h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
2
0
0
7
/0

8

D
a
te

s

Page 93



N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r

o
r 

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

R
e
f

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

f
re

s
u

lt
s

S
u

b
je

c
t

M
a
tt

e
r/

Is
s
u

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
M

e
th

o
d

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
2
0
0
7
/0

8

D
a
te

s

5
T

h
e

H
o
u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
n
e
rg

y

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

T
B

A
T

o
s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
o
n
 t
h
e

d
ra

ft

S
tr

a
te

g
y,

a
n
d
 t
o

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
n
y

a
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n

T
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

a
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

D
ra

ft
,
o
n

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t
u
p
o
n
.

6
S

e
tt
in

g
u
p

L
o
c
a
l

S
e
rv

ic
e

L
e
ve

l

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t
fo

r 
F

lo
a
ti
n
g

S
u
p
p
o
rt

S
c
h
e
m

e

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e

n
e
xt

2

m
o
n
th

s

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g

g
o
o
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

is

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

b
e
tw

e
e
n

re
s
p
e
c
ti
ve

 t
e
a
m

s

A
n

in
it
ia

l
m

e
e
ti
n
g

h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n

p
la

c
e

o
n
 t
h
e

2
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
7
 t
o

a
g
re

e

te
rm

s
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

T
h
is

w
ill

b
e

s
h
a
re

d
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e

p
a
rt

ie
s

b
y

e
-m

a
il 

to
a
g
re

e

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

b
e
fo

re
b
e
in

g

s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o

7
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

o
n

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
.

D
u
ri
n
g

2
0
0
7
/0

8
–

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
a
n
d

m
a
d
e

a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o

s
e
n
io

r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
a
n
d

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
.

T
h
e

p
u
rp

o
s
e

o
f 

th
is

e
xe

rc
is

e
is

 t
o

a
n
a
ly

s
e

th
e

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
a
s
s
e
s
s

if
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

is
p
ro

vi
d
in

g
e
n
o
u
g
h

s
u
p
p
o
rt

/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

in
a
n

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
a
b
le

fo
rm

a
t.

A
s

a
b
o
ve

.
T

h
is

w
ill

b
e

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
d
e
d

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
o
n

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
.
(T

a
k
in

g
in

to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

c
e
n
s
u
s
).

A
ll

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

ye
a
r

vi
a

a
n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r

e
n
c
lo

s
in

g
a

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e

d
u
ri
n
g

2
0
0
7
/0

8
.
(T

h
is

w
ill

b
e

d
o
n
e

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

c
e
n
s
u
s

s
u
rv

e
y

re
s
u
lt
s

(t
o

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

in

2
0
0
7
/0

8
)

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
 t
a
k
e

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

m
in

o
ri
ty

/h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

o
r

u
n
-r

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
g
ro

u
p
s
).

S
e
e

a
b
o
ve

.

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t
T

e
n
a
n
ts

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

E
s
s
e
x

E
n
e
rg

y
A

d
vi

c
e

C
e
n
tr

e
s

C
it
iz

e
n

A
d
vi

c
e

B
u
re

a
u
’s

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

D
is

tr
ic

t

A
g
re

e
d

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

A
ll

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

w
ill

re
c
e
iv

e
a

c
o
p
y

o
f 

th
e

fi
n
a
l
ve

rs
io

n
o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y.

H
o
u
s
in

g
s
ta

ff
a
t
E

F
D

C
a
n
d

s
ta

ff
w

o
rk

in
g

fo
r 

In
-T

o
u
c
h

F
lo

a
ti
n
g

S
u
p
p
o
rt

p
ro

vi
d
e
r

F
u
rt

h
e
r

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
e
t
fo

r
6

m
o
n
th

s
 t
o

e
va

lu
a
te

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

n
e
s
s

Page 94



N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r

o
r 

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

R
e
f

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

f
re

s
u

lt
s

S
u

b
je

c
t

M
a
tt

e
r/

Is
s
u

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
M

e
th

o
d

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
2
0
0
7
/0

8

D
a
te

s

8
T

h
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

o
ff

-

s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g

a
t

va
ri
o
u
s

s
it
e
s

a
c
ro

s
s

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t.

T
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n
c
e
 t
h
e

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

s
tu

d
y

fo
r

e
a
c
h

s
it
e

is
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
,

w
h
ic

h
is

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
in

la
te

A
u
tu

m
n
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
a
n
d

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f

n
e
w

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g
.
T

h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

e
xe

rc
is

e
w

ill
d
e
te

rm
in

e
if

th
e
re

is
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t
lo

c
a
l
s
u
p
p
o
rt

fo
r 

th
e

w
o
rk

 t
o

g
o

a
h
e
a
d

o
r

n
o
t.

T
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

a
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

le
tt
e
r

a
n
d

p
la

n
o
f 

th
e

s
it
e

w
it
h

a

p
re

-p
a
id

re
p
ly

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
,
o
n

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

in
vi

te
d
 t
o

c
o
m

m
e
n
t
u
p
o
n
.
D

e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e

le
ve

l
o
f

re
tu

rn
s
,
it

m
a
y

b
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o

d
o

o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

h
o
m

e
vi

s
it

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o

g
a
u
g
e

re
s
id

e
n
t’
s

vi
e
w

s
.

9
U

p
d
a
ti
n
g

lo
c
a
l
p
ro

to
c
o
l

b
e
tw

e
e
n

E
p
p
in

g
 F

o
re

s
t

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

a
n
d

E
s
s
e
x

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

s
e
rv

ic
e

W
it
h
in

 t
h
e

n
e
xt

2

m
o
n
th

s

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g

g
o
o
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

d
e
liv

e
ry

is

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

b
e
tw

e
e
n

re
s
p
e
c
ti
ve

 t
e
a
m

s

A
n

in
it
ia

l
m

e
e
ti
n
g

h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n

p
la

c
e

o
n
 t
h
e

1
6
/0

4
/2

0
0
7
 t
o

a
g
re

e

te
rm

s
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

T
h
is

is
n
o
w

b
e
in

g
s
h
a
re

d
b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e
s
e

p
a
rt

ie
s

b
y

e
-m

a
il 

to
a
g
re

e

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

b
e
fo

re
b
e
in

g

s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o

1
0

P
la

n
n
e
d

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

o
r

m
a
jo

r
re

p
a
ir
s

o
n

b
lo

c
k
s

o
f

fl
a
ts

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

T
h
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

ta
k
e

p
la

c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t

th
e

ye
a
r,

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e

re
le

va
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
o
f

w
o
rk

,

b
u
t
m

o
s
t
im

p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y,

a
t

th
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
im

e
s

a
s

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

b
y 

th
e

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n
.

T
o

s
e
e
k

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

vi
e
w

s
fr

o
m

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

in
lin

e
w

it
h

re
le

va
n
t
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
y

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o
f

a
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

le
tt
e
r,

g
iv

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 t
h
e

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
vi

e
w

 t
h
e

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
,
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
re

p
o
rt

s
,

te
n
d
e
r

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d
  
te

n
d
e
r

re
tu

rn
s
.
T

h
e

fo
rm

a
t
fo

r 
th

e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

is
s
e
t
o
u
t
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

re
le

va
n
t
le

a
s
e
h
o
ld

le
g
is

la
ti
o
n
.

L
o
c
a
l
W

a
rd

M
e
m

b
e
rs

L
o
c
a
l

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

in
 t
h
e

im
m

e
d
ia

te

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

a
ff

e
c
te

d
b
y 

th
e

w
o
rk

s
A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

re
s
id

e
n
t 
/ 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

/ 
te

n
a
n
t

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s

T
h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
fu

tu
re

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r

re
p
o
rt

s
,
w

h
ic

h
w

ill

d
e
te

rm
in

e
fu

tu
re

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
f

w
o
rk

.

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

s
ta

ff
b
a
s
e
d

a
t

H
a
rl
o
w

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

O
ff

ic
e

F
u
rt

h
e
r

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
e
t
fo

r
6

m
o
n
th

s
 t
o

e
va

lu
a
te

it
s

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

n
e
s
s
.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l
L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
n
y

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

re
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
a
t
d
o

n
o
t

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

n
e
e
d
 t
o

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
n
d
 t
h
e

d
e
c
is

io
n

o
n
 t
h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f 

th
a
t
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o

b
e

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
in

w
ri
ti
n
g

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r.

Page 95



N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r

o
r 

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

R
e
f

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

f
re

s
u

lt
s

S
u

b
je

c
t

M
a
tt

e
r/

Is
s
u

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
M

e
th

o
d

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
2
0
0
7
/0

8

D
a
te

s

1
1

R
ig

h
t
T

o
B

u
y

(R
T

B
)

A
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

o
n
 t
h
e

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

o
n
 t
h
e

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
y

re
c
e
iv

e

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

R
T

B
/L

e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

s
e
c
ti
o
n

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y

a
p
p
ly

 t
o

b
u
y

th
e
ir

p
ro

p
e
rt

y.

D
u
ri
n
g

2
0
0
7
/0

8
–

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
o
n

a
m

o
n
th

ly

b
a
s
is

a
n
d

m
a
d
e

a
va

ila
b
le

 t
o

s
e
n
io

r

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
a
n
d

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

T
e
n
a
n
t

a
n
d

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
n
u
a
lly

.

T
h
e

p
u
rp

o
s
e

o
f 

th
is

e
xe

rc
is

e
is

 t
o

a
n
a
ly

s
e

th
e

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
a
s
s
e
s
s

if
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

is
p
ro

vi
d
in

g
e
n
o
u
g
h

s
u
p
p
o
rt

a
n
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
,
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

.

A
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y

w
ill

b
e

s
e
n
t

o
u
t 
to

e
a
c
h

a
p
p
lic

a
n
t
(a

ft
e
r

a

fo
rm

a
l
o
ff

e
r

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

m
a
d
e
).

T
h
is

w
ill

b
e

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
d
e
d

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
o
n

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
.
(T

a
k
in

g
in

to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t

th
e

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

c
e
n
s
u
s
).

1
2

T
o

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 t
h
e

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

s
o
n
 t
h
e

c
o
lo

u
r

a
n
d

fi
n
is

h
e
s
 t
h
a
t

a
re

 t
o

b
e

a
p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 t
h
e

b
lo

c
k
s

o
f

fl
a
ts

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

th
e

m
a
jo

r

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
.

B
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e

h
o
u
rs

o
f

3
p
m

a
n
d

8
p
m

o
n

a

w
e
e
k
d
a
y

(t
o

b
e

a
g
re

e
d
),

s
o

a
s
 t
o

a
tt
ra

c
t 
th

e
w

id
e
s
t

p
o
s
s
ib

le
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e

o
f

lo
c
a
l
re

s
id

e
n
ts

.
T

h
e

re
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
a

n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

to
re

s
id

e
n
ts

p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e

w
o
rk

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
o
n

s
it
e
.

T
o

a
g
re

e
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
c
h
o
ic

e
o
f

c
o
lo

u
r

a
n
d

fi
n
is

h
e
s

fo
r 

th
e

e
xt

e
rn

a
l
re

n
d
e
r,

d
o
o
rs

a
n
d

o
th

e
r

a
tt
ri
b
u
te

s
w

h
e
re

c
o
lo

u
r

a
n
d

fi
n
is

h
is

o
p
e
n
 t
o

c
h
o
ic

e
.

V
is

u
a
l
d
is

p
la

ys
,
o
n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

a
n
d

a
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e

to
b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o

vo
te

fo
r 

th
e
ir

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

fi
n
is

h
e
s
.

T
h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

c
h
o
ic

e
w

ill
b
e

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

in
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
d
e
s
ig

n
.

1
3

T
o

in
vo

lv
e

re
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

s
in

 t
h
e

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

p
ro

c
e
s
s

fo
r

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

m
a
jo

r
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t

s
c
h
e
m

e
.

O
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
rs

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

a
n
d

o
p
e
n
e
d
,
b
u
t
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e

re
p
o
rt

o
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
rs

b
e
in

g
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t
in

J
u
ly

2
0
0
7
.

T
o

s
e
le

c
t 
th

e
m

o
s
t
s
u
it
a
b
le

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

a
b
e
s
t
va

lu
e

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 
ta

k
in

g

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
n
o
t
o
n
ly

p
ri
c
e

b
u
t
q
u
a
lit

y
a
n
d

re
s
id

e
n
t
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
o

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
 t
o

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

in
 t
h
e

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
n
s
w

e
r

s
e
s
s
io

n
s

a
n
d
 t
o

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

in
 t
h
e

e
va

lu
a
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
.

T
h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e

w
ill

b
e

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

re
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t

w
ill

e
ve

n
tu

a
lly

b
e

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t
o
n
 t
h
e

o
u
tc

o
m

e
o
f 

th
e

te
n
d
e
r

e
xe

rc
is

e

A
ll

R
T

B
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

w
ill

b
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

o
ff

e
r

le
tt
e
r

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

is
s
u
e
d
.

(T
h
is

w
ill

b
e

d
o
n
e

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

c
e
n
s
u
s

s
u
rv

e
y

re
s
u
lt
s

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d

in
o
rd

e
r 

to
 t
a
k
e

in
to

a
c
c
o
u
n
t
m

in
o
ri
ty

a
n
d

h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

o
r

u
n
d
e
r–

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
g
ro

u
p
s

d
u
ri
n
g

2
0
0
7
/0

8
).

S
e
e

a
b
o
ve

.

T
o

h
o
ld

a
p
u
b
lic

e
xh

ib
it
io

n
a
t

th
e

B
ro

o
k
w

a
ys

H
a
ll

o
p
e
n
 t
o

a
ll

lo
c
a
l
re

s
id

e
n
ts

in
a
n
d

a
ro

u
n
d

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld

s
 F

la
ts

V
ia

 t
h
e

c
o
n
ta

c
t
w

it
h
 t
h
e

m
a
in

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

T
h
e

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
re

 t
o

b
e

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
b
y 

th
e

R
o
u
n
d
h
ill

s

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
.
T

w
o

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

(a
s

vo
lu

n
te

e
rs

) 
to

re
p
re

s
e
n
t 
th

e

e
s
ta

te
a
s

a
w

h
o
le

o
n
 t
h
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
p
a
n
e
l.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e

C
a
b
in

e
t

a
n
d

vi
a

a
n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

to
re

s
id

e
n
ts

Page 96



N
o

.
S

u
b

je
c
t

m
a
tt

e
r

o
r 

is
s
u

e
s

to
 b

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

a
b

o
u

t

W
h

e
n

th
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

e
x
e
rc

is
e

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

a
n

d
m

e
th

o
d

s

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

R
e
f

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

f
re

s
u

lt
s

S
u

b
je

c
t

M
a
tt

e
r/

Is
s
u

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
M

e
th

o
d

T
h

e

g
ro

u
p

s
/i

n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

to
 b

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
e
d

H
o

w
th

e
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

f
th

e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
re

p
o

rt
e
d

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
P

L
A

N
2
0
0
7
/0

8

D
a
te

s

1
4

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
o
f

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
E

q
u
a
lit

y

S
c
h
e
m

e

M
a
y 

to
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7

T
o

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
e
q
u
a
lit

y
s
c
h
e
m

e
In

it
ia

lly
a

ro
u
n
d
 t
a
b
le

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n

to
p
la

n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s

1
5

D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t
o
f

G
e
n
d
e
r

E
q
u
a
lit

y

S
c
h
e
m

e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

to

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7

T
o

d
e
ve

lo
p

a
g
e
n
d
e
r

e
q
u
a
lit

y
s
c
h
e
m

e
In

it
ia

lly
a

ro
u
n
d
 t
a
b
le

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n

to
p
la

n
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s

1
6

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

N
o
n
-

u
s
e
r

s
u
rv

e
y

a
b
o
u
t

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

in
L
e
is

u
re

a
n
d

C
u
lt
u
ra

l

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d

a
t 
th

o
s
e

w
h
o

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

d
o

n
o
t 
ta

k
e

p
a
rt

o
r

m
a
k
e

u
s
e

o
f

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

p
ro

vi
d
e
d

b
y 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

S
u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
7

w
it
h

re
s
u
lt
s

a
va

ila
b
le

in

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7
.

T
o

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
c
u
rr

e
n
t
p
a
tt
e
rn

s
o
f

u
s
e
,

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

h
o
w

 t
o

m
o
s
t

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

ly
m

a
rk

e
t 
th

e
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
e

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

p
ro

vi
d
e

o
r

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
ve

ly
re

-d
e
s
ig

n

th
e
m

 t
o

m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

m
o
re

a
tt
ra

c
ti
ve

a
n
d

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
.

T
h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

o
n

fa
c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e

b
a
s
is

b
u
t

fo
r

s
o
m

e
h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

te
le

p
h
o
n
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s

a
n
d
/o

r

fo
c
u
s

g
ro

u
p
s

a
t
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

a
re

b
e
in

g
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
.

L
ia

is
o
n

w
ill

b
e

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

w
it
h

o
th

e
r

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

,
A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
a
n
d

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o

a
c
c
e
s
s

h
a
rd

 t
o

re
a
c
h

g
ro

u
p
s

e
.g

.
Y

o
u
th

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

P
ri
m

a
ry

C
a
re

T
ru

s
t,

C
o
u
n
c
il

fo
r

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
S

e
rv

ic
e
.

1
7

U
s
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

a
t

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
L
e
is

u
re

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

h
a
ve

b
e
e
n

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o

g
a
u
g
e

c
u
s
to

m
e
r

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

s
e
e
k

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k

fr
o
m

u
s
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

fo
u
r

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
le

is
u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s

n
o
w

m
a
n
a
g
e
d

u
n
d
e
r

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
b
y

S
L
M

lt
d

A
n
y

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t
is

s
u
e
s

o
f

c
o
n
c
e
rn

a
ri
s
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

h
e
ld

a
t
e
a
c
h

C
e
n
tr

e
w

ill

b
e

fe
d

in
to

 t
h
e

m
o
n
th

ly

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
re

M
e
e
ti
n
g
,
a
s

w
e
ll

a
s

b
e
in

g
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

th
e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

B
o
a
rd

C
h
a
ir
e
d

b
y 

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

P
o
rt

fo
lio

H
o
ld

e
r.

A
s

p
a
rt

o
f 

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

a
llo

w
u
s
e
fu

l
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k

fr
o
m

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

o
n
 t
h
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

o
f 

th
e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
a
n
d

a
s
s
is

t
C

lie
n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

in

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

w
h
a
t
is

s
u
e
s

a
re

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

u
s
e
rs

.
T

h
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
ru

m
s

a
re

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d

b
y

C
lie

n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

a
s

w
e
ll

a
s

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
M

e
m

b
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

a
re

h
e
ld

re
g
u
la

rl
y

a
t

le
a
s
t
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s

p
e
r

a
n
n
u
m

a
t 
th

e

L
e
is

u
re

C
e
n
tr

e
s
.
T

h
e

a
g
e
n
d
a

is

a
d
ve

rt
is

e
d

a
n
d

m
in

u
te

s

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
In

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e

fo
ru

m
s
,
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k

is
o
b
ta

in
e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

C
u
s
to

m
e
r

C
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
a
rd

s
,
C

h
a
rt

e
rm

a
rk

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d

b
y 

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

a
n

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

d
e
vi

s
e

c
a
lle

d
T

h
e

O
p
in

io
n

M
e
te

r.

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
o
f

c
lu

b
s

a
n
d

c
a
s
u
a
l
u
s
e
rs

o
f 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s

le
is

u
re

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s

w
ill

b
e

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

w
it
h

a
g
re

e
d

lis
t
o
f

A
c
ti
o
n

P
o
in

ts
.
P

ro
g
re

s
s

w
ill

b
e

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

C
lie

n
t
O

ff
ic

e
rs

a
n
d

F
o
ru

m
s
.

D
is

a
b
le

d
g
ro

u
p
s
,
d
is

a
b
le

d

s
ta

ff
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t,
 t
o

s
p
e
c
ia

l
in

te
re

s
t
g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d
 t
o

s
ta

ff
.

G
ro

u
p
s
/s

ta
ff

w
it
h

g
e
n
d
e
r

e
q
u
a
lit

y
in

te
re

s
ts

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

w
ill

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t,
 t
o

s
p
e
c
ia

l
in

te
re

s
t
g
ro

u
p
s

a
n
d
 t
o

s
ta

ff
.

A
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
ve

s
a
m

p
le

o
f

th
e

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

m
a
k
e

u
p

o
f

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t,
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

fa
c
e
-

to
-f

a
c
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s

w
it
h

1
,0

0
0

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

R
e
s
u
lt
s

o
f

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e

L
e
is

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

P
la

n
a
n
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
.
R

e
s
u
lt
s

o
f 

th
e

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
ill

b
e

re
fl
e
c
te

d
in

 t
h
e

d
e
s
ig

n

o
f

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

.

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
S

u
b

je
c

t
D

a
te

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
d

b
y

C
a

rr
ie

d
O

u
t 

B
y

P
u

rp
o

s
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s

u
lt

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

T
o

M
e

th
o

d

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

1
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
6

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

O
ff

ic
e

o
f 

D
e

p
u

ty

P
ri

m
e

M
in

is
te

r

T
o

c
o

n
ta

c
t

va
ri

o
u

s
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d

s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

T
o

a
s
s
is

t
in

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
o

f

fo
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
.

R
e

s
u

lt
s

re
c
e

iv
e

d
w

e
re

p
o

s
it
iv

e
.

T
h

o
s
e

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

in
vo

lv
e

d
in

a
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

in
it
s
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
.

R
e

s
u

lt
s

o
f

S
tr

a
te

g
y

w
il
l
b

e
p

a
s
s
e

d
 t

o

fo
rt

h
c
o

m
in

g
 C

P
G

.
W

il
l
b

e
a

va
il
a

b
le

in
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

w
h

e
n

th
is

is
m

a
d

e
a

p
u

b
li
c

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t

P
o

s
ta

l
s
u

rv
e

y
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n

to
 t

h
e

a
b

o
ve

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

2
/0

6
S

to
c
k

T
ra

n
s
fe

r

–
W

ic
k
fi
e

ld
s
,

C
h

ig
w

e
ll

(S
ta

g
e

1
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
)

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

–

M
a

rc
h

2
0

0
6

C
a

b
in

e
t

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
o

c
o

n
s
u

lt
re

s
id

e
n

ts
(f

o
rm

a
ll
y
)

o
n

 t
h

e

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t

o
n

a
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r
o

f
W

ic
k
fi
e

ld
s

a
n

d
it
s
 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 t
o

H
o

m
e

G
ro

u
p

L
td

(W
a

rd
e

n
 H

o
u

s
in

g
),

 t
o

e
n

a
b

le
a

m
a

jo
r

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
g

o

a
h

e
a

d
.

A
ll

s
e

c
u

re
a

n
d

n
o

n
-s

e
c
u

re
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
o

f

W
ic

k
fi
e

ld
s
. 

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
re

c
e

iv
e

d

1
7

,
(1

0
0

%
).

T
e

n
a

n
ts

“i
n

 f
a

vo
u

r”
1

2
(7

0
.6

%
).

T
e

n
a

n
ts

“n
o

t
in

 f
a

vo
u

r”
0

.

T
e

n
a

n
ts

“n
o

t
s
u

re
”

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r
5

(2
9

.4
%

).

T
e

n
a

n
ts

d
id

n
o

t
m

a
k
e

a
n

y
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
7

,

w
h

il
s
t

1
0

re
s
id

e
n

ts
d

id
m

a
k
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r
a

n
d

re
s
id

e
n

ts

P
o

s
ta

l
s
u

rv
e

y
w

it
h

d
e

ta
il
e

d

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t.

A

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
a

n
d

A
n

s
w

e
r

S
e

s
s
io

n
w

a
s

a
ls

o
h

e
ld

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

p
e

ri
o

d
.

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

3
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u

rv
e

y

M
a

r-
0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

A
S

A
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

T
o

c
o

n
ta

c
t

p
e

o
p

le
in

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
, 

N
o

rw
a

y
, 

H
o

u
s
e

,
B

e
d

a
n

d

B
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
n

d
S

A
F

E
,

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts

w
e

re
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
w

it
h

s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
.

F
a

m
il
ie

s
o

w
e

d
a

d
u

ty
 t

o
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 t

e
rm

s
o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
A

c
t

1
9

9
6

p
t

V
1

1
.

T
h

e
m

a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

re
s
id

e
n

ts
w

e
re

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
. 

R
e

s
u

lt
s

a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 t

o
e

n
s
u

re
re

s
id

e
n

ts
in

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
w

e
re

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
w

it
h

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
.

T
o

b
e

u
s
e

d
in

 f
o

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g

H
o

m
e

le
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

B
y

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l
c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 f
a

c
e

to
 f

a
c
e

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
,

a
n

d

te
le

p
h

o
n

e
c
o

n
ta

c
t.

£
1

,4
7

5

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

4
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u

rv
e

y

M
a

r-
0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

H
o

u
s
in

g

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 D

iv
is

io
n

T
o

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
p

o
s
ta

l
s
u

rv
e

y
o

f
p

e
o

p
le

o
c
c
u

p
y
in

g
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fo

rm
s

o
f 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
in

 t
h

e
d

is
tr

ic
t

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e

te
rm

s
o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
A

c
t

1
9

9
6

P
t

V
1

1

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
a

t
B

ro
o

k
 H

a
ve

n
, 

N
e

w
S

ta
rt

,

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
s
e

rv
ic

e
c
li
e

n
ts

.

R
e

s
u

lt
s

w
e

re
p

o
s
it
iv

e
.

T
h

e
m

a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

re
s
id

e
n

ts
w

e
re

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

rv
ic

e

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

.

T
o

b
e

u
s
e

d
in

 f
o

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g

H
o

m
e

le
s
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

B
y

p
o

s
t 

to
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
g

ro
u

p
.

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

5
/0

6
H

o
m

e
le

s
s

E
xi

t

S
u

rv
e

y

1
3

th
 t

o
-2

4
th

M
a

rc
h

2
0

0
6

H
o

u
s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

H
o

m
e

le
s
s

O
ff

ic
e

rs

a
n

d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
o

ff
ic

e
rs

T
o

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

s
u

rv
e

y
o

n
m

e
m

b
e

rs
o

f 
th

e

p
u

b
li
c

s
e

e
k
in

g
a

d
vi

c
e

a
n

d
a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

o
n

a

h
o

u
s
in

g
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 t

h
e

y
w

e
re

 f
a

c
e

d
w

it
h

P
o

s
it
iv

e
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

.
M

e
m

b
e

rs
o

f
p

u
b

li
c

s
e

e
k
in

g
h

e
lp

w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir

h
o

u
s
in

g
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
,

o
f

w
h

ic
h

m
o

s
t

p
e

o
p

le
w

e
re

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
w

it
h

s
e

rv
ic

e
g

iv
e

n
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
S

tr
a

te
g

y

D
iv

is
io

n

P
re

p
a

re
d

 f
o

rm
c
o

m
p

le
te

d

a
n

d
re

tu
rn

e
d

a
t

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n

o
f

in
te

rv
ie

w

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

6
/0

6
S

p
ri

n
g

fi
e

ld
's

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

S
c
h

e
m

e

2
4

-A
p

r-
0

6
R

o
u

n
d

h
il
ls

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

T
o

a
d

vi
s
e

 t
h

e
 R

o
u

n
d

h
il
ls

re
s
id

e
n

ts

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
M

e
m

b
e

rs
a

n
d

re
s
id

e
n

ts
o

f 
th

e

S
p

ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
's

e
s
ta

te
a

t 
th

e
ir

A
G

M
o

f
p

ro
g

re
s
s

o
n

 t
h

e
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r

S
p

ri
n

g
fi
e

ld
's

F
la

ts
.

In
vi

ta
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 R
o

u
n

d
h

il
ls

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ts

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
A

G
M

is
s
u

e
d

 t
o

a
ll

re
s
id

e
n

ts
o

f

th
e

 R
o

u
n

d
h

il
ls

E
s
ta

te
,

w
h

ic
h

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

fl
a

ts
a

t
S

p
ri

n
g

fi
e

ld
's

,
in

vi
ta

ti
o

n
s

is
s
u

e
d

b
y

th
e

 R
o

u
n

d
h

il
ls

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
M

e
m

b
e

rs
.

N
o

re
s
u

lt
s

re
c
o

rd
e

d
.

A
n

o
ra

l

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
w

it
h

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
n

s
w

e
r

s
e

s
s
io

n
o

n
l y

.
F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k

w
a

s

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
S

p
ri

n
g

fi
e

ld
's

P
ro

je
c
t

T
e

a
m

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

N
o

a
c
ti
o

n
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
a

n
d

n
o

re
s
u

lt
s
 t

o

re
p

o
rt

o
n

 t
h

is
o

c
c
a

s
io

n

O
ra

l
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
o

n
ly

, 
th

c
o

s
t

w
a

s
li
m

it
e

d
 t

o
a

m
e

e
ti
n

g
a

ll
o

w
a

n
c
e

.

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

7
/0

6
S

to
c
k

T
ra

n
s
fe

r

–
W

ic
k
fi
e

ld
s
,

C
h

ig
w

e
ll

(S
ta

g
e

2
B

a
ll
o

t)

A
p

ri
l
-

M
a

y

2
0

0
6

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R

e
fo

rm

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

(i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t

s
c
ru

ti
n

iz
e

rs
)

T
o

b
a

ll
o

t
re

s
id

e
n

ts
o

n
 t

h
e

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

d
e

ta
il
e

d
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t

(a
s

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

S
ta

g
e

1
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
)

o
n

a
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r
o

f
W

ic
k
fi
e

ld
s

a
n

d
it
s
 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 t
o

H
o

m
e

G
ro

u
p

L
td

(W
a

rd
e

n
 H

o
u

s
in

g
) 

to
e

n
a

b
le

a
m

a
jo

r
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
g

o
a

h
e

a
d

.

T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f 
te

n
a

n
ts

b
a

ll
o

te
d

-
1

6
.

B
a

ll
o

t
p

a
p

e
rs

re
c
e

iv
e

d
1

4
,

(8
7

.5
%

).

In
 f

a
vo

u
r

o
f 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r
-

1
1

(7
8

.6
%

).

N
o

t
in

 f
a

vo
u

r
o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r
3

(2
1

.4
%

)

H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r,
re

s
id

e
n

ts

a
n

d
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
.

T
o

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f

S
ta

te
 t

h
a

t
a

m
a

jo
ri

ty
o

f
s
e

c
u

re

te
n

a
n

ts
w

e
re

in
 f

a
vo

u
r

o
f

a
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r

to
W

a
rd

e
n

 H
o

u
s
in

g
.

R
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 H

o
u

s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r
–

M
a

y
2

0
0

6
- 

C
O

M
S

S
y
s
te

m

F
o

rm
a

l
b

a
ll
o

t

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

8
/0

6
N

e
w

W
a

s
te

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t

D
e

c
-0

6
S

te
p

h
e

n
M

e
tc

a
lf
e

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r

fo
r

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n

P
u

b
li
c
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
T

o
s
e

e
k

vi
e

w
s

o
n

m
a

tt
e

rs
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

n
e

w

w
a

s
te

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

s
u

c
h

a
s
:

(i
))

a
tt

it
u

d
e

 t
o

w
h

e
e

le
d

b
in

s

(i
i)

a
tt

it
u

d
e

 t
o

a
lt
e

rn
a

te
w

e
e

k
ly

c
o

ll
e

c
ti
o

n
s

(i
ii
)

s
h

o
u

ld
re

s
id

u
a

l
w

a
s
te

b
e

c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
d

u
ri

n
g

th
e

s
u

m
m

e
r

m
o

n
th

s
?

(i
v)

a
tt

it
u

d
e

 t
o

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
li
tt

e
r,

re
c
y
c
li
n

g

e
tc

(v
)

o
p

in
io

n
o

f
s
tr

e
e

t
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

(v
i)

w
il
li
n

g
n

e
s
s
 t

o
p

a
y

m
o

re
 f

o
r

m
o

re

re
c
y
c
li
n

g
o

r
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
s
tr

e
e

t
s
c
e

n
e

e
tc

T
o

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
o

f 
th

e
n

e
w

w
a

s
te

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

(i
)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r
A

d
vi

s
o

ry
G

ro
u

p

o
n

 t
h

e
n

e
w

w
a

s
te

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

(i
i)

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
vi

a
F

o
re

s
te

r,

p
re

s
s

re
le

a
s
e

e
tc

(i
)

O
n

li
n

e
w

e
b

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

(i
i)

O
p

e
n

le
tt

e
r

in
lo

c
a

l

n
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
rs

)

(i
ii
)

O
p

e
n

le
tt

e
r

d
e

li
ve

re
d

 t
o

a
ll

re
s
id

e
n

ts

E
P

P
IN

G
 F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

U
B

L
IC

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0

0
6

/0
7

Page 99



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
S

u
b

je
c

t
D

a
te

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
d

b
y

C
a

rr
ie

d
O

u
t 

B
y

P
u

rp
o

s
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s

u
lt

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

T
o

M
e

th
o

d

E
P

P
IN

G
 F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

U
B

L
IC

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0

0
6

/0
7

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

9
/0

6
In

s
ta

ll
a

ti
o

n
o

f

tw
o

s
c
o

o
te

r

s
to

re
s

a
t

H
e

d
g

e
rs

C
lo

s
e

O
c
t-

0
6

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

(O
P

S
)

T
o

s
e

e
k
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
vi

e
w

s
o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

in
s
ta

ll
in

g
s
c
o

o
te

r
s
to

re
s

a
t 

th
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
.

T
o

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

n
e

e
d

 t
o

a
p

p
ly

 f
o

r
p

la
n

n
in

g

p
e

rm
is

s
io

n

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
A

s
s
e

ts
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

L
e

tt
e

r
s
e

n
t,

c
o

s
t

'z
e

ro
'

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

0
/0

6
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
in

C
o

m
m

u
n

a
l

a
re

a
s

o
f

G
ro

ve

C
o

u
rt

O
c
t-

0
6

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
R

e
p

a
ir

s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

s
e

e
k
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
vi

e
w

s
o

n
li
g

h
ti
n

g
in

c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
a

re
a

o
f

b
lo

c
k
s

o
f 

fl
a

ts
a

n
d

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

if
 t

h
e

y
w

o
u

ld
p

re
fe

r
s
e

n
s
o

r
li
g

h
ts

T
o

in
fo

rm
o

n
 t

h
e

n
e

e
d

 f
o

r
s
e

n
s
o

r
li
g

h
ts

in

G
ro

ve
 C

o
u

rt
(O

ld
e

r
P

e
o

p
le

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
)

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
B

A

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

1
/0

6
S

a
le

o
f

F
o

rm
e

r

P
o

u
n

d
fi
e

ld

R
o

a
d

G
a

ra
g

e

S
it
e

 t
o

L
o

c
a

l

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
–

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
o

f

T
e

rm
s

o
f

S
a

le

M
a

r-
0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

H
o

ld
e

r
(C

ll
r 

D
a

vi
d

S
ta

ll
a

n
)

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
o

a
s
k
 t

h
e

re
s
id

e
n

ts
a

d
jo

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
e

r

g
a

ra
g

e
s
it
e

(w
h

o
w

e
re

n
o

t
s
e

e
k
in

g
 t

o

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
la

n
d

)
if
 t

h
e

y
h

a
d

a
n

y
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
s

to
a

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
va

ri
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
e

rm
s

a
g

re
e

d

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 C
a

b
in

e
t

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 t
h

e

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
b

re
a

k
u

p
a

n
d

re
m

o
ve

th
e

e
xi

s
ti
n

g
c
o

n
c
re

te
s
h

o
rt

ly
a

ft
e

r
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

.

A
t 

th
e

e
n

d
o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o

-w
e

e
k

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

p
e

ri
o

d
,

s
e

ve
n

le
tt

e
rs

(6
4

%
)

w
e

re
re

c
e

iv
e

d

fr
o

m
n

o
n

-p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts
,

a
ll

o
f

w
h

o
m

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts
’

re
q

u
e

s
t

n
o

t 
to

b
re

a
k

u
p

a
n

d
re

m
o

ve
 t

h
e

c
o

n
c
re

te
. 

 N
o

le
tt

e
rs

o
f

o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
w

e
re

re
c
e

iv
e

d
.

T
h

e
re

s
u

lt
s

w
e

re
in

c
lu

d
e

d
in

 t
h

e

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
’
re

p
o

rt
 t

o

th
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r.
A

s
a

re
s
u

lt
o

f 
th

e
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
e

xe
rc

is
e

,

th
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r
a

g
re

e
d

w
it
h

 t
h

e
p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts
’

re
q

u
e

s
t,

a
n

d
va

ri
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t.

L
e

tt
e

r
s
e

n
t 

to
1

1
n

o
n

-

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ts
.

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

2
/0

6
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

H
o

u
s
in

g

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
c
c
o

u
n

t
(H

R
A

)

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n

2
0

0
6

A
p

r-
0

6
H

e
a

d
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
o

s
e

e
k

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

vi
e

w
s

o
n

 t
h

e
d

ra
ft

H
R

A
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
p

ri
o

r 
to

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n

a
n

d
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
b

y
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r;

to
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

a
n

y
a

g
re

e
d

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
w

it
h

in

th
e

 f
in

a
l
ve

rs
io

n
;

a
n

d
 t

o
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
h

e
vi

e
w

s

o
f 

th
e

T
e

n
a

n
ts

&
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

H
a

vi
n

g
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
, 

th
e

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
a

id
:·

 t
h

e
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
w

a
s

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
,

w
e

ll
 t

h
o

u
g

h
t

o
u

t,

in
te

re
s
ti
n

g
a

n
d

w
e

ll
w

ri
tt

e
n

;·
it

w
a

s
c
le

a
r

a
n

d
e

a
s
y
 t

o
re

a
d

,
e

s
p

e
c
ia

ll
y
 t

h
e

P
la

in

E
n

g
li
s
h

S
u

m
m

a
ry

;·
 t

h
e

y
a

g
re

e
d

w
it
h

 t
h

e

o
b

je
c
ti
ve

s
, 

th
e

k
e

y
h

o
u

s
in

g
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
a

n
d

th
e

a
c
ti
o

n
p

la
n

; 
· 

th
e

y
w

e
re

p
le

a
s
e

d
 t

h
a

t

th
e

re
vi

s
e

d
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l
P

la
n

d
id

n
o

t
id

e
n

ti
fy

a
d

e
fi
c
it

o
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
A

c
c
o

u
n

t

fo
r

2
1

y
e

a
rs

,
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
y

w
e

re

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
h

a
d

re
d

u
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e

2
7

y
e

a
rs

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t

in
 t

h
e

p
re

vi
o

u
s

y
e

a
r’

s

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
;

a
n

d
· 

th
e

y
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
a

n
d

a
p

p
la

u
d

e
d

 t
h

e
va

ri
o

u
s

q
u

a
li
ty

in
it
ia

ti
ve

s

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
b

y
 H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
,

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

a
c
h

ie
ve

m
e

n
t

o
f 

th
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r

M
a

rk
A

w
a

rd
a

n
d

 t
h

e
IS

O
9

0
0

1
:2

0
0

0
IS

O

Q
u

a
li
ty

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

.

T
h

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
o

f 
th

e
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n

w
e

re
in

c
lu

d
e

d
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l

ve
rs

io
n

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
b

y
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r.
S

e
c
ti
o

n
1

.8
o

f 
H

R
A

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n
2

0
0

6

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
m

e
m

b
e

rs
w

e
re

s
e

n
t

a
c
o

p
y

o
f 

th
e

d
ra

ft

H
R

A
B

u
s
in

e
s
s

P
la

n

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

tr
a

te
g

y
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g

a
P

la
in

E
n

g
li
s
h

S
u

m
m

a
ry

,

in
a

d
va

n
c
e

o
f

a
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n

m
e

e
ti
n

g
.

T
h

e
 H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

th
e

m
e

e
ti
n

g
a

n
d

g
a

ve
a

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
o

n
 t

h
e

m
a

in

is
s
u

e
s
,

a
n

d
a

s
k
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
’s

vi
e

w
s
.

T
h

e

c
o

s
t

w
a

s
m

in
im

a
l

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

3
/0

6
T

re
e

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

A
p

r-
0

6
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
T

o
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
b

a
c
k
lo

g
o

f 
tr

e
e

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

w
o

rk

T
o

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
b

a
c
k
lo

g
o

f 
tr

e
e

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

w
o

rk

R
e

s
u

lt
s

w
e

re
p

a
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t
a

n
d

It
w

a
s

a
g

re
e

d
b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

to

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
b

u
d

g
e

t
in

 f
u

tu
re

y
e

a
rs

to
c
le

a
r 

th
e

b
a

c
k
lo

g
o

f
w

o
rk

T
B

A

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

4
/0

6
R

o
m

e
la

n
d

s

R
e

fu
s
e

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

J
u

n
-0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

(N
o

rt
h

)

(H
o

u
s
in

g
O

ff
ic

e
r,

N
o

rt
h

)

T
o

s
e

e
w

h
e

th
e

r
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

re
fu

s
e

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

c
o

u
ld

b
e

m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
e

s
ta

te

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
G

ro
u

p
T

h
e

re
w

a
s

n
o

c
o

n
s
e

n
s
u

s
o

f
o

p
in

io
n

a
s
 t

o
h

o
w

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
m

a
d

e
.

N
o

a
c
ti
o

n
w

a
s
 t

a
k
e

n

B
y

p
o

s
t 

to
re

s
id

e
n

ts

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

5
/0

6
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

u
p

d
a

te
d

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
m

p
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s

O
c
t-

0
6

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
o

s
e

e
k

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

vi
e

w
s

o
n

 t
h

e
d

ra
ft

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
m

p
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
p

ri
o

r 
to

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n

b
y
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

 H
o

ld
e

r,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
A

c
ti
o

n
P

la
n

; 
to

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

a
n

y

a
g

re
e

d
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

o
r

a
d

d
it
io

n
s

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

fi
n

a
l
ve

rs
io

n
.

T
h

e
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
d

ra
ft

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
d

id
n

o
t

p
ro

p
o

s
e

a
n

y
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

T
h

e
m

in
u

te
s

o
f 

th
e

T
e

n
a

n
ts

a
n

d

L
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
M

e
e

ti
n

g
–

1
7

.1
0

.0
6

(A
va

il
a

b
le

 f
ro

m
 H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
)

T
h

e
F

e
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
m

e
m

b
e

rs

w
e

re
s
e

n
t

a
c
o

p
y

o
f 

th
e

d
ra

ft
 H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

S
tr

a
te

g
y

in
a

d
va

n
c
e

o
f

a

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
m

e
e

ti
n

g
.

T
h

e

H
e

a
d

o
f 

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

m
e

e
ti
n

g
a

n
d

g
a

ve
a

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
o

n
 t

h
e

m
a

in
is

s
u

e
s
,

a
n

d
a

s
k
e

d
 f

o
r

th
e

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
’s

vi
e

w
s
.

T
h

e
c
o

s
t

w
a

s
m

in
im

a
l

Page 100



R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
S

u
b

je
c

t
D

a
te

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
d

b
y

C
a

rr
ie

d
O

u
t 

B
y

P
u

rp
o

s
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
R

e
s

u
lt

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

T
o

M
e

th
o

d

E
P

P
IN

G
 F

O
R

E
S

T
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

U
B

L
IC

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

2
0

0
6

/0
7

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

6
/0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

E
q

u
a

li
ty

a
n

d

D
iv

e
rs

it
y

O
c
t-

0
6

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

T
o

m
e

e
t 

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o

f 
th

e
A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l

B
e

h
a

vi
o

u
r

A
c
t.

T
h

e
re

w
a

s
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s

w
it
h

 C
it
iz

e
n

s

A
d

vi
c
e

B
u

re
a

u
,

T
e

n
a

n
ts

a
n

d
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

7
/0

6
R

e
vi

e
w

o
f

H
o

u
s
in

g

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n

S
c
h

e
m

e

N
o

v-
0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

A
n

a
n

n
u

a
l
re

vi
e

w
o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

S
c
h

e
m

e
w

a
s

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t

o
e

n
s
u

re
it

re
fl
e

c
ts

th
e

c
u

rr
e

n
t

lo
c
a

l
h

o
u

s
in

g
s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
n

y

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
in

L
a

w
a

n
d

 t
o

m
e

e
t 

th
e

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ts

T
a

rg
e

t 
to

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f

p
e

o
p

le
li
vi

n
g

in
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
.

O
n

e
re

s
u

lt
re

c
e

iv
e

d
w

a
s

ve
ry

p
o

s
it
iv

e
.

It

w
a

s
a

ls
o

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

a
p

p
li
c
a

n
ts

w
h

o
a

re
g

ra
n

te
d

n
o

n
-s

e
c
u

re

te
n

a
n

c
y

w
il
l
in

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
b

e
g

ra
n

te
d

s
e

c
u

re
 t

e
n

a
n

c
ie

s
 t

o
m

e
e

t 
th

e

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ts

 t
a

rg
e

t
o

f
re

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

p
e

o
p

le
li
vi

n
g

in
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
b

y
5

0
%

b
y

2
0

1
0

.
T

h
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
w

a
s

n
o

t
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

a
s
 t

h
e

re
w

e
re

n
o

a
d

ve
rs

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
.

 C
a

b
in

e
t

re
p

o
rt

–
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

A
ll
 R

e
g

is
te

re
d

S
o

c
ia

l

L
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
in

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

E
F

D
C

.
P

o
s
ta

l
S

u
rv

e
y

to
re

g
is

te
re

d
s
o

c
ia

l

la
n

d
lo

rd
s

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

8
/0

6
S

h
e

lt
e

re
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
T

e
n

a
n

t

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

(T
P

A
)

N
o

v-
0

6
H

e
a

d
o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

T
e

n
a

n
t

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n

O
ff

ic
e

r

T
o

s
e

e
k

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

d
ra

ft
T

P
A

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

d
ra

ft
T

P
A

T
e

n
a

n
ts

a
n

d
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
,

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g

F
o

ru
m

,
a

ll
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
vi

a
 H

o
u

s
in

g

N
e

w
s

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
w

it
h

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
F

o
ru

m

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/1

9
/0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

o
n

H
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n

t

D
e

c
-0

6
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

(O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
)

T
o

m
e

e
t 

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
o

f 
th

e
A

n
ti

S
o

c
ia

l

B
e

h
a

vi
o

u
r

A
c
t.

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s

w
it
h

A
n

ti
-S

o
c
ia

l
B

e
h

a
vi

o
u

r

V
io

le
n

t 
C

ri
m

e
T

a
s
k
in

g
G

ro
u

p
, 

C
it
iz

e
n

s

A
d

vi
c
e

B
u

re
a

u
,

T
e

n
a

n
ts

a
n

d
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
. 

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y

P
a

n
e

l

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/2

0
/0

6
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t

S
c
h

e
m

e
a

t

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
W

a
y

F
la

ts
/S

h
o

p
s

S
it

D
e

c
-0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
L

e
g

a
l,

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

E
s
ta

te
s

T
o

c
o

n
s
u

lt
u

p
o

n
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
im

p
ro

ve
re

fu
s
e

s
to

ra
g

e
a

n
d

c
o

ll
e

c
ti
o

n
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
,

a
c
c
e

s
s

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 f
la

ts
,

h
a

rd
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
,

li
g

h
ti
n

g
e

tc
.

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
in

 f
a

vo
u

r
o

f
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
w

it
h

s
o

m
e

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
a

n
d

m
in

o
r

m
o

d
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
.

D
a

vi
d

B
a

rr
e

tt
/J

u
li
e

 C
h

e
n

e
r y

a
t

L
im

e
s

F
a

rm
 H

o
u

s
in

g
O

ff
ic

e

P
o

s
ta

l
S

u
rv

e
y
 f

o
ll
o

w
e

d
b

y

m
e

e
ti
n

g
w

it
h

2
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

w
h

o
ra

is
e

d
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r

p
o

in
ts

 f
o

r
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/2

1
/0

6
S

h
e

e
ri

n
g

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

D
a

y

D
e

c
-0

6
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

a
n

d
L

e
is

u
re

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

T
e

n
a

n
t

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n

O
ff

ic
e

r
a

n
d

L
e

is
u

re

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t

O
ff

ic
e

r

P
a

rt
o

f
a

a
n

in
it
ia

ti
ve

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
in

E
q

u
a

li
ty

Im
p

a
c
t

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
e

n
g

a
g

e
re

s
id

e
n

ts

li
vi

n
g

in
ru

ra
l
a

re
a

s
,

e
s
p

e
c
ia

ll
y

in
re

la
ti
o

n
 t

o

th
e

p
ro

vi
s
io

n
o

f
h

o
u

s
in

g
a

n
d

le
is

u
re

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

P
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
re

s
id

e
n

ts
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
.

S
p

e
c
if
ic

is
s
u

e
s

ra
is

e
d

o
n

 t
h

e
d

a
y

h
a

ve
b

e
e

n

d
e

a
lt

w
it
h

a
s

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

A
ll

re
s
id

e
n

ts
o

f
S

h
e

e
ri

n
g

w
e

re
in

vi
te

d
,

a
p

p
ro

x
1

0
0

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
,

6
5

 t
o

o
k

p
a

rt
in

s
u

rv
e

y
c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f 

th
e

o
p

e
n

d
a

y
.

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
g

a
ve

o
p

in
io

n
s

o
n

a
w

id
e

ra
n

g
e

o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

a
n

d
a

m
e

n
it
ie

s
,

e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 t

h
e

c
o

u
n

c
il
 t

o
g

a
u

g
e

in
te

re
s
t

in
a

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d

re
s
id

e
n

ts
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

is
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
d

id
n

o
t

s
e

e
k
 t

o
a

d
d

re
s
s

s
p

e
c
if
ic

is
s
u

e
s
.

R
e

p
o

rt
s

a
va

il
a

b
le

 f
ro

m
 H

o
u

s
in

g

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

T
e

n
a

n
t

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
O

ff
ic

e
r

P
u

b
li
c

o
p

e
n

d
a

y
in

vo
lv

in
g

c
o

u
n

c
il
,

lo
c
a

l
s
c
h

o
o

l
a

n
d

o
th

e
r

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

T
h

e
c
o

s
t

w
a

s
a

p
p

ro
xi

m
a

te
ly

£
2

5
0

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/2

2
/0

6
C

h
o

ic
e

B
a

s
e

d

L
e

tt
in

g
s

O
n

g
o

in
g

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t

2
0

0
6

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
H

e
a

d
o

f

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
a

b
in

e
t

T
o

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
d

in
fo

rm
a

ll
re

le
va

n
t

g
ro

u
p

s
o

n

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

p
la

n
 t

o
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

a
 C

h
o

ic
e

B
a

s
e

d
L

e
tt

in
g

s
s
c
h

e
m

e
d

u
ri

n
g

2
0

0
7

/0
8

T
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
o

n
 t

h
e

w
a

y
in

w
h

ic
h

th
e

s
c
h

e
m

e
is

d
e

li
ve

re
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l.
 C

o
n

ta
in

e
d

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
P

a
n

e
l

re
p

o
rt

s

V
a

ri
o

u
s

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s

w
it
h

e
xt

e
rn

a
l
A

g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 

R
S

L
’s

,

T
e

n
a

n
ts

a
n

d
L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r’
s

F
e

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
,

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

F
o

ru
m

/R
u

ra
l
T

e
n

a
n

ts

F
o

ru
m

, 
C

it
iz

e
n

s
A

d
vi

c
e

B
u

re
a

u
s

a
n

d
a

ls
o

a

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
e

xe
rc

is
e

w
it
h

te
n

a
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

o
u

s
in

g

N
e

w
s

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

1
/0

7
H

o
u

s
in

g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

F
e

b
-0

7
H

o
u

s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
O

ld
e

r
P

e
o

p
le

s

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

a
s
s
e

s
s

w
h

e
th

e
r

o
ld

e
r

p
e

o
p

le
a

re
re

c
e

iv
in

g

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
o

n
 t

h
e

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

a
va

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
m

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
F

o
ru

m
, 

fo
ll
o

w
u

p
vi

s
it
s

to
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
b

y
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r
(F

in
a

n
c
e

).

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
F

o
ru

m
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

G
ro

u
p

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
e

m
o

re
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
m

a
d

e
a

va
il
a

b
le

o
n

h
o

u
s
in

g
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

a
n

d
 t

h
e

im
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

re
c
e

iv
in

g
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

in

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
o

th
e

r
in

c
o

m
e

s
s
u

c
h

a
s

p
e

n
s
io

n
 t

a
x

c
re

d
it

H
o

u
s
in

g
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

S
h

e
lt
e

re
d

H
o

u
s
in

g
F

o
ru

m
, 

fo
ll
o

w
u

p

vi
s
it
s
 t

o
 t
e

n
a

n
ts

b
y

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

O
ff

ic
e

r
(F

in
a

n
c
e

)

P
M

U
/C

O
N

S
/0

2
/0

7
T

ra
n

s
fe

r
o

f

L
a

n
d

a
t

T
u

rn
e

rs

C
lo

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e

T
o

w
n

 C
o

u
n

c
il

M
a

r-
0

7
A

re
a

 H
o

u
s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

A
re

a
 H

o
u

s
in

g

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

s
e

e
if

re
s
id

e
n

ts
li
vi

n
g

a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

s
it
e

a
re

h
a

p
p

y
w

it
h

 t
h

e
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls

N
in

e
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
li
vi

n
g

a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 

to
s
it
e

.
F

iv
e

re
s
id

e
n

ts
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

d
.

F
o

u
r

o
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls

T
o

w
n

 C
o

u
n

c
il

B
y

p
o

s
t 

to
n

in
e

re
s
id

e
n

ts

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Notes from Previous Meeting - 12 February 2007
	5 Terms of Reference / Work Programme
	Work Programme

	6 Key Performance Indicators 2006/07 and 2007/08
	Appendix 1 - Key Performance Indivators

	7 Value for Money Sub-Group - Report
	8 Value for Money in Leisure Services
	9 Backward Looking Efficienct Statement 2006/07
	Gershon appendix

	10 Council Plan 2006-2010 - Annual Review
	Appendix 1 - Council Plan 2006 -2010
	Appendix 2 - Essex Local Area Agreement
	Appendix 3 - CPA Improvement Plan

	11 Essex Local Agreement - Refresh and Quarterly Progress Monitoring
	12 Consultation Plan and Register 2006/07 and 2007/08
	Consultation Plan - Appendix 1
	Consultation Plan - Appendix 2


